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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION

625 Ninth Street
Rapid City, South Dakota 57701

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
MAY 23,2012

March 22, 2012

Dear Shareholder:

You are invited to attend the annual meeting of shareholders of Black Hills Corporation to be held on Wednesday,
May 23, 2012 at 9:30 a.m., local time, at the Dahl Arts Center, 713 Seventh Street, Rapid City, South Dakota. The
purpose of our annual meeting is to consider and take action on the following:

1.Election of three directors in Class III: Michael H. Madison, Steven R. Mills and Stephen D. Newlin.

2. Authorization of an increase in our authorized indebtedness from $2 billion to $4 billion.

3.Ratification of Deloitte & Touche LLP to serve as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2012.
4. Adoption of an advisory, non-binding resolution to approve our executive compensation.

5.Any other business that properly comes before the annual meeting.

The enclosed proxy statement discusses these important matters to be considered at this year’s meeting. Our common
shareholders of record as of March 13, 2012 can vote at the annual meeting.

Your vote is very important. You may vote your shares by telephone, by the Internet or by returning the enclosed
proxy. If you own shares of common stock other than the shares shown on the enclosed proxy, you will receive a
proxy in a separate envelope for each such holding. Please vote each proxy received. To make sure that your vote is
counted if voting by mail, you should allow enough time for the postal service to deliver your proxy before the
meeting.

Sincerely,
ROXANN R. BASHAM
Vice President — Governance and Corporate Secretary
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BLACK HILLS CORPORATION

625 Ninth Street
Rapid City, South Dakota 57701

PROXY STATEMENT

A proxy in the accompanying form is solicited by the Board of Directors of Black Hills Corporation, a South Dakota
corporation, to be voted at the annual meeting of our shareholders to be held Wednesday, May 23, 2012, and at any
adjournment of the annual meeting.

The enclosed form of proxy, when executed and returned, will be voted as set forth in the proxy. Any shareholder
signing a proxy has the power to revoke the proxy in writing, addressed to our secretary, or in person at the meeting at
any time before the proxy is exercised.

We will bear all costs of the solicitation. In addition to solicitation by mail, our officers and employees may solicit
proxies by telephone, fax, or in person. We have retained Georgeson Inc. to assist us in the solicitation of proxies at an
anticipated cost of $8,000, plus out-of-pocket expenses. Also, we will, upon request, reimburse brokers or other
persons holding stock in their names or in the names of their nominees for reasonable expenses in forwarding proxies
and proxy materials to the beneficial owners of stock.

This proxy statement and the accompanying form of proxy are to be first mailed on or about March 22, 2012. Our
2011 annual report to shareholders is being mailed to shareholders with this proxy statement.

VOTING RIGHTS AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS

Only our shareholders of record at the close of business on March 13, 2012 are entitled to vote at the meeting. Our
outstanding voting stock as of the record date consisted of 44,083,768 shares of our common stock.

Each outstanding share of our common stock is entitled to one vote. Cumulative voting is permitted in the election of
our Board of Directors. Each share is entitled to three votes, one each for the election of three directors, and the three
votes may be cast for a single person or may be distributed among two or three persons.
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COMMONLY ASKED QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE
ANNUAL MEETING PROCESS

Who is soliciting my proxy?
The Board of Directors of Black Hills Corporation is soliciting your proxy.
Where and when is the annual meeting?

The annual meeting is at 9:30 a.m., local time, May 23, 2012 at the Dahl Arts Center, 713 Seventh Street, Rapid City,
South Dakota.

What am I voting on?
You are voting on:
€lection of three directors in Class III: Michael H. Madison, Steven R. Mills and Stephen D. Newlin;
Authorization of an increase in our authorized indebtedness from $2 billion to $4 billion;
Ratification of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm for 2012; and
Adoption of an advisory, non-binding resolution to approve our executive compensation.
Who can vote?
Holders of our common stock as of the close of business on the record date, March 13, 2012, can vote at our annual
meeting. Each share of our common stock has one vote for Items 2, 3 and 4. Cumulative voting is permitted in the
election of directors. Each share is entitled to three votes for the election of directors, one each for the election of three
directors, and the three votes may be cast for a single person or may be distributed among two or three persons.
How do I vote?
There are three ways to vote by proxy:
by calling the toll free telephone number on the enclosed proxys;

by using the

Internet; or

by returning the enclosed proxy in the envelope provided.

You may be able to vote by telephone or the Internet if your shares are held in the name of a bank or broker. If this is
the case, you will need to follow their instructions.

If we receive your signed proxy before the annual meeting, we will vote your shares as you direct. You can specify on
your proxy whether your shares should be voted for all, some or none of the nominees for director. You can also
specify whether you approve, disapprove or abstain from the other proposals.

If you do not mark any sections, your proxy card will be voted:

¢n favor of the election of the directors named in Item 1; and
¢n favor of Items 2, 3 and 4.

Who will count the vote?
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Representatives of our transfer agent, Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., will count the votes and serve as judges of the election.
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What constitutes a quorum?

Shareholders representing at least 50 percent of our common stock issued and outstanding as of the record date must
be present at the annual meeting, either in person or by proxy, for there to be a quorum. Abstentions and broker
non-votes are counted as present for establishing a quorum. A broker non-vote occurs when a broker or other nominee
holding shares for a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the broker or nominee does not
have discretionary voting power and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner.

What vote is needed for these proposals to be adopted?

Item 1 — Election of Directors. The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting is required for the
election of directors. This means that the three nominees with the largest number of votes “For” will be elected as
directors. A properly executed proxy marked “Withhold authority”” with respect to the election of one or more directors
will not be voted with respect to the director or directors indicated, although it will be counted for purposes of
determining whether a quorum is present.

Item 2 — Authorization of an Increase in our Authorized Indebtedness. The increase in our authorized indebtedness
from $2 billion to $4 billion will be approved if the votes cast “For” exceed the votes cast “Against.” Abstentions and
broker non-votes will have no effect on this vote.

Item 3 — Ratification of Auditors. The appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP as our independent registered public
accounting firm for 2012 will be ratified if the votes cast “For” exceed the votes cast “Against.” Abstentions will have no
effect on such vote.

Item 4 — Adoption of an Advisory Non-Binding Resolution to Approve Executive Compensation. The advisory
resolution to approve executive compensation (“say on pay’’) is non-binding. However, our Board of Directors will
consider shareholders to have approved our executive compensation if the number of votes cast “For” the proposal
exceeds the number of votes cast “Against” the proposal. Abstentions and broker non-votes will have no effect on such
vote.

How will my shares be voted if they are held in a broker’s name?

If you hold your shares through an account with a bank or broker, the bank or broker may vote your shares on some
matters even if you do not provide voting instructions. Brokerage firms have the authority under the New York Stock
Exchange rules to vote shares on certain matters (such as the ratification of auditors) when their customers do not
provide voting instructions. However, on most other matters when the brokerage firm has not received voting
instructions from its customers, the brokerage firm cannot vote the shares on that matter and a “broker non-vote” occurs.
This means that brokers may not vote your shares on the election of directors, the increase in our authorized
indebtedness and the “say on pay” advisory vote if you have not given your broker specific instructions as to how to
vote. Please be sure to give specific voting instructions to your broker so that your vote can be counted.

What happens if I do not give my broker instructions?
Absent your instructions, the broker will not be able to vote your shares for the election of directors, the increase in
our authorized indebtedness and the “say on pay” advisory vote. Therefore, we urge you to instruct your broker in

writing to vote shares held in street name.

Is cumulative voting permitted for the election of directors?
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In the election of directors, you may cumulate your vote. Cumulative voting allows you to allocate among the director
nominees, as you see fit, the total number of votes equal to the number of director positions to be filled multiplied by
the number of shares you hold. For example, if you own 100 shares of stock, and there are three directors to be elected
at the annual meeting, you could allocate 300 “For” votes (three times 100) among as few or as many of the three
nominees to be voted on at the annual meeting as you choose.

If you choose to cumulate your votes, you will need to submit a proxy card or a ballot and make an explicit statement
of your intent to cumulate your votes, either by indicating in writing on the proxy card or by indicating in writing on
your ballot when voting at the annual meeting. If you hold shares beneficially in street name and wish to cumulate
votes, you should contact your broker, trustee or nominee.

10
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What should I do now?

You should vote your shares by telephone, by the Internet or by returning your signed and dated proxy card in the
enclosed envelope as soon as possible so that your shares will be represented at the annual meeting.

Who conducts the proxy solicitation and how much will it cost?

We are asking for your proxy for the annual meeting and will pay all the costs of asking for shareholder proxies. We
have hired Georgeson Inc. to help us send out the proxy materials and ask for proxies. Georgeson Inc.’s fee for these
services is anticipated to be $8,000, plus out-of-pocket expenses. We can ask for proxies through the mail or by
telephone, fax, or in person. We can use our directors, officers and employees to ask for proxies. These people do not
receive additional compensation for these services. We will reimburse brokers and other custodians, nominees and
fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for forwarding solicitation material to the beneficial owners of
our common stock.

Can I revoke my proxy?

Yes. You can change your vote in one of four ways at any time before your proxy is used. First, you can enter a new
vote by telephone or Internet. Second, you can revoke your proxy by written notice. Third, you can send a later dated
proxy changing your vote. Fourth, you can attend the meeting and vote in person.

Who should I call with questions?

If you have questions about the annual meeting, you should call Roxann R. Basham, Vice President — Governance and
Corporate Secretary, at (605) 721-1700.

When are the shareholder proposals for the annual meeting held in 2013 due?

In order to be considered for inclusion in our proxy materials, you must submit proposals for next year’s annual
meeting in writing to our Corporate Secretary at our executive offices at 625 Ninth Street, Rapid City, South Dakota
57701, on or prior to November 22, 2012.

A shareholder who intends to submit a proposal for consideration, but not for inclusion in our proxy materials, must
provide written notice to our Corporate Secretary in accordance with Article I, Section 9 of our Bylaws. In general,
our Bylaws provide that the written notice must be delivered not less than 90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the
first anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of shareholders. Our 2012 annual meeting is
scheduled for May 23, 2012. Ninety days prior to the first anniversary of this date will be February 22, 2013, and 120
days prior to the first anniversary of this date will be January 23, 2013.

11
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Proposal 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with our Bylaws and Article VI of our Articles of Incorporation, members of our Board of Directors are
elected to three classes of staggered terms consisting of three years each. At this annual meeting of our shareholders,
three directors will be elected to Class III of the Board of Directors to hold office for a term of three years until our
annual meeting of shareholders in 2015, and until their respective successors shall be duly elected and qualified in
accordance with our Bylaws.

Nominees for director at the annual meeting are Michael H. Madison, Steven R. Mills and Stephen D. Newlin. Two
nominees for director, Messrs. Mills and Newlin, are presently members of our Board of Directors. Mr. Mills was
appointed to the Board of Directors in October 2011 and is a nominee for election for the first time. Mr. Madison is
not currently a member our Board of Directors and is standing for election for the first time. Both Messrs. Mills and
Madison were identified by third party search firms. The proxies will vote your stock for the election of the three
nominees for director, unless otherwise instructed. If, at the time of the meeting, any of such nominees are unable to
serve in the capacity for which they are nominated or will not serve, events which the Board of Directors does not
anticipate, it is the intention of the persons designated as proxies to vote, in their discretion, for such nominees as the
Governance Committee may recommend and the Board of Directors may propose to replace those who are unable to
serve. The affirmative vote of a plurality of the votes cast at the meeting is required for the election of the nominees to
the Board of Directors. This means that the three nominees with the largest number of votes “For” will be elected as
directors. A properly executed proxy marked “Withhold authority” with respect to the election of one or more directors
will not be voted with respect to the director or directors indicated, although it will be counted for purposes of
determining whether a quorum is present.

In the election of directors, you may cumulate your vote. Cumulative voting allows you to allocate among the director
nominees, as you see fit, the total number of votes equal to the number of director positions to be filled multiplied by
the number of shares you hold. For example, if you own 100 shares of stock, and there are three directors to be elected
at the annual meeting, you could allocate 300 “For” votes (three times 100) among as few or as many of the three
nominees to be voted on at the annual meeting as you choose.

If you choose to cumulate your votes, you will need to submit a proxy card or a ballot and make an explicit statement
of your intent to cumulate your votes, either by indicating in writing on the proxy card or by indicating in writing on
your ballot when voting at the annual meeting. If you hold shares beneficially in street name and wish to cumulate
votes, you should contact your broker, trustee or nominee.

At the close of the 2012 Annual Meeting, David C. Ebertz and John R. Howard will complete their service as
members of the Black Hills Corporation Board of Directors. Messrs. Ebertz and Howard have served as our directors
since 1998 and 1977, respectively. Through their directorships, they have provided leadership and counsel to the
Board and management over an extended period of growth and transformation for us. The Board of Directors extends
its gratitude to Messrs. Ebertz and Howard for their distinguished service and contributions to the success of Black
Hills Corporation.

The following information, including principal occupation or employment for the past five or more years and a
summary of each individual’s experience, qualifications, attributes or skills that have led to the conclusion that each
individual should serve as a director in light of our current business and structure, is furnished with respect to each

nominee and each of the continuing members of the Board of Directors.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the election of the following nominees:

12
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Class III — Nominees for Election Until 2015 Annual Meeting
Michael H. Madison, 63, is standing for election as a director for the first time.
Retired. Former President and Chief Executive Officer and a Director of Cleco Corporation, a public utility holding

company, from 2005 to 2011, and President and Chief Operating Officer of Cleco Power, LLC, from 2003 to 2005.
He was state president, Louisiana-Arkansas with American Electric Power from 2000 to 2003.

13
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Mr. Madison has more than 40 years of experience in various positions of increasing responsibility including
President, Director, Vice President of Operations and Engineering, Vice President of Engineering and Production and
Vice President of Corporate Services. His knowledge of all aspects of the electric utility business, combined with his
position as President and Chief Executive Officer of a public company make him a valuable member of our Board of
Directors.

Steven R. Mills, 56, has been a director of the Company since October 2011.

Retired. Former Senior Executive Vice President, Performance and Growth of Archer Daniels Midland Company, a
processor, transporter, buyer and marketer of agricultural products from 2010 to February 2012, Executive Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer from 2008 to 2010, and Senior Vice President Strategic Planning from 2006 to
2008.

Mr. Mills has more than 34 years of experience in the fields of accounting, corporate finance, strategic planning, and
mergers and acquisitions. His background in finance and accounting provides the necessary expertise to serve on our
Audit Committee and provides financial and strategic acumen to strengthen our Board’s collective qualifications, skills
and experience.

Stephen D. Newlin, 59, has been a director of the Company since 2004.

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of PolyOne Corporation, a global provider of specialized polymer
materials, services and solutions, since 2006. Former President, Industrial Sector, Ecolab, Inc., a global leader of
services, specialty chemicals and equipment serving industrial and institutional clients, from 2003 to 2006. Served as
President and a Director of Nalco Chemical Company, a manufacturer of specialty chemicals, services and systems,
from 1998 to 2001 and Chief Operating Officer and Chairman from 2000 to 2001. Director of Valspar Corporation
from 2007 to February 2012.

Mr. Newlin has been a director of several other public company and non-profit boards in addition to those identified
above. He has industry experience in chemicals, water treatment, power generation, mining, energy, petro-chemical
and polymer compounds. Mr. Newlin’s experience as an active chairman and chief executive officer of a public
company and experience on other public company boards, provides an in-depth business, financial and strategic
acumen that strengthens our Board’s collective qualifications, skills and experience and enables him to be an effective
Governance Committee Chairman.

Class I — Directors with Terms Expiring at 2013 Annual Meeting
Jack W. Eugster, 66, has been a director of the Company since 2004.

Retired. Former Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President of Musicland Stores, Inc., a retail music and home
video company, from 1980 until his retirement in 2001. Currently Director of Donaldson Co., Inc. since 1993, Graco,
Inc. since 2004 and Life Time Fitness, Inc. since 2009. Previously Director of Golf Galaxy, Inc. from 2000 to 2007
and Director of Shopko Stores, Inc. from 1991 to 2005, serving as Non-Executive Chairman from 2001 to 2005.

Mr. Eugster has been a director of several other public company and non-profit boards in addition to those identified
above. He has experience as chairman and chief executive officer of a high-growth public company, and other
extensive experience on public company boards, including 11-years of service on the board of another regulated
utility. His past experience lends special expertise relating to acquisitions, divestitures and finance. Mr. Eugster
provides in-depth business, financial and strategic acumen that strengthens our Board’s collective qualifications, skills

14
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and experience and enables him to be an effective Compensation Committee Chairman.
Gary L. Pechota, 62, has been a director of the Company since 2007.

President and Chief Executive Officer of DT-TRAK Consulting, Inc., a medical billing services company, since 2007.
Retired from 2005 to 2007. Former Chief of Staff of the National Indian Gaming Commission from 2003 to 2005.
Previously held executive positions in the cement industry, including serving as chief executive officer of a
publicly-traded company, and positions in finance and accounting. Currently Director of Insteel Industries, Inc. since
1998 and Texas Industries, Inc. since 2009.

5
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Mr. Pechota’s background in finance and accounting provides the necessary expertise to serve on our Audit
Committee. As an enrolled member of the Rosebud Sioux Tribe, Mr. Pechota supports our Company’s interest in
promoting diverse perspectives, as well as expertise relating to our business interests on tribal lands. In addition, his
experience as an executive leader at several companies, his public company board experience, and his knowledge of
mining and extracting minerals and the associated environmental issues, strengthens our Board’s collective
qualifications, skills and experiences.

Thomas J. Zeller, 64, has been a director of the Company since 1997.

Retired. Former Chief Executive Officer of RESPEC, a technical consulting and services firm with expertise in
engineering, information technologies, and water and natural resources specializing in emerging environmental
protection protocols, from January 2011 to August 2011 and served as President from 1995 to January 2011.

Mr. Zeller is currently Presiding Director of our Board of Directors and is a Past Chairman of our Audit Committee.
His industry experience at RESPEC relates to many of our Company’s activities concerning technology, engineering
and environmental matters. This expertise, in addition to his experience as an executive leader, provides valuable
knowledge to our Board and strengthens its collective qualifications, skills and experiences relating to technical
aspects of our Company operations and contract relationships.

Class II — Directors with Terms Expiring at 2014 Annual Meeting
David R. Emery, 49, has been a director of the Company since 2004.

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Black Hills Corporation, since 2005. Formerly held various
positions with Black Hills Corporation, including President and Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief
Operating Officer — Retail Business Segment and Vice President — Fuel Resources. Mr. Emery has 22 years of
experience with Black Hills Corporation. Prior to joining us, he served as a petroleum engineer for a large
independent oil and gas company.

Mr. Emery is our only employee currently on our Board. With over 20 years of experience at our Company, he has a
deep knowledge and understanding of each of our business units and related industries. As an enrolled member of the
Cheyenne River Sioux Tribe, Mr. Emery supports our Company’s interest in promoting diverse perspectives. He has
demonstrated leadership abilities serving as our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer since 2005. His
strategic, operational and industry knowledge and expertise provide the basis for critical leadership on the Board.

Rebecca B. Roberts, 59, has been a director of the Company since May 2011.

Retired. Former President of Chevron Pipe Line Company, a pipeline company transporting crude oil, refined
petroleum products, liquefied petroleum gas, natural gas and chemicals within the United States, from 2006 to
February 2011. President of Chevron Global Power Generation from 2003 to 2006. Previously a Director of Dynegy,
Inc. serving as Chevron’s representative from March 2006 to April 2007.

Ms. Roberts has 37 years of experience in the energy industry. Her industry experience includes managing pipelines in
North America and global pipeline projects; managing a portfolio of power plants in the United States, Asia and the
Middle East, and work as a Vice President, chemist, scientist and trader in the oil and gas sectors. Her diversified
energy industry experience and prior service on a public company board provide in-depth business and strategic
acumen, and diversity that strengthens our Board’s collective qualifications, skills and experiences.
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Warren L. Robinson, 61, has been a director of the Company since 2007.

Retired. Former Executive Vice President, Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer of MDU Resources Group, Inc., a
diversified energy and resources company, from 1992 to January 2006.

Mr. Robinson has 29 years of experience in the utility industry, 18 of those years with MDU Resources Group. His
industry experience at MDU included regulated utility finance and operations, and oil and gas exploration and
production, two critical business segments for our Company. Mr. Robinson’s service as a chief executive for
accounting and finance

17
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activities relating to our industries provides the necessary financial reporting expertise to serve as Chairman of our
Audit Committee. His experience as an executive financial leader at a publicly traded energy company provides our
Board with current knowledge and understanding of the regulated business model, and unique challenges of the
geographic and regulatory environment in which we operate.

John B. Vering, 62, has been a director of the Company since 2005.

Managing Director of Lone Mountain Investments, Inc., oil and gas investments, since 2002. Partner in Vering Feed
Yards LLC, a privately owned agricultural company, since 2010. Served as Interim President and General Manager of
Black Hills Exploration and Production, Inc., our oil and gas subsidiary, from May 2010 to December 2011, pursuant
to a consulting agreement, leading a strategic review of our oil and gas assets. Previously held several executive
positions in the oil and gas industry.

Mr. Vering has over 30 years of experience, including executive leadership, in the oil and gas industry. He served for
23 years with Union Pacific Resources Company in several positions, including Vice President of Canadian
Operations. He has direct operating experience in oil and gas transportation, marketing, and exploration and
production, important business segments for our Company. His knowledge and understanding of the trans-national oil
and gas business, and his executive leadership experience strengthens our Board’s collective qualifications, skills and
experiences.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Guidelines. Our Board of Directors has adopted corporate governance guidelines titled
“Corporate Governance Guidelines of the Board of Directors” which guide the operation of our Board and assist the
Board in fulfilling its obligations to shareholders and other constituencies. The guidelines lay the foundation for the
Board’s responsibilities, operations, leadership, organization and committee matters. The Governance Committee
reviews the guidelines annually, and the guidelines may be amended at any time, upon recommendation by the
Governance Committee and approval of the Board. These guidelines can be found in the “Governance” section of our
website (www.blackhillscorp.com/corpgov.htm).

Board Independence. In accordance with New York Stock Exchange rules, the Board of Directors through its
Governance Committee affirmatively determines the independence of each director and director nominee in

accordance with guidelines it has adopted, which include all elements of independence set forth in the New York

Stock Exchange listing standards. These guidelines are contained in our Policy for Director Independence, which can
be found in the “Governance” section of our website (www.blackhillscorp.com/corpgov.htm). Based on these standards,
the Governance Committee determined that each of the following non-employee directors and director nominee is
independent and has no relationship with us, except as a director and shareholder:

David C. Ebertz Jack W. Eugster John R. Howard
Michael H. Madison Steven R. Mills Stephen D. Newlin
Gary L. Pechota Rebecca B. Roberts Warren L. Robinson

Thomas J. Zeller

In addition, based on such standards, the Governance Committee determined that Messrs. Emery and Vering are not
independent. Mr. Emery is not independent because he is our Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQ”). Mr. Vering is not independent because he served as Interim President and General Manager of our oil and gas
subsidiary during a portion of 2010 and 2011.

Board Leadership Structure. As noted above, our Board is currently comprised of eleven directors, nine of whom are
independent. Mr. Emery has served as our Chairman of the Board and CEO since 2005, and has been a member of our
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Board since 2004. Mr. Emery provides strategic, operational, and technical expertise and context for the matters
considered by our Board. After considering alternative board leadership structures, our Board chose to retain the
ability to balance an independent Board structure with the flexibility to appoint as Chairman a CEO-Director with
knowledge of and experience in the operations of our Company. At this time, our Board believes that having a single
person serve as Chairman and CEO provides unified and responsible leadership for our Company.

19
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Our Board has and continues to value a high degree of Board independence. As a result, our corporate governance
structure and practices promote a strong, independent Board, and include several independent oversight mechanisms.
Only independent directors serve on our Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees and we have appointed an
independent Presiding Director. Our Board believes these practices ensure that experienced and independent directors
will continue to effectively oversee management and critical issues related to financial and operating plans, long-range
strategic issues, enterprise risk and corporate integrity. All of our Board committees may seek legal, financial or other
expert advice from a source independent of management.

Our Board annually appoints a Presiding Director. Thomas J. Zeller is our current Presiding Director and has served in
this role since May 2010. The responsibilities of Presiding Director, as provided in the Board’s Governance
Guidelines, are to chair executive sessions of the independent directors and communicate the Board’s annual
evaluation of the CEO. The Presiding Director, together with the independent directors, establishes the agenda for
executive sessions, which are held at each regular Board meeting. The Presiding Director serves as a liaison between
the independent members of the Board and the CEO, and discusses, to the extent appropriate, matters raised by the
independent directors in executive session. The Presiding Director also consults with the Chairman regarding meeting
agendas and presides over regular meetings of the Board in the absence of the Chairman. This leadership structure
provides consistent and effective oversight of our management and our Company.

Risk Oversight. Our Board oversees an enterprise approach to risk management that supports our operational and
strategic objectives. The Corporate Governance Guidelines of our Board of Directors provide that the Board will
review major risks facing our Company and the options for risk mitigation presented by management. Our Board
delegates oversight of certain risk considerations to its committees within each of their respective areas of
responsibility; however, the full Board monitors risk relating to strategic planning and execution, as well as executive
succession. Financial risk oversight falls within the purview of our Audit Committee. Our Compensation Committee
oversees compensation and benefit plan risks. Each committee reports to the full Board.

Our Board reviews any material changes in our key enterprise risk management issues with management at each
quarterly Board meeting in conjunction with the presentation of quarterly financial results. In so doing, our Board
seeks to ensure appropriate risk mitigation strategies are implemented by management on an ongoing basis.
Operational and strategic plan presentations by management to our Board include consideration of the challenges and
risks to our business. Our Board and management actively engage in discussions of these topics and utilize outside
consultants as needed. Our Board oversees the assessment of our strategic plan risks as part of our strategic planning
process. In addition, our Board receives environmental, safety, legal and compliance reports at least annually.

Our Audit Committee oversees management’s strategy and performance relative to our significant financial risks. In
consultation with management, the independent auditors and the internal auditors, the Audit Committee discusses our
risk assessment, risk management and credit policies, and reviews significant financial risk exposures along with steps
management has taken to monitor, mitigate and report such exposures. At least twice a year, our Chief Risk Officer
provides a Risk and Credit Report to the Audit Committee. We adopted a Credit Policy that establishes guidelines,
controls and limits to manage and mitigate credit risk within risk tolerances established by the Committee.

Our Compensation Committee adopted an executive compensation philosophy that provides the foundation for our
executive compensation program. The executive compensation philosophy states that the executive pay program
should be market-based and maintain an appropriate and competitive balance between fixed and variable pay
elements, short- and long-term compensation and cash and stock-based compensation. The Compensation Committee
establishes company-specific performance goals and potential incentive payouts for our executive officers to motivate
and reward performance, consistent with our long-term success. The target compensation for our senior officers is
heavily weighted in favor of long-term incentives, aligning performance incentives with long-term results for our
shareholders. Our Compensation Committee also sets minimum performance thresholds and maximum payouts in the
incentive programs, and maintains the discretion to reduce awards if excessive risk is taken. Stock ownership
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guidelines established for all of our officers expect our executives to hold 100 percent of all shares awarded to them
until the established stock ownership guidelines are achieved. Our Compensation Committee also instituted “claw-back”
provisions in our incentive plans, which may require an executive to return incentives received, if the Compensation
Committee determines, in its discretion, that the executive engaged in specified misconduct or wrongdoing.
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Our management is responsible for day-to-day risk management and operates under an enterprise risk management
(ERM) program that addresses strategic, operational and financial risks. The ERM program includes practices to
identify risks, assesses the impact and probability of occurrence, and develops action plans to prevent the occurrence
or mitigate the impact of the risk. The ERM program includes regular reporting to our senior management team and
includes monitoring and testing by Risk Management, Compliance and Internal Audit groups. The overall ERM
program is reviewed with the Board of Directors on a regular basis.

We believe this division of risk management responsibilities described above is an effective approach for addressing
the risks facing our Company.

Director Nominees. The Governance Committee uses a variety of methods for identifying and evaluating nominees
for director. The Governance Committee regularly assesses the appropriate size of the Board, and whether any
vacancies on the Board are expected due to retirement or otherwise. In the event vacancies are anticipated, or
otherwise arise, the Governance Committee considers various potential candidates for director. Board candidates are
considered based upon various criteria, including diverse business, administrative and professional skills or
experiences; an understanding of relevant industries, technologies and markets; financial literacy; independence
status; the ability and willingness to contribute time and special competence to Board activities; personal integrity and
independent judgment; and a commitment to enhancing shareholder value. The Governance Committee considers
these and other factors as it deems appropriate, given the needs of the Board and us. Our goal is a balanced and
diverse Board, with members whose skills, background and experience are complementary and, together, cover the
spectrum of areas that impact our business. The Governance Committee considers candidates for Board membership
suggested by a variety of sources, including current or past Board members, the use of third-party executive search
firms, members of management and shareholders. There are no differences in the manner by which the Committee
evaluates director candidates recommended by shareholders from those recommended by other sources.

Shareholders who intend to nominate persons for election to the Board of Directors must provide timely written notice
of the nomination in accordance with Article I, Section 9 of our Bylaws. Generally, our Corporate Secretary must
receive the written notice at our executive offices at 625 Ninth Street, Rapid City, South Dakota, 57701, not less than
90 days nor more than 120 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of
shareholders. The notice must set forth at a minimum the information set forth in Article I, Section 9 of our Bylaws,
including the shareholder’s identity and status, contingent ownership interests, description of any agreement made with
others acting in concert with respect to the nomination, specific information about the nominee and supply certain
representations by the nominee to us.

Communications with the Board. Shareholders and others interested in communicating directly with the Presiding
Director, with the independent directors as a group, or the Board of Directors may do so in writing to the Presiding
Director, Black Hills Corporation, 625 Ninth Street, Rapid City, South Dakota, 57701.

Corporate Governance Documents. The charters of the Audit, Compensation and Governance committees, as well as
the Board’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, Policy for Director Independence, Code of Business Conduct and the
Code of Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Corporate Controller, and certain
other persons performing similar functions can be found in the “Governance” section of our website
www.blackhillscorp.com/corp.gov.htm. We intend to disclose any amendments to, or waivers of the Code of Ethics on
our website. Please note that none of the information contained on our website is incorporated by reference in this
proxy statement.

In January 2012, the Board amended our Corporate Governance Guidelines to adopt a policy relating to majority

voting. Pursuant to the policy, any nominee for election as a director who receives a greater number of votes “withheld”
from his or her election than votes “for” his or her election will promptly tender his or her resignation as a director to the
Chairman of the Board following certification of the election results. Neither abstentions nor broker non-votes will be
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deemed to be votes “for” or “withheld” from a director’s election for purposes of the policy. The Governance Committee
(without the participation of the affected director) will consider each resignation tendered under the policy and
recommend to the Board whether to accept or reject it. The Board will then take the appropriate action on each

tendered resignation, taking into account the Governance Committee’s recommendation. The Governance Committee

in making its recommendation, and the Board in making its decision, may consider any factors or other information

that it considers appropriate, including the reasons why the Committee believes shareholders “withheld” votes for
election from such director and any other circumstances surrounding the “withheld” votes, any alternatives for curing
the underlying cause of the “withheld” votes, the qualifications of the tendering director, his or her past and expected
future contributions to us and the Board, and the overall composition of the Board, including whether accepting the
resignation would cause us to fail to meet any applicable SEC or

9
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NYSE requirements. The Board will publicly disclose by filing with the SEC on Form 8-K its decision and, if
applicable, its rationale within 90 days after receipt of the tendered resignation.

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions. We recognize related party transactions can present potential
or actual conflicts of interest and create the appearance that decisions are based on considerations other than the best
interests of us and our shareholders. Accordingly, as a general matter, it is our preference to avoid related party
transactions. Nevertheless, we recognize that there are situations where related party transactions may be in, or may
not be inconsistent with, the best interests of us and our shareholders, including but not limited to situations where we
may obtain products or services of a nature, quantity or quality, or on other terms, that are not readily available from
alternative sources or when we provide products or services to related parties on an arm’s length basis on terms
comparable to those provided to unrelated third parties or on terms comparable to those provided to employees
generally. Therefore, our Board of Directors has adopted a policy for the review of related party transactions. This
policy requires directors and officers to promptly report to our Vice President — Governance all proposed or existing
transactions in which the Company and they, or persons related to them, are parties or participants. Our Vice President
— Governance presents to our Governance Committee those transactions that may require disclosure pursuant to Item
404 of Regulation S-K (typically, those transactions that exceed $120,000). Our Governance Committee reviews the
material facts presented and either approves or disapproves entry into the transaction. In reviewing the transaction, the
Governance Committee considers the following factors, among other factors it deems appropriate: (i) whether the
transaction is on terms no less favorable than terms generally available to an unaffiliated third-party under the same or
similar circumstances; (ii) the extent of the related party’s interest in the transaction; and (iii) the impact on a director’s
independence in the event the related party is a director, an immediate family member of a director or an entity in
which a director is a partner, shareholder or executive officer.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance. Based solely upon a review of our records and copies of
reports on Form 3, 4 and 5 furnished to us, we believe that during and with respect to 2011, all persons subject to the
reporting requirements of Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, filed the required reports
on a timely basis.

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
The Board of Directors

Our directors review and approve our strategic plan and oversee our management. Our Board of Directors held eight
meetings during 2011. Each regularly scheduled meeting of the Board includes an executive session of only
independent directors. We encourage our directors to attend the annual shareholders’ meeting. During 2011, every
director attended at least 75 percent of the combined total of Board meetings and Committee meetings on which the
director served and all directors attended the 2011 annual meeting of shareholders.

Committees of the Board

Our Board has three standing committees to facilitate and assist the Board in the execution of its responsibilities. The
committees are currently the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Governance Committee. In
accordance with the New York Stock Exchange listing standards and our Corporate Governance Guidelines, the
Audit, Compensation and Governance Committees are comprised solely of independent directors. Each committee
operates under a charter which is available on our website at www.blackhillscorp.com/corpgov.htm and is also
available in print to any shareholder who requests it. In addition, our Board creates special committees from time to
time for specific purposes.

Members of the Committees are designated by our Board upon recommendation of the Governance Committee. The
table below shows current membership for each of the Board committees.
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Audit Committee
John R. Howard
Steven R. Mills

Gary L. Pechota
Warren L. Robinson*

* Committee Chairperson
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Compensation Committee
Rebecca B. Roberts
David C. Ebertz

Jack W. Eugster*

Stephen D. Newlin
Thomas J. Zeller

Governance Committee
David C. Ebertz

Jack W. Eugster
Stephen D. Newlin*
Gary L. Pechota
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Audit Committee. The Audit Committee held seven meetings in 2011. The Audit Committee’s responsibilities,
discussed in detail in its charter include, among other duties, the responsibility to:

assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibility to our shareholders relating to the quality and integrity of our
accounting, auditing and financial reporting practices;

oversee the integrity of our financial statements, financial reporting process, systems of internal controls and
disclosure controls regarding finance, accounting and legal compliance;

review areas of potential significant financial risk to us;

review consolidated financial statements and disclosures;

appoint an independent registered public accounting firm for ratification by our shareholders;

monitor the independence and performance of our independent registered public accountants and internal auditing
department;

pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by our independent registered public accountants;

review the scope and results of the annual audit including reports and recommendations of our independent registered
public accountants;

review the internal audit plan, results of internal audit work and our process for monitoring compliance with our Code
of Conduct and other policies and practices established to ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
and

periodically meet with our internal audit group, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Compliance Officer, other
management, and our independent registered public accounting firm.

In accordance with the rules of the NYSE, all of the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate. In
addition, the Board determined that all of the members of the Audit Committee have the requisite attributes of an “audit
committee financial expert” as provided in regulations promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and
that such attributes were acquired through relevant education and/or experience.

Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee held seven meetings in 2011. The Compensation
Committee’s responsibilities, discussed in detail in its charter include, among other duties, the responsibility to:
discharge the Board of Directors’ responsibilities related to executive and director compensation philosophy, policies
and programs;

perform functions required of directors in the administration of all federal and state laws and regulations pertaining to
executive employment and compensation;

consider and recommend for approval by the Board all executive compensation programs including executive benefit
programs and stock ownership plans; and

promote an executive compensation program that supports the overall objective of enhancing shareholder value.

The Compensation Committee has authority under its charter to retain and terminate compensation consultants,
outside counsel and other advisors as the Committee may deem appropriate in its sole discretion. The Committee has
sole authority to approve related fees and retention terms and may delegate any of its responsibilities to
subcommittees as the Committee may deem appropriate in its sole discretion. The Committee engaged Towers
Watson, an independent consulting firm, to conduct an annual review of its 2011 total compensation program for
executive officers and directors. Expenses for other consulting services provided to us by Towers Watson, that are not
related to executive compensation, are monitored to ensure that executive compensation consultant independence is
maintained. Towers Watson did not provide us with services in excess of $120,000 that were in addition to the
services provided in connection with its advice and recommendations on the amount or form of executive and director
compensation.

The Committee annually evaluates the CEO’s performance in light of established goals and objectives, with input from

the other independent directors. Based upon the Committee’s evaluation and recommendation, the independent
directors of the Board set the CEO’s annual compensation, including salary, bonus, incentive and equity compensation.
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The CEO annually reviews the performance of each of our senior officers and presents a summary of his evaluations
to the Committee. The CEO also provides oversight of management’s evaluations of our other officers. Senior officers
assess performance of all officers reporting to them. Based upon these performance reviews, market analysis
conducted by the compensation consultant and discussions with our Sr. Vice President, Human Resources, the CEO
recommends the compensation of the officers to the Committee. The Committee may exercise its discretion in
modifying any of the recommended compensation and award levels in its review and approval process.

11
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More information describing the Compensation Committee’s processes and procedures for considering and
determining executive compensation, including the role of our CEO and consultants in determining or recommending
the amount or form of executive compensation, is included in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis.

In setting non-employee director compensation, the Compensation Committee recommends the form and amount of
compensation to the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors makes the final determination. In considering and
recommending the compensation of non-employee directors, the Compensation Committee considers such factors as it
deems appropriate, including historical compensation information, level of compensation necessary to attract and
retain non-employee directors meeting our desired qualifications and market data. In the review of director
compensation for 2011, the Compensation Committee retained Towers Watson to provide market information on
non-employee director compensation, including annual board and committee retainers, board and committee meeting
fees, committee chairperson fees, number of Board meetings and stock based compensation.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation. The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely
of independent directors. In addition, none of our executive officers serve as a member of a board of directors or
compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers who serve on our Board or on our
Compensation Committee.

Governance Committee. The Governance Committee held three meetings in 2011. The Governance Committee’s
responsibilities, discussed in detail in its charter include, among other duties, the responsibility to:

assess the size of the Board and membership needs and qualifications for Board membership;

tdentify and recommend prospective directors to the Board to fill vacancies;

review and evaluate director nominations submitted by shareholders, including reviewing the qualifications and
independence of shareholder nominees;

consider and recommend existing Board members to be renominated at our annual meeting of shareholders;
establish and review guidelines for corporate governance;

recommend to the Board committee membership and the chairpersons of the committees;

nominate an independent director to serve as a Presiding Director;

review the independence of each director and director nominee;

administer an annual evaluation of the performance of the Board and facilitate an annual assessment of each
committee; and

ensure that the Board oversees the evaluation and succession planning of management.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION
Director Fees

In 2011, our non-employee director compensation was as follows:

an annual cash retainer of $36,000, paid on a monthly basis;

tommon stock equivalents equal to $60,000 per year, paid on a quarterly basis;

dividend equivalents on the common stock equivalents equal to the same dividend rate our shareholders receive; and
ameeting fee of $1,500 for each Board and committee meeting attended, provided such committee meetings are
substantive in nature and content.

In addition, our Presiding Director and Committee Chairpersons received the following additional compensation:
Presiding Director — an annual fee of $15,000;

Audit Committee Chairperson — an annual fee of $10,000;

€Compensation Committee Chairperson — an annual fee of $8,000; and

Governance Committee Chairperson — an annual fee of $6,000.
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Effective January 1, 2012, the annual cash retainer paid to our non-employee directors was increased to $40,000, paid
on a monthly basis.

12
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Director Compensation for 2011 and Common Stock Equivalents Outstanding as of December 31, 2011

Number of Common

Name Fees Earned or  Stock All Other Total Stock Equivalents

Paid in Cash Awards 3 Compensation Outstanding at December
31,2011 @

David C. Ebertz $70,500 $60,000 - $130,500 14,572

Jack W. Eugster $80,000 $60,000 - $140,000 11,573

John R. Howard $70,500 $60,000 - $130,500 21,710

Kay S. Jorgensen®  $29,000 $25,000 - $54,000 -

Steven R. Mills® $18,000 $10,000 - $28,000 154

Stephen D. Newlin $81,000 $60,000 - $141,000 11,803

Gary L. Pechota $73,500 $60,000 - $133,500 8,808

Rebecca B. Roberts® $46,500 $35,000 - $81,500 965

Warren L. Robinson  $80,500 $60,000 - $140,500 8,992

John B. Vering(? - $60,000 $578,968 $638,968 10,903

Thomas J. Zeller $87,000 $60,000 - $147,000 15,003

(I)Our directors did not receive any option awards, non-equity incentive plan compensation, pension benefits or
perquisites in 2011.

Mr. Emery, our CEQ, is not included in this table because he is our employee and thus receives no compensation

(2)for his services as a director. Mr. Emery’s compensation received as an employee is shown in the Summary

Compensation Table for our Named Executive Officers.

(3)Each non-employee director received a quarterly award of common stock equivalents with a grant date fair value
of $15,000 per quarter or $60,000 a year.

The common stock equivalents are fully vested in that they are not subject to forfeiture; however, the shares are not

(4)issued until after the director ends his or her service on the Board. The common stock equivalents are payable in

stock or cash or can be deferred further at the election of the director.

( 5)Ms. Jorgensen’s term as a member of our Board of Directors concluded May 25, 2011, and consequently her fees
earned and stock award fair value reflect a partial year of service.
( 6)MS' Roberts and Mr. Mills became members of our Board of Directors effective May 25, 2011 and October 26,
2011, respectively, consequently their fees earned and stock award fair values reflect a partial year of service.
Mr. Vering served as Interim President and General Manager of our oil and gas subsidiary from May 2010 until
December 2011, leading a strategic review of our oil and gas assets. In exchange for his services, pursuant to a
consulting agreement dated May 3, 2010, he received $42,000 per month and temporary living expenses. He did
not receive cash Board compensation during the term of the agreement. In 2011, he received $504,000 for his
services as Interim President and General Manager and was provided temporary living expenses totaling $74,968.
Mr. Vering’s role as Interim President and General Manager ended on December 13, 2011, when John Benton was
hired as Vice President and General Manager of our oil and gas subsidiary. He also received a project completion
bonus in 2012 in the amount of $150,000, which is not included in his 2011 Other Compensation because the
Board of Directors did not authorize and approve the bonus until January 26, 2012. The consulting agreement, as
amended, expired January 31, 2012.

)
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Director Stock Ownership Guidelines

Each member of our Board of Directors is required to apply at least 50 percent of his or her annual cash retainer
toward the purchase of shares of common stock until the director has accumulated at least 7,500 shares of common
stock or common stock equivalents.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT AND PRINCIPAL SHAREHOLDERS

The following tables set forth the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of February 29, 2012 for each
director, each executive officer named in the Summary Compensation Table, all of our directors and executive officers
as a group, and each person or entity known by us to beneficially own more than five percent of our outstanding
shares of common stock. Beneficial ownership includes shares a director or executive officer has the power to vote or
transfer, and stock options that are exercisable currently or within 60 days of March 1, 2012.

Except as otherwise indicated by footnote below, we believe that each individual or entity named has sole investment
and voting power with respect to the shares of common stock indicated as beneficially owned by that individual or
entity.

Shares of Options
Name of Common PO Directors
.. Exercisable 4
Beneficial Owner Stock Within Common Percentage®
@) Beneficially60 Davs Stock al
Owned® Y Equivalent;%)j
Directors and Named
Executive Officers
Anthony S.
y 44,656 44,656  *

Cleberg
David C. Ebertz 6,596 15,198 21,794 *
David R. Emery®121,411 25,882 147,293 *
Jack W. Eugster 17,000 12,165 29,165 *
Linden R. Evans 60,735 60,735 *
Steven J. Helmers 43,407 10,110 53,517 *
John R. Howard 16,864 22,416 39,280 *
Michael H. «
Madison
Steven R. Mills 384 618 1,002
Robert A. Myers 25,215 25,215
Stephen D.

cpien 5,042 12398 17,440  *
Newlin
Gary L. Pechota 7,123 9,180 16,303 (134.7) (323.3)
Total capital expenditures (250.7) (205.5) (83.6) (56.2) (261.5) (284.1)
Other Financial and Operating Data:
Same store sales growth(4) 9.5% 9.0% 1.9% 2.6% 3.3% 2.2%
Same store sales(4) $11,356.5 $ 10,1185 $5,264.2 $3,656.6 $8,327.2 $7,555.8
Number of stores included in same store
sales calculation 8,324 8,153 7,735 7,655 7,627 7,186
Number of stores (at period end) 8,828 8,362 8,194 8,205 8,229 7,929
Selling square feet (in thousands at
period end) 62,494 58,803 57,376 57,379 57,299 54,753
Net sales per square foot(5) $ 19438 $ 179.7 $ 1654 $ 1639 $ 1626 $ 1598
Consumables sales 70.8% 69.3% 66.4% 66.7% 65.7% 65.3%
Seasonal sales 14.5% 14.6% 16.3% 15.4% 16.4% 15.7%
Home products sales 7.4% 8.2% 9.1% 9.2% 10.0% 10.6%
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Apparel sales 7.3% 7.9% 8.2% 8.7% 7.9% 8.4%
Rent expense $ 4286 $ 389.6 $ 2145 $ 1502 $ 3439 §$ 3123
Balance Sheet Data (at period end):

Cash and cash equivalents and

short-term investments $ 2221 $ 378.0 $ 119.8 $ 2192 $ 209.5
Total assets 8,863.5 8,889.2 8,656.4 3,040.5 2,980.3
Total debt 3,403.4 4,137.1 4,282.0 270.0 278.7
Total shareholders' equity 3,390.3 2,831.7 2,703.9 1,745.7 1,720.8

€]

@

3

“

&)

Includes the results of BAC for the period prior to the Merger with and into Dollar General Corporation from March 6, 2007 (the date of BAC's
formation) through July 6, 2007 and the post-Merger results of Dollar General Corporation for the period from July 7, 2007 through February 1, 2008.

Includes the effects of certain strategic merchandising and real estate initiatives that resulted in the closing of approximately 460 stores and changes in
the Company's inventory management model which resulted in greater inventory markdowns than in previous years.

The fiscal year ended February 3, 2006 was comprised of 53 weeks.

Same-store sales are calculated based upon stores that were open at least 13 full fiscal months and remain open at the end of the reporting period. The
Company excludes the sales in the 53rd week of a 53-week year from the same-store sales calculation.

Net sales per square foot was calculated based on total sales for the preceding 12 months as of the ending date of the reporting period divided by the
average selling square footage during the period, including the end of the fiscal year, the beginning of the fiscal year, and the end of each of the
Company's three interim fiscal quarters. For the period from February 3, 2007 through July 6, 2007, average selling square footage was calculated
using the average square footage as of July 6, 2007 and as of the end of each of the four preceding quarters. For the fiscal year ended February 3, 2006,
net sales per square foot was calculated based on 52 weeks' sales.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion and analysis should be read with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes
thereto. It also should be read in conjunction with the Forward-Looking Statements/Risk Factors disclosures set forth in the Introduction and in
Item 1A of this report, respectively.

Executive Overview

We are the largest discount retailer in the United States by number of stores, with 8,877 stores located in 35 states as of February 26, 2010,
primarily in the southern, southwestern, midwestern and eastern United States. We offer a broad selection of merchandise, including consumable
products such as food, paper and cleaning products, health and beauty products and pet supplies, and non-consumable products such as seasonal
merchandise, home decor and domestics, and apparel. Our merchandise includes high quality national brands from leading manufacturers, as
well as comparable quality private brand selections with prices at substantial discounts to national brands. We offer our customers these national
brand and private brand products at everyday low prices (typically $10 or less) in our convenient small-box (small store) locations.

On July 6, 2007, we completed a merger and, as a result, we are a subsidiary of Buck Holdings, L.P. ("Buck"), a Delaware limited
partnership controlled by investment funds affiliated with Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. (collectively, "KKR"). The membership interests
of Buck and Buck Holdings, LLC ("Buck LLC"), the general partner of Buck, are held by a private investor group, including affiliates of each of
KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. and other equity investors (collectively, the "Investors") The merger consideration was funded through the use
of our available cash, cash equity contributions from the Investors, equity contributions of certain members of our management and certain debt
financings discussed below under "Liquidity and Capital Resources." On November 13, 2009, we completed an initial public offering of
approximately 39.2 million shares, including 22.7 million newly issued shares and approximately 16.5 million outstanding shares sold by a
selling shareholder.

The customers we serve are value-conscious, and Dollar General has always been intensely focused on helping our customers make the
most of their spending dollars. We believe our convenient store format and broad selection of high quality products at compelling values have
driven our substantial growth and financial success over the years. Like other companies, over the past two years, we have been operating in an
environment with heightened economic challenges and uncertainties. Consumers are facing very high rates of unemployment, fluctuating food,
gasoline and energy costs, rising medical costs, and a continued weakness in housing and credit markets, and the timetable for economic
recovery is uncertain. Nonetheless, as a result of our long-term mission of serving the value-conscious customer, coupled with a vigorous focus
on improving our operating and financial performance, our 2009 and 2008 financial results were strong, and we remain optimistic with regard to
executing our operating priorities in 2010.

At the beginning of 2008, we defined four operating priorities, which we remain keenly focused on executing. These priorities are: 1) drive
productive sales growth, 2) increase our gross margins, 3) leverage process improvements and information technology to reduce costs, and
4) strengthen and expand Dollar General's culture of serving others.

Our first priority is driving productive sales growth by increasing shopper frequency and transaction amount and maximizing sales per
square foot. We have enhanced our category management processes, allowing us to continue expanding our consumables offerings while also
improving profitability, by adding more productive items and eliminating unproductive items. We are utilizing the space in our stores more
productively by raising the height of our merchandise fixtures and implementing more consistent space planning. In addition, we are making
significant progress in
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defining and improving our store standards with a goal of developing a consistent look and feel across all stores. We are targeting both new and
existing customers with our improved advertising circulars, and over the past two years we have opportunistically extended our store hours for
our customers' convenience. Finally, we believe we have significant potential to grow sales through new store growth in both existing and new
markets. We opened 500 new stores in fiscal 2009 and plan to open approximately 600 new stores in fiscal 2010.

Our second priority is to increase gross profit through category management, shrink reduction, distribution efficiencies, an improved
pricing model, the expansion of private brand offerings and increased foreign sourcing. We made good progress through each of these initiatives
in 2008 and 2009, reporting our highest gross profit rate in the last 25 years in 2009. Under new leadership, our merchandising team has been
successful in our efforts to upgrade our merchandise selection to better serve our customers, while managing our everyday low price strategy.
We constantly review our pricing strategy and work diligently to minimize vendor cost increases. Merchandise cost increases subsided in 2009
after a challenging year in 2008. We are focused on sales of private brand consumables, which generally have higher gross profit rates than
national brands, while we continue to offer a wide variety of national brands to ensure an optimal mix of product offerings for our customers.
Inventory shrink declined again in 2009 as we further implemented exception-based shrink detection tools and improved employee training.
Higher sales volumes and lower average fuel costs, as well as our continued efforts to increase efficiencies, contributed to our ability to leverage
transportation and distribution costs in 2009.

Our third priority is leveraging process improvements and information technology to reduce costs. We are committed as an organization to
extract costs that do not affect the customer experience. Examples of cost reduction initiatives in 2009 include the reduction of workers'
compensation expense through a focus on safety, the improvement of energy management in the stores through forward purchase contracts as
well as the installation of energy management systems and increased preventive maintenance, and the reduction of waste management costs
through recycling of cardboard. In addition, our real estate team has had success in negotiating lease renewals which will benefit us in 2010 and
forward. We plan to further our efforts on these and other cost reduction initiatives in 2010. However, on March 23, 2010, the President signed
into law comprehensive healthcare reform legislation. This legislation is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial
statements in fiscal 2010, but its future impact on our financial statements remains uncertain. With regard to information technology, we are
focusing our resources on improving systems to create greater efficiencies in retail store operations and merchandising.

Our fourth priority is to strengthen and expand Dollar General's culture of serving others. For customers this means helping them "Save
time. Save money. Every day!" by providing clean, well-stocked stores with quality products at low prices. For employees, this means creating
an environment that attracts and retains key employees throughout the organization. For the public, this means giving back to our store
communities. For shareholders, this means meeting their expectations of an efficiently and profitably run organization that operates with
compassion and integrity.
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For the year ended January 29, 2010, our continued focus on these four priorities resulted in improved financial performance over the year
ended January 30, 2009 in each of our key financial metrics, as follows. Basis points, as referred to below, are equal to 0.01 percent of total
sales.

Total sales in fiscal 2009 increased 12.8 percent over 2008. Sales in same-stores increased 9.5 percent, following a strong
9.0 percent increase in 2008. Customer traffic and average transaction amount increased in both 2008 and 2009. Average
sales per square foot for all stores in 2009 were approximately $195, up from $180 in 2008. Sales increases of consumable
products, up 15.3 percent, continued to outpace our more discretionary categories, likely the result of both our
merchandising initiatives and the negative effect of the economy on consumer discretionary spending. However, we are

strongly encouraged by the 12.5 percent sales increase in our seasonal category.

Gross profit, as a percentage of sales, was 31.3 percent in 2009, an increase of 201 basis points, over 2008. A reduced LIFO
impact accounted for 44 basis points of this improvement. The remainder of the improvement was primarily attributable to
increased purchase markups, net of increased markdowns, resulting from significantly increased volume, which enabled us
to lower our average costs from vendors, and the impact of our comprehensive category management enhancements,
including the expansion of our private brands. In addition, lower average fuel costs, improved distribution efficiencies, and

continued inventory shrink reduction, as a percent of sales, contributed to our gross profit rate improvement in 2009.

SG&A, as a percentage of sales, for fiscal 2009 was 23.2 percent, or 21 basis points lower than in 2008. SG&A in 2009
includes incremental expenses of $68.3 million, or 58 basis points, resulting from costs related to our initial public offering.
Our increased sales levels favorably impacted the SG&A percentage, with the most significant impact on store occupancy
costs, including rent and utilities. We continued to significantly reduce our workers' compensation expense through safety
initiatives implemented over the last several years, and we further reduced our store energy usage. In addition, legal

expenses were lower in 2009, primarily as a result of legal costs related to a shareholder litigation settlement in 2008.

Interest expense decreased by $46.2 million in 2009 to $345.7 million, primarily as the result of lower average outstanding
long-term obligations and lower interest rates on our term loan. Net proceeds from our initial public offering and excess cash
were utilized in our fiscal 2009 fourth quarter to voluntarily reduce long-term obligations by $725.9 million. Other
non-operating expenses include charges totaling $55.3 million resulting from these repurchases. At the end of fiscal 2009,

our total outstanding long-term obligations were $3.40 billion compared to $4.14 billion at the end of fiscal 2008.

We reported net income of $339.4 million, or $1.04 per diluted share, for fiscal 2009. This compares to net income of
$108.2 million, or $0.34 per diluted share, in 2008. Charges resulting from the termination of our sponsor advisory
agreement, the acceleration of certain equity-based compensation and the repurchase of long-term obligations, related to or

resulting from our initial public offering, reduced 2009 net income by $82.9 million, or $0.26 per diluted share.

We generated approximately $668.6 million of cash flows from operating activities in 2009, an increase of 16.2 percent over
2008. In addition to utilizing our cash to support our capital expenditures and repurchase long-term obligations, we paid a

dividend to our shareholders of $239.3 million in September 2009.

During 2009, we opened 500 new stores, remodeled or relocated 450 stores, and closed 34 stores, resulting in a store count
of 8,828 on January 29, 2010. In addition, we made good progress during the year in our efforts to better utilize existing
square footage and to upgrade the appearance of our stores.
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In 2010, we plan to continue to focus on these four key operating priorities. We will continue to refine and improve our store standards in
order to increase sales, focusing on achieving a consistent look and feel across the chain. We have begun and will continue to measure customer
satisfaction which will allow us to identify areas needing improvement. We expect to continue the process of raising the height of our
merchandise fixtures, allowing us to better utilize our store square footage. As part of our overall category management processes, we plan to
further expand our private brand consumables offerings and to continue to upgrade the selection, quality and presentation of our private brand
offerings in our apparel, seasonal and home categories, and we expect a greater impact on gross margin from our foreign sourcing efforts in
2010.

We now have improved processes and tools in place to assist us in our ongoing inventory shrink reduction efforts, and we will continue to
increase our utilization of information supplied by these analytical and monitoring tools to improve on our recent successes.

With regard to leveraging information technology and process improvements to reduce costs, we will continue to focus on making
improvements that benefit our merchandising and operations efforts, including item profitability analysis, merchandise selection and allocation
and labor scheduling. In 2009, we completed the installation of back office computers in all of our stores, which we will utilize to improve
reporting and communications with the stores and, consequently, we believe will assist in improving store productivity. We also will complete
the rollout of a new voice pick system in our distribution centers, allowing our distribution associates to communicate with warehouse software
systems using speech recognition, which we expect to further improve our efficiencies in 2010.

Finally, we are very pleased with the performance of our 2009 new stores, remodels and relocations, and in 2010 we plan to increase our
new store openings to 600 stores within the 35 states in which we currently operate, and to increase our number of remodels or relocations to an
additional 500 stores. With regard to planned new store openings, our criteria are based on numerous factors including, among other things,
availability of appropriate sites, expected sales, lease terms, population demographics, competition, and the employment environment. We use
various real estate site selection tools to determine target markets and optimum site locations within those markets. With respect to store
relocations, we begin to evaluate a store for relocation opportunities approximately 18 months prior to the store's lease expiration using the same
basic tools and criteria as those used for new stores. Remodels, which require a much smaller investment, are determined based on the need, the
opportunity for sales improvement at the location and an expectation of a desirable return on investment.

Key Financial Metrics. We have identified the following as our most critical financial metrics for 2010:

Same-store sales growth;

Sales per square foot;

Gross profit, as a percentage of sales;

Operating profit;

Inventory turnover;

Cash flow;

Net income;

Earnings per share;

Earnings before interest, income taxes, depreciation and amortization; and

Return on invested capital.
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Readers should refer to the detailed discussion of our operating results below for additional comments on financial performance in the
current year periods as compared with the prior year periods.

Results of Operations

Accounting Periods. The following text contains references to years 2009, 2008, and 2007, which represent fiscal years ended January 29,
2010, January 30, 2009, and February 1, 2008, respectively. Our fiscal year ends on the Friday closest to January 31. Fiscal years 2009 and 2008
were 52-week accounting periods.

As discussed above, we completed a merger transaction on July 6, 2007, and therefore the 2007 presentation includes the 22-week
Predecessor period of Dollar General Corporation through July 6, 2007, reflecting the historical basis of accounting prior to our 2007 merger,
and a 30-week Successor period, reflecting the impact of the business combination and associated purchase price allocation of the merger of
Dollar General Corporation and Buck Acquisition Corp. ("BAC"), from July 7, 2007 to February 1, 2008. BAC was formed on March 6, 2007,
and its results of operations prior to our 2007 merger, which related solely to interest rate swaps entered into in anticipation of the merger, are
included in the 2007 Successor results of operations. Except for the discussion of net sales, which were not impacted by the 2007 merger,
transactions relating to or resulting from the 2007 merger are discussed separately.

Seasonality. The nature of our business is seasonal to a certain extent. Primarily because of sales of holiday-related merchandise, sales in
our fourth quarter (November, December and January) have historically been higher than sales achieved in each of the first three quarters of the
fiscal year. Expenses and, to a greater extent, operating profit vary by quarter. Results of a period shorter than a full year may not be indicative
of results expected for the entire year. Furthermore, the seasonal nature of our business may affect comparisons between periods.

32

39



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

The following table contains results of operations data for fiscal years 2009 and 2008 and the dollar and percentage variances among those
years, as well as the 2007 pro forma, Successor and Predecessor periods.

(amounts in millions,

except per share amounts)
Net sales by category:
Consumables

% of net sales

Seasonal

% of net sales

Home products

% of net sales

Apparel

% of net sales

Net sales
Cost of goods sold
% of net sales

Gross profit

% of net sales

Selling, general and
administrative expenses
% of net sales
Litigation settlement and
related costs, net

% of net sales
Transaction and related
costs

% of net sales

Operating profit

% of net sales

Interest income

% of net sales

Interest expense

% of net sales

Other (income) expense
% of net sales

Income (loss) before
income taxes

% of net sales
Income taxes

% of net sales

Net income (loss)
% of net sales

Diluted earnings per share

(@)

2009

$ 8,356.4
70.84%

1,711.5
14.51%

869.8
7.37%

858.8
7.28%

$ 11,796.4
8,106.5
68.72%

3,689.9
31.28%

2,736.6
23.20%

953.3
8.08%
(0.1)

(0.00)%

345.7
2.93%
55.5
0.47%

552.1
4.68%

212.7
1.80%

$ 3394
2.88%

$ 1.04

Successor
Amount
2008 Change

$ 72484 $ 1,108.0
69.31%

1,521.5 190.0
14.55%

862.2 7.5
8.24%

825.6 33.2
7.89%

$ 10,4577 $ 1,338.7

7,396.6 709.9
70.73%

3,061.1 628.8
29.27%

2,448.6 288.0
23.41%

32.0 (32.0)
0.31%

580.5 372.8
5.55%

3.1) 2.9
(0.03)%

391.9 (46.2)
3.75%

2.8) 58.3
(0.03)%

194.4 357.7
1.86%

86.2 126.5
0.82%

$ 1082 $ 231.3
1.03%

$ 034 $ 0.70

%

Change 2007(a)
15.3% $ 3,701.7
66.44%
12.5 908.3
16.30%
0.9 507.0
9.10%
4.0 454 .4
8.16%
12.8% $ 5,571.5
9.6 3,999.6
71.79%
20.5 1,571.9
28.21%
11.8 1,324.5
23.77%
1.2
0.02%
64.2 246.1
4.42%
(95.3) 3.8)
(0.07)%
(11.8) 2529
4.54%
3.6
0.07%
184.0 (6.6)
(0.12)%
146.7 (1.8)
(0.03)%
213.8% $ 4.8)
(0.09)%
205.9% $ (0.02)

Predecessor

2007(b)

$ 2,615.1
66.65%
604.9
15.42%
362.7

9.24%
341.0
8.69%

$ 39238
2,852.2
72.69%

1,071.6
27.31%

960.9
24.49%

101.4
2.58%

9.2
0.24%
(5.0)
(0.13)%
103
0.26%

4.0
0.10%
12.0
0.31%

$  (8.0)
(0.20)%

Pro Forma

$

$

$

2007

6,316.8
66.53%
1,513.2
15.94%
869.8
9.16%
795.4
8.38%

9,495.2
6,852.5
72.17%

2,642.8
27.83%

2,310.9
24.34%

1.2
0.01%

330.6
3.48%
(8.8)
(0.09)%

436.7
4.60%

3.6
0.04%

(100.9)
(1.06)%
(42.9)
(0.45)%

(57.9)
(0.61)%

Includes the results of operations of BAC for the period prior to its merger with and into Dollar General Corporation from March 6,
2007 (the date of BAC's formation) through July 6, 2007 (reflecting the change in fair value of interest rate swaps), and the
post-merger results of Dollar General Corporation for the period from July 7, 2007 through February 1, 2008.
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Includes the pre-merger results of Dollar General Corporation for the period from February 3, 2007 through July 6, 2007.
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The following discussion of our financial performance also includes supplemental unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial
information for 2007. Because the 2007 merger occurred during our 2007 second quarter, we believe this information aids in the comparison
between the years presented. The pro forma information does not purport to represent what our results of operations would have been had the
2007 merger and related transactions actually occurred at the beginning of the year indicated, and they do not purport to project our results of
operations or financial condition for any future period. See "Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information" below.

Net Sales. The net sales increase in 2009 reflects a same-store sales increase of 9.5% compared to 2008. Same-stores include stores that
have been open for 13 months and remain open at the end of the reporting period. For 2009, there were 8,324 same-stores which accounted for
sales of $11.36 billion. The remainder of the increase in sales in 2009 was attributable to new stores, partially offset by sales from closed stores.
The strong increase in sales reflects the results of our various initiatives implemented throughout 2008 and 2009, including the impact of
improved store standards, the expansion of our merchandise offerings, including significant enhancements to our convenience food and
beverages and health and beauty products, in addition to improved utilization of square footage, extended store hours and improved marketing
efforts. In 2009, we continued the transformation of our private brand products as further discussed above in the Executive Overview.

The net sales increase in 2008 reflects a same-store sales increase of 9.0% compared to 2007. For 2008, there were 8,153 same-stores which
accounted for sales of $10.12 billion. There were no purchase accounting or other adjustments to net sales as a result of our 2007 merger,
therefore, the 2007 net sales and other amounts presented related to 2007 net sales are calculated using the 2007 52-week fiscal year. The
remainder of the increase in sales in 2008 was attributable to new stores, partially offset by sales from closed stores. The increase in sales of
consumables reflects the various initiatives implemented in 2008, including the impact of improved store standards, the expansion of
convenience food and beverage offerings, improved utilization of square footage and extended store hours. The majority of our merchandising
efforts in 2008 related to the consumables category, including planogram resets and increased emphasis on private brand products.

Of our four major merchandise categories, the consumables category has grown most significantly over the past several years. Although
this category generally has a lower gross profit rate than the other three categories, as discussed below, we were able to increase our overall
gross profit rate in both 2009 and 2008. Because of the impact of sales mix on gross profit, we continually review our merchandise mix and
strive to adjust it when appropriate. Maintaining an appropriate sales mix is an integral part of achieving our gross profit and sales goals. Both
the number of customer transactions and average transaction amount increased in 2009 and 2008, and we believe that our stores have benefited
to some degree from attracting new customers who are seeking value as a result of the current economic environment.

Gross Profit. The gross profit rate as a percentage of sales was 31.3% in 2009 compared to 29.3% in 2008. Factors contributing to the
increase in the 2009 gross profit rate include increased markups resulting primarily from higher purchase markups, partially offset by increased
markdowns. In addition, our increased sales volumes have contributed to our ability to reduce purchase costs from our vendors. Transportation
and distribution costs decreased for the year driven by lower fuel costs as well as the impact of cost reduction initiatives. Higher sales volumes
and productivity initiatives also contributed to improved leverage of our distribution costs. In addition, inventory shrinkage as a percentage of
sales declined in 2009 from 2008, contributing to our gross profit rate improvement. Finally, in 2009, we recorded a LIFO benefit of
$2.5 million, reflecting a flattening of merchandise costs in 2009 further described below, compared to a LIFO provision of $43.9 million in
2008.
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The gross profit rate as a percentage of sales was 29.3% in 2008 compared to 28.2% in the 2007 Successor period, 27.3% in the 2007
Predecessor period, and 27.8% for pro forma 2007. Factors contributing to the increase in the 2008 gross profit rate include a lower inventory
shrink rate; lower promotional markdowns; improved leverage on distribution and transportation costs; and improved markups related to
changes resulting from the outcome of pricing analysis, our ability to react more quickly to product cost changes and diligent vendor
negotiations. In January 2009, we marked down merchandise as the result of a late 2008 change in the interpretation of the phthalates provision
of the Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act of 2008 resulting in a charge of $8.6 million. Also in 2008, we faced increased commodity
cost pressures mainly related to food and pet products which were driven by rising fruit and vegetable prices and freight costs. Increases in
petroleum, resin, metals, pulp and other raw material commodity driven costs also resulted in multiple product cost increases. Related to these
commodity cost increases, we recorded a LIFO expense of $43.9 million in 2008, compared to the LIFO provision recorded in the 2007
Successor period of $6.1 million.

Selling, General and Administrative ("SG&A") Expense. SG&A, as a percentage of sales, was 23.2% in 2009 compared to 23.4% in 2008,
representing an improvement of 21 basis points. SG&A in the 2009 period included expenses related to the completion of our initial public
offering totaling $68.3 million, or 58 basis points, including $58.8 million relating to the termination of an advisory agreement among us, KKR
and Goldman, Sachs & Co. and $9.4 million resulting from the acceleration of certain equity based compensation. Our increased sales levels
favorably impacted SG&A, as a percentage of sales, with the most significant impact on store occupancy costs, including rent and utilities. Our
cost of utilities, as a percentage of sales, was further reduced by energy savings resulting from our store energy management initiatives,
including forward purchase contracts, increased preventive maintenance and the installation of energy management systems in substantially all
of our new and relocated stores. In addition, we continued to significantly reduce our workers' compensation expense through safety initiatives
implemented over the last several years, and legal expenses were lower in 2009 than 2008, which included expenses incurred in connection with
a shareholder litigation settlement in 2008 relating to our 2007 merger.

SG&A expense as a percentage of sales decreased to 23.4% in 2008, compared to 23.8% and 24.5% in the 2007 Successor and Predecessor
periods, respectively. The more significant items resulting in the decrease in 2008 compared to the 2007 periods include: approximately
$9.0 million and $45.0 million in the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively (including $2.4 million and $4.1 million,
respectively, also included in advertising costs discussed below) related to the closing of stores and changes in our inventory strategy; a
$12.0 million loss in the 2007 Successor period compared to a $5.0 million gain in 2008 relating to potential losses on distribution center leases;
advertising costs of $27.8 million in 2008 compared to $23.6 million and $17.3 million in the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods,
respectively; and decreases in workers compensation and other insurance-related costs compared to the 2007 periods. These decreases were
partially offset by an increase in incentive compensation and related payroll taxes in 2008 compared to the 2007 periods due to improved overall
financial performance, increased amortization of leasehold intangibles capitalized in connection with the revaluation of assets at the date of our
2007 merger, and an increase in professional fees in 2008 compared to the 2007 periods primarily reflecting legal expenses related to
shareholder litigation.

SG&A decreased to 23.4% in 2008 compared to 24.3% in pro forma 2007. The more significant items resulting in the decrease from the
2007 pro forma results include: $54.0 million of costs in pro forma 2007 SG&A relating to the closing of stores and the implementation of new
inventory strategies; a $12.0 million loss in the 2007 pro forma period compared to a $5.0 million gain in 2008 relating to possible losses on
distribution center leases; and decreases in workers compensation and other insurance-related costs in 2008 of $10.4 million compared to the
2007 pro forma period. These decreases were partially offset by an increase in incentive compensation and related payroll taxes of
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$42.0 million in 2008 compared to pro forma 2007 due to improved overall financial performance and an increase in professional fees in 2008 of
$10.4 million compared to pro forma 2007 primarily reflecting legal expenses related to shareholder litigation.

Litigation Settlement and Related Costs, Net. The $32.0 million in 2008 represents the settlement of a class action lawsuit filed in
response to our 2007 merger, and includes the $40.0 million settlement plus related expenses of $2.0 million, net of $10.0 million of insurance
proceeds received in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Transaction and Related Costs. The $1.2 million and $101.4 million of expenses recorded in the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods
reflect $1.2 million and $62.0 million, respectively, of expenses related to our 2007 merger, such as investment banking and legal fees as well as
$39.4 million of compensation expense in the Predecessor period related to stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units which fully
vested immediately prior to and as a result of our 2007 merger.

Interest Income. Interest income consists primarily of interest on investments. The decrease in interest income in 2009 compared to 2008
was the result of reduced investments in interest-bearing instruments and lower interest rates. The decrease in interest income in 2008 compared
to the 2007 periods was a result of lower interest rates, partially offset by higher investments.

Interest Expense. The decrease in interest expense in 2009 compared to 2008 was primarily the result of lower average outstanding
long-term obligations and lower interest rates on our term loan.

The significant increase in interest expense in 2008 and the 2007 Successor period is due to interest on long-term obligations incurred to
finance our 2007 merger. We had outstanding variable-rate debt of $560 million and $623 million as of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009,
respectively, after taking into consideration the impact of interest rate swaps. The remainder of our outstanding indebtedness at January 29, 2010
and January 30, 2009 was fixed rate debt.

Interest expense in 2008 was less than 2007 pro forma interest expense due to lower borrowing amounts, specifically on our revolving
credit agreement and senior subordinated notes, along with lower interest rates.

See the detailed discussion under "Liquidity and Capital Resources" regarding indebtedness incurred to finance our 2007 merger along with
subsequent repurchases of various long-term obligations and the related effect on interest expense in the periods presented.

Other (Income) Expense. In 2009, we recorded charges totaling $55.5 million, which primarily represents losses on debt retirement
totaling $55.3 million, and also includes expense of $0.6 million related to hedge ineffectiveness on certain of our interest rate swaps.

In 2008, we recorded a gain of $3.8 million resulting from the repurchase of $44.1 million of our senior subordinated notes, offset by
expense of $1.0 million related to hedge ineffectiveness on certain of our interest rate swaps.

During the 2007 Successor period, we recorded an unrealized loss of $4.1 million related to the change in the fair value of interest swaps
prior to the designation of such swaps as cash flow hedges in October 2007, offset by earnings of $1.7 million under the contractual provisions
of the swap agreements. Also during the 2007 Successor period, we recorded $6.2 million of expenses related to consent fees and other costs
associated with a tender offer for certain notes payable maturing in June 2010 ("2010 Notes"). Approximately 99% of the 2010 Notes were
retired as a result of the tender offer. The costs related to the tender of the 2010 Notes were partially offset by a $4.9 million gain in the 2007
Successor period resulting from the repurchase of $25.0 million of our senior subordinated notes.
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Income Taxes. The effective income tax rates for 2009, 2008, and the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods were an expense of
38.5%, an expense of 44.4%, a benefit of 26.9% and an expense of 300.2%, respectively.

The 2009 income tax rate is greater than the expected U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% due primarily to the inclusion of state income taxes in
the total effective tax rate. The 2009 effective tax rate is less than the 2008 rate due principally to the unfavorable impact that the non-deductible,
merger-related lawsuit settlement had on the 2008 rate. This reduction in the effective tax rate was partially offset by a decrease in the tax rate
benefit related to federal jobs credits. While the total amount of jobs credits earned in 2009 was similar to the amount earned in 2008, the impact
of this benefit on the effective tax rate was reduced due to the 2009 increase in income before income taxes.

The 2008 income tax rate was greater than the expected U.S. statutory tax rate of 35% principally due to the non-deductibility of the
settlement and related expenses associated with the shareholder lawsuit related to our 2007 merger.

The income tax rate for the Successor period ended February 1, 2008 is a benefit of 26.9%. This benefit is less than the expected U.S.
statutory rate of 35% due to the incurrence of state income taxes in several of the group's subsidiaries that file their state income tax returns on a
separate entity basis and the election to include, effective February 3, 2007, income tax related interest and penalties in the amount reported as
income tax expense.

The income tax rate for the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 is an expense of 300.2%. This expense is higher than the expected U.S.
statutory rate of 35% due principally to the non-deductibility of certain acquisition related expenses.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We lease three of our distribution centers. The entities involved in the ownership structure underlying these leases meet the accounting
definition of a Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). One of these distribution centers has been recorded as a financing obligation whereby its
property and equipment are reflected in our consolidated balance sheets. The land and buildings of the other two distribution centers have been
recorded as operating leases. We are not the primary beneficiary of these VIEs and, accordingly, have not included these entities in our
consolidated financial statements. Other than the foregoing, we are not party to any off balance sheet arrangements.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

The following supplemental unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations data has been developed by applying pro
forma adjustments to our historical consolidated statement of operations. We were acquired on July 6, 2007 through a merger accounted for as a
reverse acquisition. Although we continued as the same legal entity after the merger, the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed
consolidated financial information is presented for the Predecessor and Successor relating to the periods preceding and succeeding the merger,
respectively. As a result of the merger, we applied purchase accounting standards and a new basis of accounting effective July 7, 2007. The
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations for the year ended February 1, 2008 gives effect to the merger as if it had
occurred on February 3, 2007. Assumptions underlying the pro forma adjustments are described in the accompanying notes, which should be
read in conjunction with this unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statement.

The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based upon available information and certain assumptions that we believe are reasonable under
the circumstances. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information is presented for supplemental informational purposes

only, although we believe this information is useful in providing comparisons between years. The
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unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information does not purport to represent what our results of operations would have been
had the 2007 merger and related transactions actually occurred on the date indicated, and they do not purport to project our results of operations
or financial condition for any future period. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations should be read in
conjunction with the information contained in other sections of this report including "Selected Financial Data", our consolidated financial
statements and related notes thereto, and other sections of this Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations. All pro forma adjustments and their underlying assumptions are described more fully in the notes to our unaudited pro forma
condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Fiscal Year Ended February 1, 2008

(In thousands) Successor Predecessor Adjustments Pro Forma
Net sales $ 5571493 $ 3,923,753 $ $ 9,495,246
Cost of goods sold 3,999,599 2,852,178 695(a) 6,852,472
Gross profit 1,571,894 1,071,575 (695) 2,642,774
Selling, general and administrative 1,324,508 960,930 25,461(b) 2,310,899
Transaction and related costs 1,242 101,397 (101,397)(c) 1,242
Operating profit 246,144 9,248 75,241 330,633
Interest income (3,799) (5,046) (8,845)
Interest expense 252,897 10,299 173,502(d) 436,698
Other (income) expense 3,639 3,639
Income (loss) before income taxes (6,593) 3,995 (98,261) (100,859)
Income tax expense (benefit) (1,775) 11,993 (53,138)(e) (42,920)
Net loss $ 4,818) $ (7,998) $ (45,123) $ (57,939)

See notes to unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statement of operations.
Notes to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations

(@)
Represents the estimated impact on cost of goods sold of the adjustment to fair value of the property and equipment at our distribution
centers.

(b)
Primarily represents depreciation and amortization of the fair value adjustments related to tangible and intangible long-lived assets.
Identifiable intangible assets with a determinable life have been amortized on a straight-line basis in the unaudited pro forma
consolidated statement of operations over a period ranging from 2 to 17.5 years. The primary fair value adjustments (on which the pro
forma adjustments are based) impacting SG&A expenses were to leasehold interests ($185 million), property and equipment
($101 million) and internally developed software ($12 million). This adjustment also includes management fees that were payable
under a sponsor advisory agreement subsequent to the closing of our 2007 merger and related transactions (at an initial annual rate of
$5.0 million which was increased by 5% for each succeeding year until the termination of the agreement in connection with our initial
public offering in November 2009).

©
Represents $101.4 million of charges that are non-recurring in nature and directly attributable to our 2007 merger and related
transactions. Such charges are comprised of $39.4 million of stock compensation expense from the acceleration of unvested stock
options, restricted stock and restricted stock units as required as a result of the 2007 merger and $62.0 million of transaction costs we
incurred that were expensed as one-time charges upon the close of the merger. Such adjustments do not include any adjustments to
reflect the effects of our new stock based compensation plan.
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Reflects pro forma interest expense resulting from our post-merger capital structure as follows:

Predecessor
Period Ended

(amounts in millions) July 6, 2007
Revolving credit facility(1) $ 8.9
Term loan facilities(2) 74.1

Notes(3)

87.9

Letter of credit fees(4) 0.7
Bank commitment fees(5) 1.0
Other existing debt obligations(6) 3.0

Total cash interest expense 175.6
Amortization of capitalized debt issuance costs and debt discount(7) 4.1
Amortization of discounted liabilities(8) 3.5

Other(9)

0.6

Total pro forma interest expense 183.8
Less historical interest expense (10.3)

Net adjustment to interest expense $ 173.5

€]

@

3

“

&)

(©)

O]

®

The $1.125 billion revolving credit facility carries an interest rate of 3-month LIBOR of 5.32% plus 1.50% for tranche A loans and
3-month LIBOR of 5.32% plus 2.25% for tranche A-1 loans. Reflects assumed borrowings of $175.0 million under tranche A and
$125.0 million under tranche A-1. Such levels of borrowings will fluctuate in future periods dependent upon short term cash needs.
Changes in the levels of borrowings would impact interest expense.

Reflects interest on the $2.3 billion term loan facility at a rate of LIBOR plus 2.75%. To hedge against interest rate risk, we have
entered into a swap agreement with respect to a $2.0 billion notional amount for 4.93%. This swap agreement became effective as a
result of the acquisition on July 31, 2007 and will amortize on a quarterly basis until maturity at July 31, 2012. The unhedged portion
of the facility is reflected at an interest rate of LIBOR of 5.32% plus 2.75%.

Reflects interest on the 10.625% senior notes and 11.875%/12.625% senior subordinated notes. Assumes the cash interest payment
option at a rate of 11.875% has been elected with respect to all of the senior subordinated notes.

Represents fees on balances of trade letters of credit of $141.2 million at 0.75% and standby letters of credit of $40.7 million at 1.50%.

Represents commitment fees of 0.375% on the $612.1 million unutilized balance of the revolving credit facility at July 6, 2007.
Outstanding letters of credit noted in (4) above reduce the availability under the revolving credit facility.

Represents historical interest expense on other existing indebtedness.

Represents debt issuance costs associated with the new bank facilities amortized using the effective interest method over 6 years for
the revolving facility, 7 years for the term loan facility, 8 years for the senior notes, 10 years for the senior subordinated notes and
8 years for other capitalized debt issuance costs. Also includes the amortization of debt discount of the senior notes.

Represents interest expense on long-term liabilities which were discounted as a result of our 2007 merger.

39

47



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

48



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A
©)

Represents an adjustment to historical interest expense to reflect the effect of the adoption of current accounting standards for income
taxes, offset by capitalized interest expense.

©)
Represents the tax effect of the pro forma adjustments, calculated at an effective rate of 54.1% for the Predecessor period ended July 6,
2007. The effective tax rate, a benefit, applied to the pro forma changes for the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007, reflects the pro
forma elimination of non-deductible transaction costs from income before taxes.

Effects of Inflation

In 2008, increased commodity cost pressures mainly related to food and pet products, which were driven by fruit and vegetable prices and
rising freight costs, increased the costs of certain products. Increases in petroleum, resin, metals, pulp and other raw material commodity driven
costs also resulted in multiple product cost increases. We believe that our ability to increase selling prices in response to cost increases largely
mitigated the effect of these cost increases on our overall results of operations. These 2008 trends generally reversed or stabilized in 2009. We
believe that inflation and/or deflation had a minimal impact on our overall operations during 2007.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Current Financial Condition and Recent Developments

During the past three years, we have generated an aggregate of approximately $1.69 billion in cash flows from operating activities. During
that period, we expanded the number of stores we operate by 599, or over 7%, remodeled or relocated 1,154 stores, or approximately 13% of our
currently operated stores, and incurred approximately $596 million in capital expenditures. We made certain strategic decisions which slowed
our store growth in 2007 and 2008, but we accelerated store growth in 2009 and currently plan to continue that strategy in 2010 and beyond.

On September 8, 2009, our Board of Directors declared a special dividend on our outstanding common stock of approximately
$239.3 million in the aggregate. The special dividend was paid on September 11, 2009 to shareholders of record on September 8, 2009 with cash
generated from operations. Prior to our 2007 merger, we declared a quarterly cash dividend in the amount of $0.05 per share payable on or
before April 19, 2007 to common shareholders of record on April 5, 2007. We have not declared or paid recurring dividends since that date. We
have no current plans to pay any cash dividends on our common stock and instead may retain earnings, if any, for future operation and
expansion and debt repayment. Any decision to declare and pay dividends in the future will be made at the discretion of our Board of Directors
and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, cash requirements, financial condition, contractual restrictions and other
factors that our Board of Directors may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is limited by covenants in our Credit Facilities
and in the indentures governing the Notes as discussed in more detail below.

On November 18, 2009, we completed the initial public offering of our common stock. We issued 22,700,000 shares in the offering and an
existing shareholder sold an additional 16,515,000 outstanding shares. Net proceeds from the offering of $446.0 million were used to redeem
$195.7 million principal amount of outstanding Senior Notes and $205.2 million principal amount of outstanding Senior Subordinated Notes. In
connection with the consummation of the offering, we paid a transaction fee of approximately $4.8 million to KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
Although the transaction fee was not paid from the net proceeds of the offering, this amount was directly related to the offering and was
accounted for as a cost of raising equity. In addition, we terminated our advisory agreement with such parties, resulting in the payment of a fee
of approximately $58.8 million, which was expensed. We also incurred other pre-tax charges as a result of the offering and related transactions
in the fourth quarter of 2009, as discussed above under "Results of Operations."
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In January 2010, we voluntarily prepaid $325.0 million principal amount of our senior secured term loan facility ("Term Loan Facility")
with cash generated from operations.

At January 29, 2010, we had total outstanding debt (including the current portion of long-term obligations) of $3.40 billion. We also had an
additional $930.6 million available for borrowing under our senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility ("ABL Facility" and, together
with the Term Loan Facility, the "Credit Facilities") at that date. Our liquidity needs are significant, primarily due to our debt service and other
obligations. Our substantial debt could adversely affect our ability to raise additional capital to fund our operations, limit our ability to react to
changes in the economy or our industry, expose us to interest rate risk to the extent of our variable rate debt and prevent us from meeting our
obligations under our outstanding debt securities.

Management believes our cash flow from operations and existing cash balances, combined with availability under the Credit Facilities
(described below), will provide sufficient liquidity to fund our current obligations, projected working capital requirements and capital spending
for a period that includes the next twelve months and the next several years.

Credit Facilities

Overview. We have two senior secured credit facilities which provide financing of up to $2.995 billion as of January 29, 2010. The Credit
Facilities consist of the $1.964 billion Term Loan Facility and the $1.031 billion ABL Facility (of which up to $350.0 million is available for
letters of credit), subject to borrowing base availability. The ABL Facility includes borrowing capacity available for letters of credit and for
short-term borrowings referred to as swingline loans.

The amount available under the ABL Facility (including letters of credit) shall not exceed the sum of the tranche A borrowing base and the
tranche A-1 borrowing base. The tranche A borrowing base equals the sum of (i) 85% of the net orderly liquidation value of all our eligible
inventory and that of each guarantor thereunder and (ii) 90% of all our accounts receivable and credit/debit card receivables and that of each
guarantor thereunder, in each case, subject to a reserve equal to the principal amount of the 2010 Notes that remain outstanding at any time and
other customary reserves and eligibility criteria. An additional 10% of the net orderly liquidation value of all of our eligible inventory and that of
each guarantor thereunder is made available to us in the form of a "last out" tranche under which we may borrow up to a maximum amount of
$101.0 million. Borrowings under the ABL Facility will be incurred first under the last out tranche, and no borrowings will be permitted under
any other tranche until the last out tranche is fully utilized. Repayments of the ABL Facility will be applied to the last out tranche only after all
other tranches have been fully paid down.

Interest Rates and Fees. Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at our option,
either (a) LIBOR or (b) a base rate (which is usually equal to the prime rate). The applicable margin for borrowings is (i) under the Term Loan
Facility, 2.75% for LIBOR borrowings and 1.75% for base-rate borrowings (ii) under the ABL Facility (except in the last out tranche described
above) as of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, 1.25% for LIBOR borrowings; 0.25% for base-rate borrowings and for any last out
borrowings, 2.25% for LIBOR borrowings and 1.25% for base-rate borrowings. The applicable margins for borrowings under the ABL Facility
(except in the case of last out borrowings) are subject to adjustment each quarter based on average daily excess availability under the ABL
Facility. We are also required to pay a commitment fee to the lenders under the ABL Facility for any unutilized commitments at a rate of
0.375% per annum. We also must pay customary letter of credit fees. See Item 7A. "Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market
Risk" below for a discussion of our use of interest rate swaps to manage our interest rate risk.
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Prepayments. The senior secured credit agreement for the Term Loan Facility requires us to prepay outstanding term loans, subject to
certain exceptions, with:

50% of our annual excess cash flow (as defined in the credit agreement) which will be reduced to 25% and 0% if we achieve
and maintain a total net leverage ratio of 6.0 to 1.0 and 5.0 to 1.0, respectively;

100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-ordinary course asset sales or other dispositions of property in excess of
$25.0 million in the aggregate and subject to our right to reinvest the proceeds; and

100% of the net cash proceeds of any incurrence of debt, other than proceeds from debt permitted under the senior secured
credit agreement.

The mandatory prepayments discussed above will be applied to the Term Loan Facility as directed by the senior secured credit agreement.
Through January 29, 2010, no prepayments have been required under the prepayment provisions listed above. The Term Loan Facility can be
prepaid in whole or in part at any time.

In addition, the senior secured credit agreement for the ABL Facility requires us to prepay the ABL Facility, subject to certain exceptions,
as follows:

With 100% of the net cash proceeds of all non-ordinary course asset sales or other dispositions of revolving facility
collateral (as defined below) in excess of $1.0 million in the aggregate and subject to our right to reinvest the proceeds; and

To the extent such extensions of credit exceed the then current borrowing base (as defined in the senior secured credit
agreement for the ABL Facility).

The mandatory prepayments discussed above will be applied to the ABL Facility as directed by the senior secured credit agreement for the
ABL Facility. Through January 29, 2010, no prepayments have been required under the prepayment provisions listed above.

An event of default under the senior secured credit agreements will occur upon a change of control as defined in the senior secured credit
agreements governing our Credit Facilities. Upon an event of default, indebtedness under the Credit Facilities may be accelerated, in which case
we will be required to repay all outstanding loans plus accrued and unpaid interest and all other amounts outstanding under the Credit Facilities.

Amortization. Beginning September 30, 2009, we were required to repay installments on the loans under the Term Loan Facility in equal
quarterly principal amounts in an aggregate amount per annum equal to 1% of the original principal amount. During 2009, we paid two such
quarterly installments totaling $11.5 million. Due to the $325.0 million voluntary prepayment of the Term Loan Facility discussed above, no
further quarterly principal installments will be required prior to maturity of the Term Loan on July 6, 2014. There is no amortization under the
ABL Facility. The entire principal amounts (if any) outstanding under the ABL Facility are due and payable in full at maturity, on July 6, 2013,
on which day the commitments thereunder will terminate.

Guarantee and Security. All obligations under the Credit Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed by substantially all of our existing and
future domestic subsidiaries (excluding certain immaterial subsidiaries and certain subsidiaries designated by us under our senior secured credit
agreements as "unrestricted subsidiaries"), referred to, collectively, as U.S. Guarantors.
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All obligations and related guarantees under the Term Loan Facility are secured by:

a second-priority security interest in all existing and after-acquired inventory, accounts receivable, and other assets arising
from such inventory and accounts receivable, of our company and each U.S. Guarantor (the "Revolving Facility Collateral"),

subject to certain exceptions;

a first-priority security interest in, and mortgages on, substantially all of our and each U.S. Guarantor's tangible and
intangible assets (other than the Revolving Facility Collateral); and

a first-priority pledge of 100% of the capital stock held by us, or any of our domestic subsidiaries that are directly owned by
us or one of the U.S. Guarantors and 65% of the voting capital stock of each of our existing and future foreign subsidiaries
that are directly owned by us or one of the U.S. Guarantors.

All obligations and related guarantees under the ABL Facility are secured by the Revolving Facility Collateral, subject to certain
exceptions.

Certain Covenants and Events of Default. The senior secured credit agreements contain a number of covenants that, among other things,

restrict, subject to certain exceptions, our ability to:

incur additional indebtedness;

sell assets;

pay dividends and distributions or repurchase our capital stock;

make investments or acquisitions;

repay or repurchase subordinated indebtedness (including the Senior Subordinated Notes discussed below) and the Senior
Notes discussed below;

amend material agreements governing our subordinated indebtedness (including the Senior Subordinated Notes discussed
below) or our Senior Notes discussed below;

change our lines of business.

The senior secured credit agreements also contain certain customary affirmative covenants and events of default.

At January 29, 2010, we had no borrowings, $85.1 million of standby letters of credit, and $15.4 million of commercial letters of credit,
outstanding under our ABL Facility.

Senior Notes due 2015 and Senior Subordinated Toggle Notes due 2017

Overview. As of January 29, 2010, we have $979.3 million aggregate principal amount of 10.625% senior notes due 2015 (the "Senior
Notes") outstanding (reflected in our consolidated balance sheet net of a $14.8 million discount), which mature on July 15, 2015, pursuant to an
indenture dated as of July 6, 2007 (the "senior indenture"), and $450.7 million aggregate principal amount of 11.875%/12.625% senior
subordinated toggle notes due 2017 (the "Senior Subordinated Notes") outstanding, which mature on July 15, 2017, pursuant to an indenture
dated as of July 6, 2007 (the "senior subordinated indenture"). The Senior Notes and the Senior Subordinated Notes are collectively referred to
herein as the "Notes." The senior indenture and the senior subordinated indenture are collectively referred to herein as the "indentures."
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Interest on the Notes is payable on January 15 and July 15 of each year. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable in cash. Cash interest on the
Senior Subordinated Notes accrues at a rate of 11.875% per annum, and PIK interest (as that term is defined below) accrues at a rate of 12.625%
per annum, if applicable. The initial interest payment on the Senior Subordinated Notes was payable in cash. For any interest period thereafter
through July 15, 2011, we may elect to pay interest on the Senior
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Subordinated Notes (i) in cash, (ii) by increasing the principal amount of the Senior Subordinated Notes or issuing new Senior Subordinated
Notes ("PIK interest") or (iii) by paying interest on half of the principal amount of the Senior Subordinated Notes in cash interest and half in PIK
interest. After July 15, 2011, all interest on the Senior Subordinated Notes will be payable in cash. Through January 29, 2010, all interest on the
Notes has been paid in cash.

The Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the existing and future direct or indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries
that guarantee the obligations under our Credit Facilities.

We may redeem some or all of the Notes at any time at redemption prices described or set forth in the indentures. We also may seek, from
time to time, to retire some or all of the Notes through cash purchases on the open market, in privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such
repurchases, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. The
amounts involved may be material. In addition to the amounts repurchased in connection with our initial public offering discussed above, we
repurchased $44.1 million and $25.0 million of the Senior Subordinated Notes in the fourth quarters of 2008 and 2007, respectively.

Change of Control. Upon the occurrence of a change of control, which is defined in the indentures, each holder of the Notes has the right
to require us to repurchase some or all of such holder's Notes at a purchase price in cash equal to 101% of the principal amount thereof, plus
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the repurchase date.

Covenants. The indentures contain covenants limiting, among other things, our ability and the ability of our restricted subsidiaries to
(subject to certain exceptions):

incur additional debt, issue disqualified stock or issue certain preferred stock;

pay dividends on or make certain distributions and other restricted payments;

create certain liens or encumbrances;

sell assets;

enter into transactions with affiliates;

make payments to us;

consolidate, merge, sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of our assets;

designate our subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries.

Events of Default. The indentures also provide for events of default which, if any of them occurs, would permit or require the principal of
and accrued interest on the Notes to become or to be declared due and payable.

Adjusted EBITDA

Under the agreements governing the Credit Facilities and the indentures, certain limitations and restrictions could arise if we are not able to
satisfy and remain in compliance with specified financial ratios. Management believes the most significant of such ratios is the senior secured
incurrence test under the Credit Facilities. This test measures the ratio of the senior secured debt to Adjusted EBITDA. This ratio would need to
be no greater than 4.25 to 1 to avoid such limitations and restrictions. As of January 29, 2010, this ratio was 1.4 to 1. Senior secured debt is
defined as our total debt secured by liens or similar encumbrances less cash and cash equivalents. EBITDA is defined as income (loss) from
continuing operations before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle plus interest and other financing costs, net, provision for
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income taxes, and depreciation and amortization. Adjusted EBITDA is defined as EBITDA, further adjusted to give effect to adjustments
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required in calculating this covenant ratio under our Credit Facilities. EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not presentations made in accordance
with U.S. GAAP, are not measures of financial performance or condition, liquidity or profitability, and should not be considered as an
alternative to (i) net income, operating income or any other performance measures determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP or (ii) operating
cash flows determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Additionally, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are not intended to be measures of free
cash flow for management's discretionary use, as they do not consider certain cash requirements such as interest payments, tax payments and
debt service requirements and replacements of fixed assets.

Our presentation of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and should not be considered in isolation or as a
substitute for analysis of our results as reported under U.S. GAAP. Because not all companies use identical calculations, these presentations of
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures of other companies. We believe that the presentation
of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA is appropriate to provide additional information about the calculation of this financial ratio in the Credit
Facilities. Adjusted EBITDA is a material component of this ratio. Specifically, non-compliance with the senior secured indebtedness ratio
contained in our Credit Facilities could prohibit us from making investments, incurring liens, making certain restricted payments and incurring
additional secured indebtedness (other than the additional funding provided for under the senior secured credit agreement and pursuant to
specified exceptions).

The calculation of Adjusted EBITDA under the Credit Facilities is as follows:

Year Ended
January 29, January 30,
(in millions) 2010 2009
Net income $ 3394 $ 108.2
Add (subtract):
Interest income 0.1) 3.1)
Interest expense 345.6 391.9
Depreciation and amortization 241.7 235.1
Income taxes 212.7 86.2
EBITDA 1,139.3 818.3
Adjustments:
(Gain) loss on debt retirements 55.3 3.8)
Loss on hedging instruments 0.5 1.1
Contingent gain on distribution center leases (5.0)
Impact of markdowns related to inventory clearance activities, net of purchase accounting adjustments (7.3) (24.9)
Hurricane-related expenses and write-offs 2.2
Advisory and consulting fees to affiliates 63.5 8.6
Non-cash expense for share-based awards 18.7 10.0
Indirect merger-related costs 10.6 20.7
Litigation settlement and related costs, net 32.0
Other non-cash charges (including LIFO) 6.6 54.7
Total Adjustments 147.9 95.6
Adjusted EBITDA $ 1,287.2  $ 913.9
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Interest Rate Swaps

We use interest rate swaps to minimize the risk of adverse changes in interest rates. These swaps are intended to reduce risk by hedging an
underlying economic exposure. Because of high correlation between the derivative financial instrument and the underlying exposure being
hedged, fluctuations in the value of the financial instruments are generally offset by reciprocal changes in the value of the underlying economic
exposure. Our principal interest rate exposure relates to outstanding amounts under our Credit Facilities. At January 29, 2010, we had interest
rate swaps with a total notional amount of approximately $1.42 billion. For more information see Item 7A "Quantitative and Qualitative
Disclosures about Market Risk" below.

Fair Value Accounting

We have classified our interest rate swaps, as further discussed in Item 7A. below, in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the significant
inputs to the overall valuations are based on market-observable data or information derived from or corroborated by market-observable data,
including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market-clearing transactions, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency. Where models are used, the selection of a particular model to value a derivative depends
upon the contractual terms of, and specific risks inherent in, the instrument as well as the availability of pricing information in the market. We
use similar models to value similar instruments. Valuation models require a variety of inputs, including contractual terms, market prices, yield
curves, credit curves, measures of volatility, and correlations of such inputs. For our derivatives, all of which trade in liquid markets, model
inputs can generally be verified and model selection does not involve significant management judgment.

We incorporate credit valuation adjustments to appropriately reflect both our own nonperformance risk and the respective counterparty's
nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements of our derivatives. The credit valuation adjustments are calculated by determining the total
expected exposure of the derivatives (which incorporates both the current and potential future exposure) and then applying each counterparty's
credit spread to the applicable exposure. For derivatives with two-way exposure, such as interest rate swaps, the counterparty's credit spread is
applied to our exposure to the counterparty, and our own credit spread is applied to the counterparty's exposure to us, and the net credit valuation
adjustment is reflected in our derivative valuations. The total expected exposure of a derivative is derived using market-observable inputs, such
as yield curves and volatilities. The inputs utilized for our own credit spread are based on implied spreads from our publicly-traded debt. For
counterparties with publicly available credit information, the credit spreads over LIBOR used in the calculations represent implied credit default
swap spreads obtained from a third party credit data provider. In adjusting the fair value of our derivative contracts for the effect of
nonperformance risk, we have considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements, such as collateral postings, thresholds,
mutual puts, and guarantees. Additionally, we actively monitor counterparty credit ratings for any significant changes.

As of January 29, 2010, the net credit valuation adjustments reduced the settlement values of our derivative liabilities by $2.0 million.
Various factors impact changes in the credit valuation adjustments over time, including changes in the credit spreads of the parties to the
contracts, as well as changes in market rates and volatilities, which affect the total expected exposure of the derivative instruments. When
appropriate, valuations are also adjusted for various factors such as liquidity and bid/offer spreads, which factors we deemed to be immaterial as
of January 29, 2010.
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Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations and commercial commitments as of January 29, 2010 (in

thousands):
Payments Due by Period
Contractual
obligations Total <1year 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years
Long-term debt
obligations $ 3,409,748 $ 1,723 $ $ 1,963,500 $ 1,444,525
Capital lease
obligations 8,327 1,849 1,979 607 3,892
Interest(a) 1,456,713 267,778 535,265 471,232 182,438
Self-insurance
liabilities(b) 213,710 68,245 93,051 31,048 21,366
Operating leases(c) 2,325,037 423,813 733,842 509,685 657,697
Subtotal $ 7,413,535 $ 763,408 $ 1,364,137 $ 2,976,072 $ 2,309,918
Commitments Expiring by Period
Commercial
commitments(d) Total <1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years > 5 years
Letters of credit $ 15,351 $ 15,351 $ $ $
Purchase obligations(e) 717,359 716,885 474
Subtotal $ 732,710 $ 732,236 $ 474 $ $
Total contractual
obligations and
commercial commitments $ 8,146,245 $ 1,495,644 $ 1,364,611 $ 2,976,072 $ 2,309,918
(a)

(b)

©

(d)

G

Represents obligations for interest payments on long-term debt and capital lease obligations, and includes projected interest on
variable rate long-term debt, based upon 2009 year end rates.

We retain a significant portion of the risk for our workers' compensation, employee health insurance, general liability, property loss
and automobile insurance. As these obligations do not have scheduled maturities, these amounts represent undiscounted estimates
based upon actuarial assumptions. Reserves for workers' compensation and general liability which existed as of the date of our 2007
merger were discounted in order to arrive at estimated fair value. All other amounts are reflected on an undiscounted basis in our
consolidated balance sheets.

Operating lease obligations are inclusive of amounts included in deferred rent and closed store obligations in our consolidated balance
sheets.

Commercial commitments include information technology license and support agreements, supplies, fixtures, letters of credit for
import merchandise, and other inventory purchase obligations.

Purchase obligations include legally binding agreements for software licenses and support, supplies, fixtures, and merchandise
purchases excluding such purchases subject to letters of credit.

Other Considerations
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Our inventory balance represented approximately 47% of our total assets exclusive of goodwill and other intangible assets as of January 29,
2010. Our proficiency in managing our inventory balances can have a significant impact on our cash flows from operations during a given fiscal
year. As a result, efficient inventory management has been and continues to be an area of focus for us.

At January 29, 2010, our South Carolina-based wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary, Ashley River Insurance Company ("ARIC"),
held money market investments equaling $20.0 million which were reflected in our consolidated balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents.
These investments were
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held pursuant to South Carolina regulatory requirements to maintain certain asset balances which could limit our ability to use these assets for
general corporate purposes.

As described in Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, we are involved in a number of legal actions and claims, some of which
could potentially result in material cash payments. Adverse developments in those actions could materially and adversely affect our liquidity. As
discussed in Note 6 we also have certain income tax-related contingencies. Future negative developments could have a material adverse effect
on our liquidity.

On December 10, 2009, Standard & Poor's upgraded our long-term debt rating to BB- from B+ with a stable outlook and on December 17,
2009, Moody's upgraded our long-term debt rating to B1 from B2 with a stable outlook. These current ratings are considered non-investment
grade. Our current credit ratings, as well as future rating agency actions, could (1) impact our ability to obtain financings to finance our
operations on satisfactory terms; (2) affect our financing costs; and (3) affect our insurance premiums and collateral requirements necessary for
our self-insured programs.

Cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities. A significant component of our increase in cash flows from operating activities in 2009 compared to
2008 was the increase in net income due to greater sales, higher gross margins and lower SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales, as described
in more detail above under "Results of Operations." In addition, we experienced increased inventory turns in 2009 as compared to 2008.
Changes in inventory balances increased by 7% in 2009 compared to an increase of 10% in 2008. Inventory levels in the consumables category
increased by $111.4 million, or 15%, in 2009 compared to an increase of $77.8 million, or 12%, in 2008. The seasonal category increased by
$25.3 million, or 9%, in 2009 compared to an increase of $20.9 million, or 8%, in 2008. The home products category declined $9.1 million, or
6%, in 2009 compared to a decline of $2.6 million, or 2%, in 2008. The apparel category declined by $22.9 million, or 10%, in 2009 compared
to an increase of $30.2 million, or 15%, in 2008. In addition, increased net income in 2009 compared to 2008 was a principal factor in the
increase in income taxes paid in 2009 compared to 2008. Changes in Accrued expenses and other were affected in part by the timing of the
payments related to the Litigation settlement and related costs discussed above under "Results of Operations," as the insurance proceeds of
$10.0 million were received at the end of 2008 while the payment of the $40.0 million settlement occurred at the beginning of 2009.

A significant component of the change in cash flows from operating activities in 2008 compared to the 2007 periods was our strong
operating performance due to greater sales, higher gross margins and lower SG&A expenses as a percentage of sales, partially offset by
significantly higher interest expense, as described in more detail above under "Results of Operations." In addition, we experienced increased
inventory turns and improved merchandise payment terms in 2008 as compared to the 2007 periods. Accounts payable balances increased by
$140.4 million in 2008 compared to a decline of $41.4 million in the 2007 Successor period and an increase of $34.8 million in the 2007
Predecessor period partially as a result of our implementation of initiatives to aggressively manage our payables. Also positively affecting cash
flows from operations were increases in accrued expenses and other in 2008, which was primarily attributable to increases in litigation reserves,
incentive bonus accruals, deferred vendor rebates, and property and sales tax accruals. Other significant components of the change in cash flows
from operating activities in 2008 as compared to 2007 were changes in inventory balances, which increased by 10% in 2008 compared to
decreases of approximately 6% and 1% during the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively. Inventory levels in the consumables
category increased by $77.8 million, or 12%, in 2008 compared to a decline of $90.7 million, or 12%, in the 2007 Successor period and an
increase of $48.8 million, or 7%, in the 2007 Predecessor period. The seasonal category increased by $20.9 million, or 8%, in 2008 compared to
a decline of $24.2 million, or 8%, in the 2007 Successor period and a decline of $38.7 million, or 11%, in the 2007 Predecessor period. The
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home products category declined by $2.6 million, or 2%, in 2008 compared to an increase of $25.4 million, or 19%, in the 2007 Successor
period and a decline of $15.0 million, or 10%, in the 2007 Predecessor period. The apparel category increased by $30.2 million, or 15%, in 2008
compared to an increase of $10.0 million, or 5%, in the 2007 Successor period and a decline of $11.5 million, or 5%, in the 2007 Predecessor
period. In addition, net income in 2008 compared to the net losses in the 2007 periods discussed above was a principal factor in the increase in
income taxes paid in 2008. Income tax refunds received in 2007 for taxes paid in prior years that did not reoccur in 2008 also contributed to the
increase in income taxes paid during 2008.

Cash flows from investing activities. Cash flows used in investing activities totaling $248.0 million in 2009 were primarily related to
capital expenditures. Significant components of our property and equipment purchases in 2009 included the following approximate amounts:
$114 million for improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocations of existing stores; $69 million for new stores; $28 million for distribution
and transportation-related capital expenditures; $24 million for various administrative capital costs; and $11 million for information systems
upgrades and technology-related projects. During 2009 we opened 500 new stores and remodeled or relocated 450 stores.

Cash flows used in investing activities totaling $152.6 million in 2008 were primarily related to capital expenditures, offset by sales of
investments. Significant components of our property and equipment purchases in 2008 included the following approximate amounts:
$149 million for improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocations of existing stores; $22 million for new stores; $17 million for distribution
and transportation-related capital expenditures; and $13 million for information systems upgrades and technology-related projects. During 2008
we opened 207 new stores and remodeled or relocated 404 stores.

Purchases and sales of short-term investments equal to net sales of $51.6 million in 2008 primarily reflected investment activities in our
captive insurance subsidiary.

Our 2007 merger, as discussed in more detail above, required cash payments in the 2007 Successor period of approximately $6.7 billion,
net of cash acquired of $350 million. Significant components of property and equipment purchases in the 2007 Successor period included the
following approximate amounts: $45 million for improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocations of existing stores; $23 million for
distribution and transportation-related capital expenditures; and $16 million for new stores. During the 2007 Successor period, we opened 170
new stores and remodeled or relocated 235 stores. Significant components of property and equipment purchases in the 2007 Predecessor period
included the following approximate amounts: $29 million for new stores; $15 million for improvements, upgrades, remodels and relocations of
existing stores; and $7 million for distribution and transportation-related capital expenditures. During the 2007 Predecessor period, we opened
195 new stores and remodeled or relocated 65 stores.

During the 2007 Successor period we purchased a secured promissory note for $37.0 million which represents debt issued by a third-party
entity from which we lease our distribution center in Ardmore, Oklahoma. Purchases and sales of short-term investments, which equaled net
sales of $17.6 million and $4.4 million in the respective 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, primarily reflect our investment activities in
our captive insurance subsidiary, and all purchases of long-term investments were related to the captive insurance subsidiary.

Capital expenditures during 2010 are projected to be in the range of $325-$350 million. We anticipate funding 2010 capital requirements
with cash flows from operations, and if necessary, we also have significant availability under our ABL Facility. Significant components of the
2010 capital plan include growth initiatives, including leasehold improvements, fixtures and equipment for approximately 600 new stores;
continued investment in our existing store base with plans for remodeling and relocating approximately 500 stores; and additional investments in
our supply chain and information technology. We plan to undertake these expenditures in order to improve our infrastructure and increase our
cash generated from operating activities.
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Cash flows from financing activities. In 2009, we had cash inflows from the issuance of equity of $443.8 million primarily due to our
initial public offering of 22.7 million shares of common stock. We used the proceeds from the offering to repay outstanding Notes with a total
principal amount of $400.9 million, and used cash generated from operations to repay $336.5 million outstanding principal amount on our Term
Loan Facility. We had no borrowings or repayments under the ABL Facility in 2009. We paid a dividend and related amounts totaling
$239.7 million using cash generated from operations.

In 2008, we repaid borrowings of $102.5 million under our ABL Facility and as of January 30, 2009, we had no borrowings under the ABL
Facility. Also during 2008, we repurchased $44.1 million of our outstanding Senior Subordinated Notes.

In the 2007 Successor period, to finance our 2007 merger, we issued long-term debt of approximately $4.2 billion and issued common stock
in the amount of approximately $2.8 billion (primarily relating to the cash equity contributions from the Investors); we incurred costs associated
with the issuance of merger-related long-term debt of $87.4 million; we completed a cash tender offer for our 2010 Notes as discussed above,
resulting in the valid tender of approximately 99% of the 2010 Notes resulting in repayments of long-term debt and related consent fees in the
amount of $215.6 million; and incurred borrowings, net of repayments, under our ABL Facility of $102.5 million.

The borrowings and repayments under the revolving credit agreements in 2008 and the 2007 Successor period were primarily a result of
activity associated with periodic cash needs.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
reported amounts and related disclosures. In addition to the estimates presented below, there are other items within our financial statements that
require estimation, but are not deemed critical as defined below. We believe these estimates are reasonable and appropriate. However, if actual
experience differs from the assumptions and other considerations used, the resulting changes could have a material effect on the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management believes the following policies and estimates are critical because they involve significant judgments, assumptions, and
estimates. Management has discussed the development and selection of the critical accounting estimates with the Audit Committee of our Board
of Directors, and the Audit Committee has reviewed the disclosures presented below relating to those policies and estimates.

Merchandise Inventories. Merchandise inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined using the retail last-in,
first-out ("LIFO") method. Under our retail inventory method ("RIM"), the calculation of gross profit and the resulting valuation of inventories
at cost are computed by applying a calculated cost-to-retail inventory ratio to the retail value of sales at a department level. The RIM is an
averaging method that has been widely used in the retail industry due to its practicality. Also, it is recognized that the use of the RIM will result
in valuing inventories at the lower of cost or market ("LCM") if markdowns are currently taken as a reduction of the retail value of inventories.

Inherent in the RIM calculation are certain significant management judgments and estimates including, among others, initial markups,
markdowns, and shrinkage, which significantly impact the gross profit calculation as well as the ending inventory valuation at cost. These
significant estimates, coupled with the fact that the RIM is an averaging process, can, under certain circumstances, produce distorted cost
figures. Factors that can lead to distortion in the calculation of the inventory balance include:

applying the RIM to a group of products that is not fairly uniform in terms of its cost and selling price relationship and
turnover;
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applying the RIM to transactions over a period of time that include different rates of gross profit, such as those relating to
seasonal merchandise;

inaccurate estimates of inventory shrinkage between the date of the last physical inventory at a store and the financial
statement date; and

inaccurate estimates of LCM and/or LIFO reserves.

Factors that reduce potential distortion include the use of historical experience in estimating the shrink provision (see discussion below) and
an annual LIFO analysis whereby all SKUs are considered in the index formulation. An actual valuation of inventory under the LIFO method is
made at the end of each year based on the inventory levels and costs at that time. Accordingly, interim LIFO calculations are based on
management's estimates of expected year-end inventory levels, sales for the year and the expected rate of inflation/deflation for the year and are
thus subject to adjustment in the final year-end LIFO inventory valuation. We also perform interim inventory analysis for determining obsolete
inventory. Our policy is to write down inventory to an LCM value based on various management assumptions including estimated markdowns
and sales required to liquidate such inventory in future periods. Inventory is reviewed on a quarterly basis and adjusted as appropriate to reflect
write-downs determined to be necessary.

Factors such as slower inventory turnover due to changes in competitors' practices, consumer preferences, consumer spending and
unseasonable weather patterns, among other factors, could cause excess inventory requiring greater than estimated markdowns to entice
consumer purchases, resulting in an unfavorable impact on our consolidated financial statements. Sales shortfalls due to the above factors could
cause reduced purchases from vendors and associated vendor allowances that would also result in an unfavorable impact on our consolidated
financial statements.

We calculate our shrink provision based on actual physical inventory results during the fiscal period and an accrual for estimated shrink
occurring subsequent to a physical inventory through the end of the fiscal reporting period. This accrual is calculated as a percentage of sales at
each retail store, at a department level, and is determined by dividing the book-to-physical inventory adjustments recorded during the previous
twelve months by the related sales for the same period for each store. To the extent that subsequent physical inventories yield different results
than this estimated accrual, our effective shrink rate for a given reporting period will include the impact of adjusting the estimated results to the
actual results. Although we perform physical inventories in virtually all of our stores on an annual basis, the same stores do not necessarily get
counted in the same reporting periods from year to year, which could impact comparability in a given reporting period.

Our estimates and assumptions related to merchandise inventories have generally been accurate in recent years and we do not currently
anticipate material changes in these estimates and assumptions.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. We amortize intangible assets over their estimated useful lives unless such lives are deemed
indefinite. If impairment indicators are noted, amortizable intangible assets are tested for impairment based on projected undiscounted cash
flows, and, if impaired, written down to fair value based on either discounted projected cash flows or appraised values. Future cash flow
projections are based on management's projections. Significant judgments required in this testing process may include projecting future cash
flows, determining appropriate discount rates and other assumptions. Projections are based on management's best estimates given recent
financial performance, market trends, strategic plans and other available information and in recent years have been materially accurate. Although
not currently anticipated, changes in these estimates and assumptions could materially affect the determination of fair value or impairment.
Future indicators of impairment could result in an asset impairment charge.

Under accounting standards for goodwill and other intangible assets, we are required to test such assets with indefinite lives for impairment
annually, or more frequently if impairment indicators occur.
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The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process that requires management to make judgments in determining what assumptions to use in the
calculation. The first step of the process consists of estimating the fair value of our reporting unit based on valuation techniques (including a
discounted cash flow model using revenue and profit forecasts) and comparing that estimated fair value with the recorded carrying value, which
includes goodwill. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of the impairment
by determining an "implied fair value" of goodwill. The determination of the implied fair value of goodwill would require us to allocate the
estimated fair value of our reporting unit to its assets and liabilities. Any unallocated fair value represents the implied fair value of goodwill,
which would be compared to its corresponding carrying value.

The impairment test for indefinite-lived intangible assets consists of a comparison of the fair value of the intangible asset with its carrying
amount. If the carrying amount of an indefinite-lived intangible asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loss is recognized in an amount equal
to that excess.

We performed our annual impairment tests of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets during the third quarter of 2009 based on
conditions as of the end of our second quarter. The tests indicated that no impairment charge was necessary. We are not currently projecting a
decline in cash flows that could be expected to have an adverse effect such as a violation of debt covenants or future impairment charges.

Property and Equipment. Property and equipment are recorded at cost. We group our assets into relatively homogeneous classes and
generally provide for depreciation on a straight-line basis over the estimated average useful life of each asset class, except for leasehold
improvements, which are amortized over the lesser of the applicable lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset. Certain store and
warehouse fixtures, when fully depreciated, are removed from the cost and related accumulated depreciation and amortization accounts. The
valuation and classification of these assets and the assignment of depreciable lives involves significant judgments and the use of estimates,
which have been materially accurate in recent years.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets. We review the carrying value of all long-lived assets for impairment at least annually, and whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. In accordance with accounting standards
for impairment or disposal of long-lived assets, we review for impairment stores open for approximately two years or more for which recent
cash flows from operations are negative. Impairment results when the carrying value of the assets exceeds the estimated undiscounted future
cash flows over the life of the lease. Our estimate of undiscounted future cash flows over the lease term is based upon historical operations of the
stores and estimates of future store profitability which encompasses many factors that are subject to variability and are difficult to predict. If a
long-lived asset is found to be impaired, the amount recognized for impairment is equal to the difference between the carrying value and the
asset's estimated fair value. The fair value is estimated based primarily upon projected future cash flows (discounted at our credit adjusted
risk-free rate) or other reasonable estimates of fair market value in accordance with U.S. GAAP. During 2009, 2008 and the 2007 Predecessor
period we recorded pre-tax impairment charges of $5.0 million, $4.0 million and $0.2 million, respectively, for certain store assets that we
deemed to be impaired.

Insurance Liabilities. ~We retain a significant portion of the risk for our workers' compensation, employee health, property loss,
automobile and general liability. These represent significant costs primarily due to the large employee base and number of stores. Provisions are
made to these liabilities on an undiscounted basis based on actual claim data and estimates of incurred but not reported claims developed using
actuarial methodologies based on historical claim trends, which have been and are anticipated to continue to be materially accurate. If future
claim trends deviate from recent historical

52

64



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

patterns, we may be required to record additional expenses or expense reductions, which could be material to our future financial results.

Contingent Liabilities Income Taxes. Income tax reserves are determined using the methodology established by accounting standards
relating to uncertainty in income taxes. These standards require companies to assess each income tax position taken using a two step process. A
determination is first made as to whether it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained, based upon the technical merits, upon
examination by the taxing authorities. If the tax position is expected to meet the more likely than not criteria, the benefit recorded for the tax
position equals the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement of the respective tax position. Uncertain
tax positions require determinations and estimated liabilities to be made based on provisions of the tax law which may be subject to change or
varying interpretation. If our determinations and estimates prove to be inaccurate, the resulting adjustments could be material to our future
financial results.

Contingent Liabilities Legal Matters. We are subject to legal, regulatory and other proceedings and claims. We establish liabilities as
appropriate for these claims and proceedings based upon the probability and estimability of losses and to fairly present, in conjunction with the
disclosures of these matters in our financial statements and SEC filings, management's view of our exposure. We review outstanding claims and
proceedings with external counsel to assess probability and estimates of loss. We re-evaluate these assessments on a quarterly basis or as new
and significant information becomes available to determine whether a liability should be established or if any existing liability should be
adjusted. The actual cost of resolving a claim or proceeding ultimately may be substantially different than the amount of the recorded liability. In
addition, because it is not permissible under U.S. GAAP to establish a litigation liability until the loss is both probable and estimable, in some
cases there may be insufficient time to establish a liability prior to the actual incurrence of the loss (upon verdict and judgment at trial, for
example, or in the case of a quickly negotiated settlement).

Lease Accounting and Excess Facilities. Many of our stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangements with landlords, which typically
carry a primary lease term of 10-15 years with multiple renewal options. We also have stores subject to shorter-term leases (usually with initial
or current terms of 3 to 5 years), and many of these leases have multiple renewal options. As of January 29, 2010, approximately 38% of our
stores had provisions for contingent rentals based upon a percentage of defined sales volume. We recognize contingent rental expense when the
achievement of specified sales targets is considered probable. We recognize rent expense over the term of the lease. We record minimum rental
expense on a straight-line basis over the base, non-cancelable lease term commencing on the date that we take physical possession of the
property from the landlord, which normally includes a period prior to store opening to make necessary leasehold improvements and install store
fixtures. When a lease contains a predetermined fixed escalation of the minimum rent, we recognize the related rent expense on a straight-line
basis and record the difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts payable under the lease as deferred rent. Tenant
allowances, to the extent received, are recorded as deferred incentive rent and amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the term of the lease.
We reflect as a liability any difference between the calculated expense and the amounts actually paid. Improvements of leased properties are
amortized over the shorter of the life of the applicable lease term or the estimated useful life of the asset.

For store closures (excluding those associated with a business combination) where a lease obligation still exists, we record the estimated
future liability associated with the rental obligation on the date the store is closed in accordance with accounting standards for costs associated
with exit or disposal activities. Based on an overall analysis of store performance and expected trends, management periodically evaluates the
need to close underperforming stores. Liabilities are established at the point of closure for the present value of any remaining operating lease
obligations, net of estimated sublease
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income, and at the communication date for severance and other exit costs. Key assumptions in calculating the liability include the timeframe
expected to terminate lease agreements, estimates related to the sublease potential of closed locations, and estimation of other related exit costs.
Historically, these estimates have not been materially inaccurate; however, if actual timing and potential termination costs or realization of
sublease income differ from our estimates, the resulting liabilities could vary from recorded amounts. These liabilities are reviewed periodically
and adjusted when necessary.

Share-Based Payments. Our share-based stock option awards are valued on an individual grant basis using the Black-Scholes-Merton
closed form option pricing model. We believe that this model fairly estimates the value of our share-based awards. The application of this
valuation model involves assumptions that are judgmental and highly sensitive in the valuation of stock options, which affects compensation
expense related to these options. These assumptions include an estimate of the fair value of our common stock, the term that the options are
expected to be outstanding, an estimate of the volatility of our stock price (which is based on a peer group of publicly traded companies),
applicable interest rates and the dividend yield of our stock. Our volatility estimates are based on a peer group due to the fact that our stock was
publicly traded for only a small portion of our most recently completed fiscal year. Other factors involving judgments that affect the expensing
of share-based payments include estimated forfeiture rates of share-based awards. Historically, these estimates have not been materially
inaccurate; however, if our estimates differ materially from actual experience, we may be required to record additional expense or reductions of
expense, which could be material to our future financial results.

Fair Value Measurements. We measure fair value of assets and liabilities in accordance with applicable accounting standards, which
require that fair values be determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. These
standards establish a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity's own
assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy). Therefore, Level 3 inputs are
typically based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if any, related market activity, and thus require the use of significant judgment
and estimates. Currently, we have no assets or liabilities that are valued based solely on Level 3 inputs.

Our fair value measurements are primarily associated with our derivative financial instruments, intangible assets, property and equipment,
and to a lesser degree our investments. The values of our derivative financial instruments are determined using widely accepted valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of
the derivatives, including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves. The fair values of
interest rate swaps are determined using the market standard methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments (or receipts) and
the discounted expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash receipts (or payments) are based on an expectation of future
interest rates (forward curves) derived from observable market interest rate curves. In recent years, these methodologies have produced
materially accurate valuations.
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Derivative Financial Instruments. We account for our derivative instruments in accordance with accounting standards for derivative
instruments (including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts) and hedging activities, as amended and interpreted, which
establish accounting and reporting requirements for such instruments and activities. These standards require that every derivative instrument be
recorded in the balance sheet as either an asset or liability measured at its fair value, and that changes in the derivative's fair value be recognized
currently in earnings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met. See "Fair Value Measurements" above for a discussion of derivative
valuations. Special accounting for qualifying hedges allows a derivative's gains and losses to either offset related results on the hedged item in
the statement of operations or be accumulated in other comprehensive income, and requires that a company formally document, designate, and
assess the effectiveness of transactions that receive hedge accounting. We use derivative instruments to manage our exposure to changing
interest rates, primarily with interest rate swaps.

In addition to making valuation estimates, we also bear the risk that certain derivative instruments that have been designated as hedges and
currently meet the strict hedge accounting requirements may not qualify in the future as "highly effective," as defined, as well as the risk that
hedged transactions in cash flow hedging relationships may no longer be considered probable to occur. Further, new interpretations and
guidance related to these instruments may be issued in the future, and we cannot predict the possible impact that such guidance may have on our
use of derivative instruments going forward.

Accounting Standards

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued a new accounting standard which established the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") as the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under authority of federal
securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants, including us. On September 15, 2009, the effective date of this
standard, the ASC superseded all then-existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. All other nongrandfathered non-SEC accounting
literature not included in the ASC became nonauthoritative. The adoption of these standards is not expected to have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements in the future.

In June 2009 the FASB issued a new accounting standard relating to variable interest entities. This standard amends previous standards and
requires an enterprise to perform an analysis to determine whether the enterprise's variable interest or interests give it a controlling financial
interest in a variable interest entity, specifies updated criteria for determining the primary beneficiary, requires ongoing reassessments of
whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity, eliminates the quantitative approach previously required for
determining the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity, amends certain guidance for determining whether an entity is a variable interest
entity, requires enhanced disclosures about an enterprise's involvement in a variable interest entity, and includes other provisions. This standard
will be effective as of the beginning of our first interim and annual reporting periods that begin after November 15, 2009. Earlier application is
prohibited. The adoption of these standards is not expected to have a material effect on our consolidated financial statements in the future.

During the second quarter of 2009 we adopted the ASC Subsequent Events Topic. The objective of this topic is to establish general
standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or are
available to be issued. In particular, this topic sets forth the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a reporting entity
should evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, the circumstances under
which an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements, and the disclosures
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that an entity should make about events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date. In February 2010 minor modifications were
made to this guidance. The future effects of the adoption of these standards on our consolidated financial statements will be dependent upon the
materiality of future events which cannot be predicted.

We adopted the additional disclosure provisions of the ASC Derivatives and Hedging Topic during the first quarter of 2009. These
standards require entities to provide greater transparency through additional disclosures about how and why an entity uses derivative
instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments and related hedged items
affect an entity's financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. The adoption of these standards is not expected to have a material
effect on our consolidated financial statements in the future.

We changed our accounting for fair value of our nonfinancial assets and liabilities in connection with the adoption of certain provisions of
the ASC Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic effective January 31, 2009. The effects of the adoption of these standards on our
future consolidated financial statements will be dependent upon the materiality of future events which cannot be predicted.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
Financial Risk Management

We are exposed to market risk primarily from adverse changes in interest rates, and to a lesser degree commodity prices. To minimize this
risk, we may periodically use financial instruments, including derivatives. As a matter of policy, we do not buy or sell financial instruments for
speculative or trading purposes and all derivative financial instrument transactions must be authorized and executed pursuant to approval by the
Board of Directors. All financial instrument positions taken by us are intended to be used to reduce risk by hedging an underlying economic
exposure. Because of high correlation between the derivative financial instrument and the underlying exposure being hedged, fluctuations in the
value of the financial instruments are generally offset by reciprocal changes in the value of the underlying economic exposure.

Interest Rate Risk

We manage our interest rate risk through the strategic use of fixed and variable interest rate debt and, from time to time, derivative financial
instruments. Our principal interest rate exposure relates to outstanding amounts under our Credit Facilities. As of January 29, 2010, our Credit
Facilities provide for variable rate borrowings of up to $2.995 billion including availability of $1.031 billion under our ABL Facility, subject to
the borrowing base. In order to mitigate a portion of the variable rate interest exposure under the Credit Facilities, we entered into interest rate
swaps which became effective on July 31, 2007. Pursuant to the swaps, we swapped three month LIBOR rates for fixed interest rates, resulting
in the payment of an all-in fixed rate of 7.68% on an original notional amount of $2.0 billion originally scheduled to amortize on a quarterly
basis until maturity at July 31, 2012.

In October 2008, a counterparty to one of our 2007 swap agreements defaulted. We terminated this agreement and in November 2008 we
subsequently cash settled the swap. As of January 29, 2010, the notional amount under the remaining 2007 swaps is $793.3 million.

Effective February 28, 2008, we entered into a $350.0 million step-down interest rate swap in order to mitigate an additional portion of the
variable rate interest exposure under the Credit Facilities. Under the terms of this agreement we swapped one month LIBOR rates for fixed
interest rates, resulting in the payment of a fixed rate of 5.58% on a notional amount of $350.0 million for the first year and $150.0 million for
the second year. This contract expired on February 28, 2010.
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Effective December 31, 2008, we entered into a $475.0 million interest rate swap in order to mitigate an additional portion of the variable
rate interest exposure under the Credit Facilities. This swap is scheduled to mature on January 31, 2013. Under the terms of this agreement we
swapped one month LIBOR rates for fixed interest rates, resulting in the payment of a fixed rate of 5.06% on a notional amount of
$475.0 million through April 2010, $400.0 million from May 2010 to October 2011, and $300.0 million to maturity.

A change in interest rates on variable rate debt impacts our pre-tax earnings and cash flows; whereas a change in interest rates on fixed rate
debt impacts the economic fair value of debt but not our pre-tax earnings and cash flows. Our interest rate swaps qualify for hedge accounting as
cash flow hedges. Therefore, changes in market fluctuations related to the effective portion of these cash flow hedges do not impact our pre-tax
earnings until the accrued interest is recognized on the derivatives and the associated hedged debt. Based on our variable rate borrowing levels
and interest rate swaps outstanding during 2009 and 2008, the annualized effect of a one percentage point change in variable interest rates would
have resulted in a pretax reduction of our earnings and cash flows of approximately $5.6 million in 2009 and $6.2 million in 2008.

The conditions and uncertainties in the global credit markets have substantially increased the credit risk of other counterparties to our swap
agreements. In the event such counterparties fail to perform under our swap agreements and we are unable to enter into new swap agreements on
terms favorable to us, our ability to effectively manage our interest rate risk may be materially impaired. We attempt to manage counterparty
credit risk by periodically evaluating the financial position and creditworthiness of such counterparties, monitoring the amount for which we are
at risk with each counterparty, and where possible, dispersing the risk among multiple counterparties. There can be no assurance that we will
manage or mitigate our counterparty credit risk effectively.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
Dollar General Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Dollar General Corporation and subsidiaries as of January 29, 2010
(Successor) and January 30, 2009 (Successor), and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders' equity, and cash flows for the
years ended January 29, 2010 (Successor) and January 30, 2009 (Successor), and the periods from March 6, 2007 to February 1, 2008
(Successor) and from February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007 (Predecessor). These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. We were not engaged to perform an audit of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Dollar
General Corporation and subsidiaries at January 29, 2010 (Successor) and January 30, 2009 (Successor), and the consolidated results of their
operations and their cash flows for the years ended January 29, 2010 (Successor) and January 30, 2009 (Successor), and the periods from
March 6, 2007 to February 1, 2008 (Successor) and from February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007 (Predecessor), in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 6 to the consolidated financial statements, effective February 3, 2007, the Company changed its method of
accounting for uncertain tax positions in connection with new accounting literature.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Nashville, Tennessee
March 31, 2010
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Merchandise inventories
Income taxes receivable
Deferred income taxes
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Net property and equipment
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets, net
Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term obligations

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses and other

Income taxes payable

Deferred income taxes payable

Total current liabilities
Long-term obligations
Deferred income taxes
Other liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable common stock

Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock, 1,000 shares authorized
Common stock; $0.875 par value, 1,000,000 shares authorized, 340,586 and 317,845 shares issued and
outstanding at January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Successor
January 29, January 30,
2010 2009
$ 222,076 377,995
1,519,578 1,414,955
7,543 6,392
4,600
96,252 66,183
1,845,449 1,870,125
1,328,386 1,268,960
4,338,589 4,338,589
1,284,283 1,325,558
66,812 85,967
$ 8,863,519 8,889,199
$ 3,671 14,158
830,953 678,421
342,290 375,045
4,525 7,611
25,061
1,206,500 1,075,235
3,399,715 4,122,956
546,172 556,101
302,348 289,288
18,486 13,924
298,013 278,114
2,923,377 2,489,647
203,075 103,364
(34,167) (39,430)
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Total shareholders' equity 3,390,298
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity $ 8,863,519 $
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(In thousands, except per share amounts)

Successor Predecessor
For the Year Ended March 6, 2007 February 3,
through 2007
January 29, January 30, February 1, through

2010 2009 2008(a) July 6, 2007
Net sales $ 11,796,380 $ 10,457,668 $ 5,571,493 $ 3,923,753
Cost of goods sold 8,106,509 7,396,571 3,999,599 2,852,178
Gross profit 3,689,871 3,061,097 1,571,894 1,071,575

Selling, general
and administrative

expenses 2,736,613 2,448,611 1,324,508 960,930
Litigation
settlement and
related costs, net 32,000
Transaction and
related costs 1,242 101,397
Operating profit 953,258 580,486 246,144 9,248
Interest income (144) (3,061) 3,799) (5,046)
Interest expense 345,744 391,932 252,897 10,299
Other (income)
expense 55,542 (2,788) 3,639
Income (loss)
before income
taxes 552,116 194,403 (6,593) 3,995
Income tax
expense (benefit) 212,674 86,221 (1,775) 11,993
Net income (loss)  $ 339,442 $ 108,182 $ “4,818) $ (7,998)
Earnings (loss)
per share:

Basic $ 1.05 $ 034 $ (0.02)

Diluted $ 1.04 $ 034 $ (0.02)
Weighted average
shares:

Basic 322,778 317,024 316,777

Diluted 324,836 317,503 316,777
(@)

Includes the results of operations of Buck Acquisition Corp. ("BAC") for the period prior to its Merger with and into Dollar General
Corporation from March 6, 2007 (the date of BAC's formation) through July 6, 2007 (reflecting the change in fair value of interest rate
swaps), and the post-Merger results of Dollar General Corporation for the period from July 7, 2007 through February 1, 2008. See
Notes 1 and 3.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Predecessor Balances, February 2, 2007
Effect of adoption of accounting standard
related to uncertainty in income taxes

Predecessor Balances as adjusted, February 2,

2007
Comprehensive income (loss):
Net loss

Reclassification of net loss on derivatives

Comprehensive loss

Cash dividends, $0.05 per common share
Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans

Tax benefit from stock option exercises

Share-based compensation expense

Vesting of restricted stock and restricted stock

units
Other equity transactions

Elimination of Predecessor equity in connection

with Merger (see Notes 1 and 3)

Predecessor Balances subsequent to Merger

Successor capital contribution, net
Comprehensive loss:
Net loss

Unrealized net loss on hedged transactions, net

of income tax benefit of $29,501

Comprehensive loss

Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans

Issuance of restricted common stock under

stock incentive plans
Repurchases of common stock
Share-based compensation expense

Successor Balances, February 1, 2008

Comprehensive income:
Net income

Unrealized net gain on hedged transactions,

net of income tax expense of $4,518

Comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock under stock

incentive plans
Repurchases of common stock
Share-based compensation expense

Successor Balances, January 30, 2009

Comprehensive income:
Net income

Common

Stock
Shares
312,436

312,436

2,496

126
28

(315,030)

Common
Stock
$ 156,218

156,218

1,248
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13)

(157,516)

Additional
Paid-in
Capital

$ 486,145

486,145

40,294
3,927
45,458

(63)
(580)

(575,181)

(In thousands except per share amounts)

316,591 $ 277,018 $2,476,958 $

328

509
(10)

317,418 $ 277,741 $2,480,062 $

484
(57)

317,845 $ 278,114 $2,489,647 $

287

445
©

423
(50)

(287)

(445)
9
3,827

(423)
50
9,958

Retained  Accumulated
Earnings Other Other
(AccumulatedComprehensifhareholders'
Deficit) Loss Equity Total
$ 1,103,951 987) $ 420 $ 1,745,747
(8,917) (8,917)
1,095,034 (987) 420 1,736,830
(7,998) (7,998)
76 76
(7,922)
(15,710) (15,710)
41,542
3,927
45,458
(48) 7 (634)
(1,071,278) 911 (427) (1,803,491)
$ $ $
$ $ 2,753,976
(4,818) (4,818)
(49,112) (49,112)
(53,930)
3,827
(4,818) $ (49,112) $ $ 2,703,873
108,182 108,182
9,682 9,682
117,864
9,958
103,364 $  (39,430) $ $ 2,831,695
339,442 339,442
5,263 5,263
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Unrealized net gain on hedged transactions,
net of income tax expense of $2,553

Comprehensive income

Issuance of common stock

Cash dividends, $0.7525 per common share,
and related amounts

Share-based compensation expense

Tax benefit from stock option exercises
Issuance of common stock under stock
incentive plans

Equity settlements under stock incentive plans

Successor Balances, January 29, 2010

: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

22,700 19,863 421,299

15,009

3,072

304 266 2,020
(263) (230) (7,670)

340,586 $ 298,013 $2,923377 $

(239,731)

203,075 $

(34,167) $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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344,705
441,162

(239,731)
15,009
3,072

2,286
(7,900)

$ 3,390,298

76



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Tax benefit of stock options
Loss (gain) on debt retirement
Noncash share-based compensation
Noncash inventory adjustments and asset
impairments
Other noncash gains and losses
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Merchandise inventories
Prepaid expenses and other current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Income taxes
Other

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Merger, net of cash acquired

Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of short-term investments

Sales of short-term investments

Purchases of long-term investments

Sale and insurance proceeds related to property
and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Issuance of common stock

Net borrowings (repayments) under revolving
credit facility

Issuance of long-term obligations
Repayments of long-term obligations

Debt issuance costs

Payment of cash dividends and related amounts
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Repurchases of equity

Tax benefit of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(In thousands)
Successor Predecessor
For the Year Ended March 6,2007  February 3,
through 2007
January 29, January 30, February 1, through
2010 2009 2008(a) July 6, 2007
$ 339442 $ 108,182 § (4,818) $ (7,998)
256,771 247,899 150,213 83,917
14,860 73,434 19,551 (20,874)
(5,390) (950) (3,927)
55,265 (3,818) 1,249
17,295 9,958 3,827 45,433
647 50,671 6,113

7,920 6,252 4,276 5,098

(100,248) (173,014) 73,356 16,424
(7,298) (598) 3,739 (6,184)
106,049 140,356 (41,395) 34,794
(16,823) 68,736 16,061 52,995
1,153 33,986 7,348 2,809
(1,000) 14,084 84 (541)
668,643 575,178 239,604 201,946

(6,738,391)

(250,747) (205,546) (83,641) (56,153)
(9,903) (3,800) (5,100)

61,547 21,445 9,505
(44,520) (15,754)

2,701 1,266 533 620
(248,046) (152,636) (6,848,374) (66,882)

443,753 4,228 2,759,540
(102,500) 102,500
1,080 4,176,817
(785,260) (44,425) (241,945) (4,500)
(87,392)
(239,731) (15,710)
41,546
(1,748) (3,009) (541)

5,390 950 3,927
(576,516) (144,756) 6,708,979 25,263
(155,919) 277,786 100,209 160,327

377,995 100,209 189,288

$ 222076 $ 377,995 $ 100,209 $ 349,615
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Supplemental cash flow information:
Cash paid (received) for:
Interest $ 328433 $ 377,022 $ 226,738 $ 11,246
Income taxes 187,983 7,091 (30,574) 26,012
Supplemental schedule of noncash investing and
financing activities:
Purchases of property and equipment awaiting
processing for payment, included in Accounts
payable $ 30,393 $ 7474 $ 20,449 $ 13,544
Purchases of property and equipment under
capital lease obligations 50 3,806 592 1,036
Expiration of equity repurchase rights 2,548
Exchange of shares and stock options in business
combination 7,685

(2)
Includes the cash flows of Buck Acquisition Corp. ("BAC") for the period prior to its Merger with and into Dollar General Corporation from March 6,
2007 (the date of BAC's formation) through July 6, 2007 (which were zero), and the post-Merger results of Dollar General Corporation for the period
from July 7, 2007 through February 1, 2008. See Notes 1 and 3.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies
Basis of presentation

These notes contain references to the years 2009 and 2008, which represent fiscal years ended January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009,
respectively, each of which were 52-week accounting periods. The Company completed a merger transaction on July 6, 2007 and therefore fiscal
year 2007 includes separate presentation of the periods before and after the merger. The Company's fiscal year ends on the Friday closest to
January 31. The consolidated financial statements include all subsidiaries of the Company, except for its not-for-profit subsidiary which the
Company does not control. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

Dollar General Corporation (the "Company") was acquired on July 6, 2007 through a Merger (as defined and discussed in greater detail in
Note 3 below) accounted for as a reverse acquisition. Although the Company continued as the same legal entity after the Merger, the
accompanying consolidated financial statements are presented for the "Predecessor" and "Successor" relating to the periods preceding and
succeeding the Merger, respectively. As a result of the Company applying purchase accounting and a new basis of accounting beginning on
July 7, 2007, the financial reporting periods presented are as follows:

The presentation for 2009 and 2008 reflect the Successor.

The 2007 periods presented include the Predecessor period of the Company, reflecting 22 weeks of operating results from
February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007 and 30 weeks of operating results for the Successor period, reflecting the Merger of the

Company and Buck Acquisition Corp. ("BAC") from July 7, 2007 to February 1, 2008.

BAC's results of operations for the period from its inception on March 6, 2007 to July 6, 2007 (prior to the Merger on July 6,
2007) are also included in the consolidated financial statements for the Successor period described above as a result of
certain derivative financial instruments entered into by BAC prior to the Merger, as further described in Note 8. Other than
these financial instruments, BAC had no assets, liabilities, or operations prior to the Merger.

The consolidated financial statements for the Predecessor periods have been prepared using the Company's historical basis of accounting.
As a result of purchase accounting, the pre-Merger and post-Merger consolidated financial statements are not comparable.

The Company effected a reverse stock split effective October 12, 2009, of 1 share for each 1.75 shares outstanding as of that date. All share
and per share amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements have been adjusted to reflect the reverse stock split. The Company
completed the initial public offering of its common stock on November 18, 2009, as described in more detail in Note 2.

Business description

The Company sells general merchandise on a retail basis through 8,828 stores (as of January 29, 2010) in 35 states covering most of the
southern, southwestern, midwestern and eastern United States. The Company has distribution centers ("DCs") in Scottsville, Kentucky;
Ardmore, Oklahoma; South Boston, Virginia; Indianola, Mississippi; Fulton, Missouri; Alachua, Florida; Zanesville, Ohio; Jonesville, South

Carolina and Marion, Indiana.

63

79



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (Continued)

The Company purchases its merchandise from a wide variety of suppliers. Approximately 9% and 6% of the Company's purchases in 2009
were made from the Company's largest and second largest suppliers, respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with insignificant interest rate risk and original maturities of three months or
less when purchased. Such investments primarily consist of money market funds, certificates of deposit (which may include foreign time
deposits), and commercial paper. The carrying amounts of these items are a reasonable estimate of their fair value due to the short maturity of
these investments.

Payments due from banks for third-party credit card, debit card and electronic benefit transactions classified as cash and cash equivalents
totaled approximately $23.2 million and $16.2 million at January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively.

The Company's cash management system provides for daily investment of available balances and the funding of outstanding checks when
presented for payment. Outstanding but unpresented checks totaling approximately $159.6 million and $127.6 million at January 29, 2010 and
January 30, 2009, respectively, have been included in Accounts payable in the consolidated balance sheets. Upon presentation for payment,
these checks are funded through available cash balances or the Company's credit facilities.

At January 29, 2010, the Company had certain cash balances equal to $20.0 million held in accordance with certain insurance-related
regulatory requirements, as further described below under "Insurance liabilities."

Investments in debt and equity securities

The Company accounts for its investments in debt and marketable equity securities as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale, or trading,
depending on their classification. Debt securities categorized as held-to-maturity are stated at amortized cost. Debt and equity securities
categorized as available-for-sale are stated at fair value, with any unrealized gains and losses, net of deferred income taxes, reported as a
component of Accumulated other comprehensive loss. Trading securities (primarily mutual funds held pursuant to deferred compensation and
supplemental retirement plans, as further discussed in Note 10) are stated at fair value, with changes in fair value recorded as a component of
Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expense.

As of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, the Company had investments in trading securities of $8.8 million and $8.7 million,
respectively, $1.6 million and $2.1 million of which were classified as Prepaid expenses and other current assets, respectively, and $7.2 million
and $6.6 million of which were classified as Other assets, net, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheets. Historical cost information
pertaining to these investments in mutual funds by participants in the Company's supplemental retirement and compensation deferral plans is not
readily available to the Company.

During 2008, the Company's South Carolina-based wholly owned captive insurance subsidiary, Ashley River Insurance Company
("ARIC"), had investments in various debt securities. These investments were held pursuant to South Carolina regulatory requirements to

maintain certain asset balances related to ARIC's liability and equity balances, which could limit the Company's ability to use
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (Continued)

these assets for general corporate purposes. In May 2008, the state of South Carolina made certain changes to these regulations, which in turn
changed the Company's investment requirements. As a result, the Company reclassified certain investments held by ARIC from held-to-maturity
to available-for-sale, and ARIC subsequently liquidated certain investments totaling $48.6 million during 2008.

For the years ended January 29, 2010, January 30, 2009, the Successor period ended February 1, 2008 and the Predecessor period ended
July 6, 2007, gross realized gains and losses on the sales of available-for-sale securities were not material. The cost of securities sold is based
upon the specific identification method.

Merchandise inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined using the retail last-in, first-out ("LIFO") method as this method
results in a better matching of costs and revenues. Under the Company's retail inventory method ("RIM"), the calculation of gross profit and the
resulting valuation of inventories at cost are computed by applying a calculated cost-to-retail inventory ratio to the retail value of sales at a
department level. Costs directly associated with warehousing and distribution are capitalized into inventory. The excess of current cost over
LIFO cost was approximately $47.5 million and $50.0 million at January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively. Current cost is
determined using the RIM on a first-in, first-out basis. Under the LIFO inventory method, the impacts of rising or falling market price changes
increase or decrease cost of sales (the LIFO provision or benefit). The Company recorded a LIFO benefit of $2.5 million in 2009, and LIFO
provisions of $43.9 million, $6.1 million and zero during 2008, and the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively.

The 2008 LIFO provision was impacted by increased commodity costs related to food and pet products which were driven by fruit and
vegetable prices and rising freight costs. In addition, increases in petroleum, resin, metals, pulp and other raw material commodity costs also
resulted in multiple product cost increases. These trends generally stabilized or reversed in 2009.

Vendor rebates

The Company accounts for all cash consideration received from vendors in accordance with applicable accounting standards pertaining to
such arrangements. Cash consideration received from a vendor is generally presumed to be a rebate or an allowance and is accounted for as a
reduction of merchandise purchase costs as earned. However, certain specific, incremental and otherwise qualifying SG&A expenses related to
the promotion or sale of vendor products may be offset by cash consideration received from vendors, in accordance with arrangements such as
cooperative advertising, when earned for dollar amounts up to but not exceeding actual incremental costs. The Company recognizes amounts
received for cooperative advertising on performance, "first showing" or distribution, consistent with its policy for advertising expense in
accordance with applicable accounting standards for reporting on advertising costs.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (Continued)
Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. The Company provides for depreciation and amortization on a straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful lives:

Land improvements 20
Buildings 39-40
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3-10

Improvements of leased properties are amortized over the shorter of the life of the applicable lease term or the estimated useful life of the
asset.

Impairment of long-lived assets

When indicators of impairment are present, the Company evaluates the carrying value of long-lived assets, other than goodwill, in relation
to the operating performance and future cash flows or the appraised values of the underlying assets. In accordance with accounting standards for
long-lived assets, the Company reviews for impairment stores open more than two years for which current cash flows from operations are
negative. Impairment results when the carrying value of the assets exceeds the undiscounted future cash flows over the life of the lease. The
Company's estimate of undiscounted future cash flows over the lease term is based upon historical operations of the stores and estimates of
future store profitability which encompasses many factors that are subject to variability and difficult to predict. If a long-lived asset is found to
be impaired, the amount recognized for impairment is equal to the difference between the carrying value and the asset's estimated fair value. The
fair value is estimated based primarily upon estimated future cash flows (discounted at the Company's credit adjusted risk-free rate) or other
reasonable estimates of fair market value. Assets to be disposed of are adjusted to the fair value less the cost to sell if less than the book value.

The Company recorded impairment charges included in SG&A expense of approximately $5.0 million in 2009, $4.0 million in 2008 and
zero and $0.2 million in the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively, to reduce the carrying value of certain of its stores' assets as

deemed necessary based on the Company's evaluation that such amounts would not be recoverable primarily due to insufficient sales or
excessive costs resulting in negative current and projected future cash flows at these locations.

Capitalized interest

To assure that interest costs properly reflect only that portion relating to current operations, interest on borrowed funds during the
construction of property and equipment is capitalized where applicable. No interest costs were capitalized in 2009, 2008 or the 2007 periods.

Goodwill and other intangible assets

The Company amortizes intangible assets over their estimated useful lives unless such lives are deemed indefinite. Amortizable intangible
assets are tested for impairment when indicators of impairment are present, based on undiscounted cash flows, and if impaired, written down to
fair value based on either discounted cash flows or appraised values.
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (Continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are tested for impairment annually or more frequently if indicators of impairment are
present and written down to fair value as required. No impairment of intangible assets has been identified during any of the periods presented.

The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process that requires management to make judgments in determining what assumptions to use in
the calculation. The first step of the process consists of estimating the fair value of the Company's reporting unit based on valuation techniques
(including a discounted cash flow model using revenue and profit forecasts) and comparing that estimated fair value with the recorded carrying
value, which includes goodwill. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying value, a second step is performed to compute the amount of
the impairment by determining an "implied fair value" of goodwill. The determination of the implied fair value of goodwill would require the
Company to allocate the estimated fair value of its reporting unit to its assets and liabilities. Any unallocated fair value would represent the
implied fair value of goodwill, which would be compared to its corresponding carrying value.

Other assets

Other assets consist primarily of qualifying prepaid expenses, debt issuance costs which are amortized over the life of the related
obligations, and utility and security deposits. Such debt issuance costs increased substantially subsequent to the Merger as further discussed in
Notes 3 and 7.

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Accrued expenses and other consist of the following:

Successor
January 29, January 30,
(In thousands) 2010 2009
Compensation and benefits $ 100843 $ 87,451
Insurance 65,408 65,524
Taxes (other than taxes on income) 72,902 66,983
Other 103,137 155,087

$ 342290 $ 375,045

Other accrued expenses primarily include the current portion of liabilities for legal settlements, freight expense, contingent rent expense,
interest, electricity, lease contract termination liabilities for closed stores, common area and other maintenance charges, store insurance liabilities
and income tax related reserves.

Insurance liabilities

The Company retains a significant portion of risk for its workers' compensation, employee health, general liability, property and automobile
claim exposures. Accordingly, provisions are made for the Company's estimates of such risks. The undiscounted future claim costs for the
workers' compensation, general liability, and health claim risks are derived using actuarial methods. To the extent that subsequent claim costs
vary from those estimates, future results of operations will be affected. Ashley River Insurance Company (or ARIC, as defined above), a South
Carolina-based wholly owned captive
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insurance subsidiary of the Company, charges the operating subsidiary companies premiums to insure the retained workers' compensation and
non-property general liability exposures. Pursuant to South Carolina insurance regulations, ARIC is required to maintain certain levels of cash
and cash equivalents related to its self insured exposures. ARIC currently insures no unrelated third-party risk.

As a result of the Merger, the Company recorded its assumed self-insurance reserves as of the Merger date at their present value in
accordance with applicable accounting standards for business combinations, using a discount rate of 5.4%. The balance of the resulting discount
was $7.4 million and $11.7 million at January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively. Other than for reserves assumed in a business
combination, the Company's policy is to record self-insurance reserves on an undiscounted basis.

Operating leases and related liabilities

Rent expense is recognized over the term of the lease. The Company records minimum rental expense on a straight-line basis over the base,
non-cancelable lease term commencing on the date that the Company takes physical possession of the property from the landlord, which
normally includes a period prior to the store opening to make necessary leasehold improvements and install store fixtures. When a lease contains
a predetermined fixed escalation of the minimum rent, the Company recognizes the related rent expense on a straight-line basis and records the
difference between the recognized rental expense and the amounts payable under the lease as deferred rent. Tenant allowances, to the extent
received, are recorded as deferred incentive rent and are amortized as a reduction to rent expense over the term of the lease. Any difference
between the calculated expense and the amounts actually paid are reflected as a liability, with the current portion in Accrued expenses and other
and the long-term portion in Other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, and totaled approximately $14.5 million and $7.7 million at
January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively.

The Company recognizes contingent rental expense when the achievement of specified sales targets are considered probable, in accordance
with applicable accounting standards for contingent rent. The amount expensed but not paid as of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009 was
approximately $10.8 million and $10.4 million, respectively, and is included in Accrued expenses and other in the consolidated balance sheets
(See Note 9).

In the normal course of business, based on an overall analysis of store performance and expected trends, management periodically evaluates
the need to close underperforming stores. Generally, for store closures where a lease obligation still exists, the Company records the estimated
future liability associated with the rental obligation on the date the store is closed in accordance with applicable accounting standards for costs
associated with exit or disposal activities. Key assumptions in calculating the liability include the timeframe expected to terminate lease
agreements, estimates related to the sublease potential of closed locations, and estimation of other related exit costs. Liabilities are reviewed
periodically and adjusted when necessary. The current portion of the closed store rent liability is reflected in Accrued expenses and other and the
long-term portion in Other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets, and totaled approximately $7.6 million at January 29, 2010 and
$13.2 million at January 30, 2009.
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Non-current Other liabilities consist of the following:

Successor
January 29, January 30,

(In thousands) 2010 2009

Compensation and benefits $ 12,441 $ 8,399
Insurance 140,633 139,410
Income tax related reserves 68,021 47,307
Derivatives 57,058 63,523
Other 24,195 30,649

$ 302,348 $ 289,288

Amounts reflected as "other" in the table above consist primarily of deferred rent, lease contract termination liabilities for closed stores,
leasehold interests liabilities, and rebate obligations.

Fair value accounting

On February 2, 2008 and January 31, 2009, the Company adopted various components of the accounting standards for fair value, which
define fair value, establish a framework for measuring fair value, and expand disclosures about fair value measurements. These standards apply
to reported balances that are required or permitted to be measured at fair value under existing accounting pronouncements; accordingly, the
standard does not require any new fair value measurements of reported balances.

Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be determined
based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. As a basis for considering market participant
assumptions in fair value measurements, fair value accounting standards establish a fair value hierarchy that distinguishes between market
participant assumptions based on market data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity (observable inputs that are classified
within Levels 1 and 2 of the hierarchy) and the reporting entity's own assumptions about market participant assumptions (unobservable inputs
classified within Level 3 of the hierarchy).

Level 1 inputs utilize quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has the ability to
access. Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability.
Level 2 inputs may include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, as well as inputs that are observable for the asset or
liability (other than quoted prices), such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted
intervals. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, which are based on an entity's own assumptions, as there is little, if
any, related market activity. In instances where the determination of the fair value measurement is based on inputs from different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, the level in the fair value hierarchy within which the entire fair value measurement falls is based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. The Company's assessment of the significance of a particular input to the
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fair value measurement in its entirety requires judgment and considers factors specific to the asset or liability.

The valuation of the Company's derivative financial instruments is determined using widely accepted valuation techniques, including
discounted cash flow analysis on the expected cash flows of each derivative. This analysis reflects the contractual terms of the derivatives,
including the period to maturity, and uses observable market-based inputs, including interest rate curves. The fair values of interest rate swaps
are determined using the market standard methodology of netting the discounted future fixed cash payments (or receipts) and the discounted
expected variable cash receipts (or payments). The variable cash receipts (or payments) are based on an expectation of future interest rates
(forward curves) derived from observable market interest rate curves.

The Company incorporates credit valuation adjustments (CVAs) to appropriately reflect both its own nonperformance risk and the
respective counterparty's nonperformance risk in the fair value measurements. In adjusting the fair value of its derivative contracts for the effect
of nonperformance risk, the Company has considered the impact of netting and any applicable credit enhancements, such as collateral postings,
thresholds, mutual puts, and guarantees.

The Company has determined that the majority of the inputs used to value its derivatives fall within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
However, the CVAs associated with its derivatives utilize Level 3 inputs, such as estimates of current credit spreads to evaluate the likelihood of
default by itself and its counterparties. As of January 29, 2010, the Company has assessed the significance of the impact of the CVAs on the
overall valuation of its derivative positions and has determined that the CVAs are not significant to the overall valuation of its derivatives. Based
on the Company's review of the CVAs by counterparty portfolio, the Company has determined that the CVAs are not significant to the overall
portfolio valuations, as the CVAs are deemed to be immaterial in terms of basis points and are a very small percentage of the aggregate notional
value. Although some of the CVAs as a percentage of termination value appear to be more significant, primary emphasis was placed on a review
of the CVA in basis points and the percentage of the notional value. As a result, the Company has determined that its derivative valuations in
their entirety are classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
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The following table presents the Company's assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of January 29, 2010,
aggregated by the level in the fair value hierarchy within which those measurements fall.

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets Significant
for Identical Other Significant
Assets and Observable Unobservable Balance at
Liabilities Inputs Inputs January 29,
(In thousands) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) 2010
Assets:
Trading securities(a) $ 8822 §$ $ $ 8,822
Liabilities:
Long-term obligations(b) 3,519,171 24,644 3,543,815
Derivative financial instruments(c) 57,058 57,058
(a)
Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet as Prepaid expenses and other current assets of $1,617 and Other assets, net of
$7,205.
(b)
Reflected at book value in the consolidated balance sheet as Current portion of long-term obligations of $3,671 and Long-term
obligations of $3,399,715.
(©)

Reflected at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet as noncurrent Other liabilities.

The carrying amounts reflected in the consolidated balance sheets for cash, cash equivalents, short-term investments, receivables and
payables approximate their respective fair values. The Company does not have any fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs (Level 3) as of January 29, 2010.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in accordance with accounting standards for derivative instruments and hedging
activities. All financial instrument positions taken by the Company are intended to be used to reduce risk by hedging an underlying economic
exposure.

The Company records all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for changes in the fair value of derivatives depends
on the intended use of the derivative, whether the Company has elected to designate a derivative in a hedging relationship and apply hedge
accounting and whether the hedging relationship has satisfied the criteria necessary to apply hedge accounting. Derivatives designated and
qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to changes in the fair value of an asset, liability, or firm commitment attributable to a particular risk, such
as interest rate risk, are considered fair value hedges. Derivatives designated and qualifying as a hedge of the exposure to variability in expected
future cash flows, or other types of forecasted transactions, are considered cash flow hedges. Derivatives may also be designated as hedges of
the foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation. Hedge accounting generally provides for the matching of the timing of
gain or loss recognition on the hedging instrument with the recognition of the changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are
attributable to the hedged risk in a fair value hedge or the earnings effect of the hedged forecasted transactions in a cash flow hedge. The
Company may enter
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into derivative contracts that are intended to economically hedge a certain portion of its risk, even though hedge accounting does not apply or the
Company elects not to apply the hedge accounting standards.

The Company's derivative financial instruments, in the form of interest rate swaps at January 29, 2010, are related to variable interest rate
risk exposures associated with the Company's long-term debt and were entered into in an attempt to manage that risk. The counterparties to the
Company's derivative agreements are all major international financial institutions. The Company continually monitors its position and the credit
ratings of its counterparties and does not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparties, however, there can be no assurance that such
nonperformance will not occur.

Revenue and gain recognition

The Company recognizes retail sales in its stores at the time the customer takes possession of merchandise. All sales are net of discounts
and estimated returns and are presented net of taxes assessed by governmental authorities that are imposed concurrent with those sales. The
liability for retail merchandise returns is based on the Company's prior experience. The Company records gain contingencies when realized.

The Company recognizes gift card sales revenue at the time of redemption. The liability for the gift cards is established for the cash value at
the time of purchase. The liability for outstanding gift cards was approximately $1.9 million and $1.5 million at January 29, 2010 and
January 30, 2009, respectively, and is recorded in Accrued expenses and other. Through January 29, 2010, the Company has not recorded any
breakage income related to its gift card program.

Advertising costs

Advertising costs are expensed upon performance, "first showing" or distribution, and are reflected net of qualifying cooperative
advertising funds provided by vendors in SG&A expenses. Advertising costs were $41.5 million, $27.8 million, $23.6 million and $17.3 million
in 2009, 2008, and the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively. These costs primarily include promotional circulars, targeted
circulars supporting new stores, television and radio advertising, in-store signage, and costs associated with the sponsorships of certain
automobile racing activities. Vendor funding for cooperative advertising offset reported expenses by $9.0 million, $7.8 million, $6.6 million and
$2.0 million in 2009, 2008, and the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively.

Share-based payments

The Company recognizes compensation expense for share-based compensation based on the fair value of the awards on the grant date.
Forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuation and reduce expense ratably over the vesting period. This estimate is adjusted periodically based
on the extent to which actual forfeitures differ, or are expected to differ, from the prior estimate. The forfeiture rate is the estimated percentage
of options granted that are expected to be forfeited or canceled before becoming fully vested. The Company bases this estimate on historical
experience or estimates of future trends, as applicable. An increase in the forfeiture rate will decrease compensation expense.

72

88



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
1. Basis of presentation and accounting policies (Continued)

The fair value of each option grant is separately estimated and amortized into compensation expense on a straight-line basis between the
applicable grant date and each vesting date. The Company has estimated the fair value of all stock option awards as of the grant date by applying
the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing valuation model. The application of this valuation model involves assumptions that are judgmental and
highly sensitive in the determination of compensation expense.

The Company calculates compensation expense for nonvested restricted stock and similar awards as the difference between the market
price of the underlying stock on the grant date and the purchase price, if any, and recognizes such amount on a straight-line basis over the period
in which the recipient earns the nonvested restricted stock and similar awards.

Store pre-opening costs
Pre-opening costs related to new store openings and the construction periods are expensed as incurred.
Income taxes

Under the accounting standards for income taxes, the asset and liability method is used for computing the future income tax consequences
of events that have been recognized in the Company's consolidated financial statements or income tax returns. Deferred income tax expense or
benefit is the net change during the year in the Company's deferred income tax assets and liabilities.

As discussed in Note 6, effective February 3, 2007 the Predecessor modified its method of accounting for income taxes in connection with
the adoption of an accounting standard pertaining to uncertainty in income taxes. The adoption resulted in an $8.9 million decrease in retained
earnings and a reclassification of certain amounts between deferred income taxes and other noncurrent liabilities to conform to the revised
balance sheet presentation requirements. As of the date of adoption, the total reserve for uncertain tax benefits was $77.9 million. This reserve
excludes the federal income tax benefit for the uncertain tax positions related to state income taxes, which is now included in deferred tax assets.
As a result of the adoption of this standard, the reserve for interest expense related to income taxes was increased to $15.3 million and a reserve
for potential penalties of $1.9 million related to uncertain income tax positions was recorded. As of the date of adoption, approximately
$27.1 million of the reserve for uncertain tax positions would have impacted the Company's effective income tax rate subsequently if the
Company were to recognize the tax benefit for these positions.

Effective February 3, 2007, the Company has elected to record income tax related interest and penalties as a component of the provision for
income tax expense.

Income tax reserves are determined using a methodology which requires companies to assess each income tax position taken using a two
step process. A determination is first made as to whether it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained, based upon the technical
merits, upon examination by the taxing authorities. If the tax position is expected to meet the more likely than not criteria, the benefit recorded
for the tax position equals the largest amount that is greater than 50% likely to be realized upon ultimate settlement of the respective tax
position. Uncertain tax positions require determinations and estimated liabilities to be made based on provisions of the tax law which may be
subject to change or varying interpretation. If the Company's determinations and estimates
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prove to be inaccurate, the resulting adjustments could be material to the Company's future financial results.
Management estimates

The preparation of financial statements and related disclosures in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Accounting standards

In June 2009 the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued a new accounting standard which established the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") as the source of authoritative U.S. GAAP recognized by the FASB to be applied by
nongovernmental entities. Rules and interpretive releases of the Securities and Exchange Commission ("SEC") under authority of federal
securities laws are also sources of authoritative GAAP for SEC registrants, including the Company. On September 15, 2009, the effective date of
this standard, the ASC superseded all then-existing non-SEC accounting and reporting standards. All other nongrandfathered non-SEC
accounting literature not included in the ASC became nonauthoritative. The adoption of this statement did not have a material effect on the
Company's consolidated financial statements.

In June 2009 the FASB issued a new accounting standard relating to variable interest entities. This standard amends previous standards and
requires an enterprise to perform an analysis to determine whether the enterprise's variable interest or interests give it a controlling financial
interest in a variable interest entity, specifies updated criteria for determining the primary beneficiary, requires ongoing reassessments of
whether an enterprise is the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity, eliminates the quantitative approach previously required for
determining the primary beneficiary of a variable interest entity, amends certain guidance for determining whether an entity is a variable interest
entity, requires enhanced disclosures about an enterprise's involvement in a variable interest entity, and includes other provisions. This standard
will be effective as of the beginning of the Company's first interim and annual reporting periods that begin after November 15, 2009. Earlier
application is prohibited. This standard is not expected to have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

During the second quarter of 2009 the Company adopted the ASC Subsequent Events Topic. The objective of this topic is to establish
general standards of accounting for and disclosures of events that occur after the balance sheet date but before financial statements are issued or
are available to be issued. In particular, this topic sets forth the period after the balance sheet date during which management of a reporting entity
should evaluate events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, the circumstances under
which an entity should recognize events or transactions occurring after the balance sheet date in its financial statements, and the disclosures that
an entity should make about events or transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date. In February 2010 minor modifications were made
to this guidance. The adoption of these standards has not had a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.
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The Company adopted the additional disclosure provisions of the ASC Derivatives and Hedging Topic during the first quarter of 2009 as
discussed in Note 8. These standards require entities to provide greater transparency through additional disclosures about how and why an entity
uses derivative instruments, how derivative instruments and related hedged items are accounted for, and how derivative instruments and related
hedged items affect an entity's financial position, results of operations, and cash flows.

The Company changed its accounting for fair value of its nonfinancial assets and liabilities in connection with the adoption of certain
provisions of the ASC Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic effective January 31, 2009.

Reclassifications
Certain reclassifications of the 2007 and 2008 amounts have been made to conform to the 2009 presentation.
2. Initial public offering and special dividend

On November 18, 2009, the Company completed the initial public offering of its common stock. The Company issued 22,700,000 shares in
the offering, and an existing shareholder sold an additional 16,515,000 outstanding shares. Net proceeds to the Company from the offering of
$446.0 million were used to redeem outstanding debt, as discussed in more detail in Note 7 below. The Company paid a $4.8 million transaction
fee to Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co., L.P. ("KKR") and Goldman, Sachs & Co. in connection with the offering. Although this transaction fee
was not paid from the net proceeds of the offering, it was directly related to the offering and accounted for as a cost of raising equity.

Upon the completion of the offering, the Company incurred additional charges of $58.8 million for fees paid to terminate its advisory
agreement with KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. The transaction and termination fees paid to such parties are discussed in more detail in
Note 12 below. The Company also incurred charges of $9.4 million for the accelerated vesting of certain share-based awards as discussed in
more detail in Note 11 below.

On September 8, 2009, the Company's Board of Directors declared a special dividend on the Company's outstanding common stock
(including shares of restricted stock) of $0.7525 per share, or approximately $239.3 million in the aggregate, which was paid on September 11,
2009 to shareholders of record on September 8, 2009. The special dividend was paid with cash generated from operations. Pursuant to the terms
of the Company's stock option plans, holders of stock options received either a pro-rata adjustment to the terms of their share-based awards or a
cash payment (totaling approximately $0.5 million for all such grantees) in substitution for such adjustment as a result of the dividend.

3. Merger

On March 11, 2007, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the "Merger Agreement") with Buck Holdings L.P., a
Delaware limited partnership ("Buck"), and BAC, a Tennessee corporation and wholly owned subsidiary of Buck. Buck is and BAC was (prior
to the Merger) controlled by investment funds affiliated with KKR. On July 6, 2007, the transaction was consummated through a merger (the

"Merger") of BAC with and into the Company. The Company survived the

75

91



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. Merger (Continued)

Merger as a subsidiary of Buck. The Company's results of operations after July 6, 2007 include the effects of the Merger.

The aggregate purchase price was approximately $7.1 billion, including direct costs of the Merger, and was funded primarily through debt
financings as described more fully below in Note 7 and cash equity contributions from KKR, GS Capital Partners VI Fund, L.P. and affiliated
funds (affiliates of Goldman, Sachs & Co.), and other equity co-investors (collectively, the "Investors" of approximately $2.8 billion
(316.2 million shares of new common stock, $0.875 par value per share, valued at $8.75 per share). Also in connection with the Merger, certain
of the Company's management employees invested in and were issued new shares, representing less than 1% of the outstanding shares, in the
Company. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the former holders of the Predecessor's common stock, par value $0.50 per share,
received $22.00 per share, or approximately $6.9 billion, and all such shares were acquired as a result of the Merger.

As discussed in Note 1, the Merger was accounted for as a reverse acquisition in accordance with applicable purchase accounting
provisions. Because of this accounting treatment, the Company's assets and liabilities have properly been accounted for at their estimated fair
values as of the Merger date. The aggregate purchase price has been allocated to the tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities
assumed based upon an assessment of their relative fair values as of the Merger date.

The allocation of the purchase price is as follows (in thousands):

Cash and cash equivalents $ 349,615
Short-term investments 30,906
Merchandise inventories 1,368,130
Income taxes receivable 40,199
Deferred income taxes 57,176
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 63,204
Property and equipment, net 1,301,119
Goodwill 4,338,589
Intangible assets 1,396,612
Other assets, net 66,537
Current portion of long-term obligations (7,088)
Accounts payable (585,518)
Accrued expenses and other (306,394)
Income taxes payable (84)
Long-term obligations (267,927)
Deferred income taxes (540,675)
Other liabilities (208,710)
Total purchase price assigned $ 7,095,691

The purchase price allocation included approximately $4.34 billion of goodwill, none of which is expected to be deductible for tax
purposes. The goodwill balance at January 30, 2009 decreased $6.3 million from the balance at February 1, 2008 due to an adjustment to income
tax contingencies as further discussed in Note 6.
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The purchase price allocation as of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009 also included approximately $1.4 billion of other intangible
assets, as follows:

As of January 29, 2010

Estimated Accumulated
(In thousands) Useful Life Amount Amortization Net
Leasehold interests 2 to 17.5 years $ 184,168 $ 100,793 $ 83,375
Internally developed software 3 years 12,300 10,592 1,708
196,468 111,385 85,083
Trade names and trademarks Indefinite 1,199,200 1,199,200

$ 1,395,668 $ 111,385 § 1,284,283

As of January 30, 2009

Estimated Accumulated
(In thousands) Useful Life Amount Amortization Net
Leasehold interests 2to 17.5years  $ 184,570 $ 64,020 $ 120,550
Internally developed software 3 years 12,300 6,492 5,808
196,870 70,512 126,358
Trade names and trademarks Indefinite 1,199,200 1,199,200

$ 1,396,070 $ 70,512 $ 1,325,558

The Company recorded amortization expense related to amortizable intangible assets for 2009, 2008 and the 2007 Successor period of
$41.3 million, $45.0 million and $26.1 million, respectively, ($37.2 million, $40.9 million and $23.7 million, respectively, of which is included
in rent expense). Expected future cash flows associated with the Company's intangible assets are not expected to be materially affected by the
Company's intent or ability to renew or extend the arrangements.

For intangible assets subject to amortization, the estimated aggregate amortization expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as
follows: 2010 $27.2 million, 2011 $20.9 million, 2012 $17.0 million, 2013 $12.0 million, and 2014 $5.8 million.

Fees and expenses related to the Merger totaled $102.6 million, principally consisting of investment banking fees, legal fees and stock
compensation ($39.4 million as further discussed in Note 11), and are reflected in the 2007 results of operations. Capitalized debt issuance costs
as of the Merger date of $87.4 million for Merger-related financing were reflected in other long-term assets in the consolidated balance sheet.

The following represents the unaudited pro forma results of the Company's consolidated operations as if the Merger had occurred on
February 3, 2007, after giving effect to certain
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adjustments, including the depreciation and amortization of the assets acquired based on their estimated fair values and changes in interest
expense resulting from changes in consolidated debt:

Year Ended

February 1,
(In thousands) 2008
Revenue $ 9,495,246
Net loss (57,939)

The pro forma information does not purport to be indicative of what the Company's results of operations would have been if the acquisition
had in fact occurred at the beginning of the period presented, and is not intended to be a projection of the Company's future results of operations.

4. Earnings per share

Earnings (loss) per share is computed as follows (in thousands except per share data):

2009
Net Weighted Average Per Share
Successor Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per share $ 339,442 322,778  $ 1.05
Effect of dilutive share-based awards 2,058
Diluted earnings per share $ 339,442 324,836 $ 1.04
2008
Net Weighted Average Per Share
Successor Income Shares Amount
Basic earnings per share $ 108,182 317,024 $ 0.34
Effect of dilutive share-based awards 479
Diluted earnings per share $ 108,182 317,503 $ 0.34

March 6, 2007 through February 1, 2008

Net Weighted Average Per Share
Successor Loss Shares Amount
Basic earnings (loss) per share $ (4.818) 316,777 $ (0.02)
Effect of dilutive share-based awards
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ (4.818) 316,777 $ (0.02)

Basic earnings (loss) per share was computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings (loss) per share was determined based on the dilutive effect of share-based awards using the
treasury stock method.

Because of the Merger, the Company's weighted average shares outstanding for periods before and after the Merger are not comparable, as
further discussed in Note 1. As a result, earnings per share amounts for periods prior to the Merger are not presented herein.
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Options to purchase shares of common stock that were outstanding at the end of the respective periods, but were not included in the
computation of diluted earnings (loss) per share because the effect of exercising such options would be antidilutive, were 0.2 million,
12.1 million and 12.5 million in 2009, 2008 and the 2007 Successor period, respectively.

5. Property and equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost and summarized as follows:

Successor
January 29, January 30,

(In thousands) 2010 2009
Land and land improvements $ 137,903 $ 137,779
Buildings 520,867 518,933
Leasehold improvements 130,774 117,846
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 992,423 781,425
Construction in progress 10,406 5,025

1,792,373 1,561,008
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 463,987 292,048
Net property and equipment $ 1,328,386 $ 1,268,960

Depreciation expense related to property and equipment was approximately $201.1 million, $190.5 million, $116.9 million, and

$83.5 million for 2009, 2008, and the 2007 Successor and Predecessor periods, respectively. Amortization of capital lease assets is included in

depreciation expense.

6. Income taxes

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3, 2007
through through
(In thousands) 2009 2008 February 1, 2008 July 6, 2007
Current:
Federal $ 173,027 $ 10,489 $ (25,726) $ 31,114
Foreign 1,465 1,084 409 495
State 21,002 1,214 4,306 1,258
195,494 12,787 (21,011) 32,867
Deferred:
Federal 12,412 64,403 22,157 (18,750)
Foreign (49) 3)
State 4,817 9,034 (2,921) (2,124)
17,180 73,434 19,236 (20,874)
$ 212,674 $ 86,221 $ 1,775) $ 11,993
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A reconciliation between actual income taxes and amounts computed by applying the federal statutory rate to income before income taxes
is summarized as follows:

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3, 2007
through through

(Dollars in thousands) 2009 2008 February 1, 2008 July 6, 2007
U.S. federal statutory rate on earnings
before income taxes $ 193,241 35.0% $ 68,041 35.0% $ (2,308) 35.0% $ 1,399 35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal income
tax benefit 18,375 33 5,361 2.8 904 (13.7) (1,135) (28.4)
Jobs credits, net of federal income taxes (8,590) (1.6) 9,149) 4.7) (3,022) 45.8 (2,227) (55.7)
Increase (decrease) in valuation
allowances (1,722) (0.3) 3,038 1.6 551 13.8
Income tax related interest expense, net of
federal income tax benefit 1,289 0.2 (2,015) (1.0) 2,738 (41.5) a72)y  4.3)
Nondeductible Merger-related lawsuit
settlement (366) (0.1) 18,130 9.3
Nondeductible transaction costs 13,501 337.9
Other, net 10,447 2.0 2,815 1.4 &7) 1.3 76 1.9

$ 212,674 385% $ 86,221 44.4% $ (1,775) 269% $ 11,993 300.2%

The 2009 effective tax rate is an expense of 38.5%. This expense is greater than the expected tax rate of 35% due primarily to the inclusion
of state income taxes in the total effective tax rate. The 2009 effective tax rate is less than the 2008 rate of 44.4% due principally to the
unfavorable impact that the non-deductible, merger related lawsuit settlement had on the 2008 rate. This reduction in the effective tax rate was
partially offset by a decrease in the tax rate benefit related to federal jobs credits. While the total amount of jobs credits earned in 2009 was
similar to the amount earned in 2008, the impact of this benefit on the effective tax rate was reduced due to the 2009 increase in income before
tax.

The 2008 effective income tax rate is an expense of 44.4%. This expense is greater than the expected U.S. statutory tax rate of 35%
principally due to the non-deductibility of the settlement and related expenses associated with the Merger-related shareholder lawsuit.

The income tax rate for the Successor period ended February 1, 2008 is a benefit of 26.9%. This benefit is less than the expected U.S.
statutory rate of 35% due to the incurrence of state income taxes in several of the group's subsidiaries that file their state income tax returns on a
separate entity basis and the election to include, effective February 3, 2007, income tax related interest and penalties in the amount reported as
income tax expense.

The income tax rate for the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 is an expense of 300.2%. This expense is higher than the expected U.S.
statutory rate of 35% due principally to the non-deductibility of certain acquisition expenses related to the Merger.

80

98



6. Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred taxes reflect the effects of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company's deferred tax assets and liabilities are as

Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

follows:
Successor
January 29, January 30,
(In thousands) 2010 2009
Deferred tax assets:
Deferred compensation expense 7214 $ 5,350
Accrued expenses and other 4,223 4,815
Accrued rent 5,329 4,830
Accrued insurance 67,124 66,091
Accrued bonuses 26,112 23,016
Interest rate hedges 22,249 25,327
Tax benefit of income tax and interest reserves related to uncertain tax positions 9,498 11,859
Other 15,399 12,021
State tax net operating loss carryforwards, net of federal tax 7,000 9,252
State tax credit carryforwards, net of federal tax 15,696 13,545
179,844 176,106
Less valuation allowances (8,086) (9,808)
Total deferred tax assets 171,758 166,298
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property and equipment (177,171) (156,591)
Inventories (66,002) (38,901)
Trademarks (435,336) (431,654)
Amortizable assets (31,724) (47,446)
Insurance related tax method change (30,059) (42,641)
Other (2,699) (566)
Total deferred tax liabilities (742,991) (717,799)
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (571,233) $ (551,501)

Net deferred tax liabilities are reflected separately on the consolidated balance sheets as current and noncurrent deferred income taxes. The
following table summarizes net deferred tax liabilities as recorded in the consolidated balance sheets:

(In thousands)

Current deferred income tax assets (liabilities), net
Noncurrent deferred income tax liabilities, net

Net deferred tax liabilities

Successor
January 29, January 30,
2010 2009

$ (25,061) $ 4,600

(546,172) (556,101)

$ (571,233) $ (551,501)
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The Company has state net operating loss carryforwards as of January 29, 2010 that total approximately $203.9 million which will expire in
2017 through 2023. The Company also has state tax credit carryforwards of approximately $24.1 million that will expire beginning in 2010
through 2025.

The valuation allowance has been provided for federal capital losses and state tax credit carryforwards. The 2009 decrease of $1.7 million
was recorded as a reduction in income tax expense. The 2008 increase of $8.2 million was recorded as income tax expense of $3.0 million and
an adjustment to goodwill of $5.2 million. The full amount of the change in the valuation allowance for the 2007 Successor period, a decrease of
$4.2 million, was recorded as an adjustment to goodwill. The increase of $0.6 million in the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 was included
in income tax expense. Based upon expected future income, management believes that it is more likely than not that the results of operations will
generate sufficient taxable income to realize the deferred tax assets after giving consideration to the valuation allowance.

During 2008, goodwill recorded in connection with the Merger was reduced by $6.3 million principally as a result of the favorable
settlement of uncertain income tax positions that existed at the time of the Merger.

The Predecessor adopted the provisions of accounting standards relating to uncertain tax provisions effective February 3, 2007. The
adoption resulted in an $8.9 million decrease in retained earnings and a reclassification of certain amounts between deferred income taxes and
other noncurrent liabilities to conform to the balance sheet presentation requirements. As of the date of adoption, the total uncertain tax benefits
were $77.9 million. This amount excludes the federal income tax benefit for the uncertain tax positions related to state income taxes, which is
included in deferred tax assets. As a result of the adoption, the reserve for interest expense related to income taxes was increased to
$15.3 million and a reserve for potential penalties of $1.9 million related to uncertain income tax positions was recorded.

Subsequent to the adoption, the Company has elected to record income tax related interest and penalties as a component of the provision for
income tax expense.

The Internal Revenue Service ("IRS") is examining the Company's federal income tax returns for fiscal years 2005 and 2006. The 2004 and
earlier years are not open for examination. The 2007, 2008 and 2009 fiscal years, while not currently under examination, are subject to
examination at the discretion of the IRS. The Company has various state income tax examinations that are currently in progress. The estimated
liability related to these state income tax examinations is included in the Company's reserve for uncertain tax positions. Generally, the
Company's tax years ended in 2006 and forward remain open for examination by the various state taxing authorities.

As of January 29, 2010, accruals for uncertain tax benefits, interest expense related to income taxes and potential income tax penalties were
$67.6 million, $8.8 million and $1.7 million, respectively, for a total of $78.1 million. Of this amount, $8.5 million and $68.0 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenses and other and in noncurrent Other liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet
with the remaining $1.6 million reducing deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carry forwards.

During the fiscal year ended January 29, 2010, the Company included in its consolidated statement of operations a net increase of
$11.9 million, $2.3 million and $0.4 million related to uncertain tax benefits, interest expense related to income taxes and potential tax penalties,
respectively.
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As of January 30, 2009, accruals for uncertain tax benefits, interest expense related to income taxes and potential income tax penalties were
$59.1 million, $11.3 million and $1.5 million, respectively, for a total of $71.9 million. Of this amount, $20.8 million and $47.3 million are
reflected in current liabilities as Accrued expenses and other and in noncurrent Other liabilities, respectively, in the consolidated balance sheet
with the remaining $3.8 million reducing deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carry forwards.

During the year ended January 30, 2009, the Company included in its consolidated statement of operations a net increase of $0.8 million, a
net decrease of $1.0 million and a net increase of $0.3 million related to uncertain tax benefits, interest expense related to income taxes and
potential tax penalties, respectively. The net decrease in interest expense related to uncertain tax positions is due to the reduction during 2008 in
amounts previously accrued related to uncertain tax positions.

The change, from the date of adoption, through the end of the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 in the uncertain tax benefits, interest
expense related to income taxes and potential income tax penalties that impacted the consolidated statement of operations was a net increase of
$10.4 million and $0.2 million and a decrease of $0.4 million, respectively. The change, from the end of the Predecessor period ended July 6,
2007, through the end of the Successor period ended February 1, 2008, in the uncertain tax benefits and interest expense related to income taxes
that impacted the consolidated statement of operations was a net increase of $0.2 million and $4.2 million, respectively. There was no change in
the reserve for potential income tax penalties during the Successor period ended February 1, 2008.

The Company believes that it is reasonably possible that the reserve for uncertain tax positions may be reduced by approximately
$36.5 million in the coming twelve months principally as a result of the settlement of currently ongoing income tax examinations and the
anticipated filing of an income tax accounting method change request that is expected to resolve certain uncertainties related to accounting
methods employed by the Company. The reasonably possible change of $36.5 million is included in current liabilities in Accrued expenses and
other ($7.7 million) and in noncurrent Other liabilities ($28.8 million) in the consolidated balance sheet as of January 29, 2010. Also, as of
January 29, 2010, approximately $41.2 million of the uncertain tax positions would impact the Company's effective income tax rate if the
Company were to recognize the tax benefit for these positions.
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A reconciliation of the uncertain income tax positions from February 3, 2007 (the date of adoption) through January 29, 2010 is as follows:

(In thousands)

Balance as of February 3, 2007

Increases tax positions taken in the current year
Increases tax positions taken in prior years
Decrease tax positions taken in prior years
Statute expirations

Settlements

Balance as of February 1, 2008

Increases tax positions taken in the current year
Decrease tax positions taken in the current year
Increases tax positions taken in prior years
Decrease tax positions taken in prior years
Statute expirations

Settlements

Balance as of January 30, 2009

Increases tax positions taken in the current year
Increases tax positions taken in prior years
Decrease tax positions taken in prior years
Statute expirations

Settlements

Balance as of January 29, 2010

$ 77,864
19,568
1,149

©)

(185)
(1,787)

$ 96,600

25,977
(2,250)
3271
(58,607)
(1,955)
(3,979)

$ 59,057
13,701
4,039
(1,111)
(8,050)

$ 67,636
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Current and long-term obligations consist of the following:

Successor

(In thousands) January 29, 2010 January 30, 2009
Senior secured term loan facility $ 1,963,500 $ 2,300,000
ABL Facility
10%/3% Senior Notes due July 15, 2015, net of discount of $14,788 and $20,033, respectively 964,545 1,154,967
117/8/125/3% Senior Subordinated Notes due July 15, 2017 450,697 655,891
8%/38% Notes due June 15, 2010 1,822 1,822
Capital lease obligations 8,327 9,939
Tax increment financing due February 1, 2035 14,495 14,495

3,403,386 4,137,114
Less: current portion (3,671) (14,158)
Long-term portion $ 3,399,715 $ 4,122,956

The Company entered into two senior secured credit agreements (the "Credit Facilities") at the time of the Merger. As of January 29, 2010,
the Credit Facilities provide total financing of $2.995 billion, consisting of $1.964 billion in a senior secured term loan facility ("Term Loan
Facility") which matures on July 6, 2014, and a senior secured asset-based revolving credit facility ("ABL Facility") of up to $1.031 billion,
subject to borrowing base availability, which matures on July 6, 2013.

The amount available under the ABL Facility (including up to $350.0 million for letters of credit) may not exceed the borrowing base
(consisting of specified percentages of eligible inventory and credit card receivables less any applicable availability reserves). The ABL Facility
includes a $930.0 million tranche and a $101.0 million ("last out") tranche. Repayments of the ABL Facility will be applied to the
$101.0 million tranche only after all other tranches have been fully paid down.

Borrowings under the Credit Facilities bear interest at a rate equal to an applicable margin plus, at the Company's option, either (a) LIBOR
or (b) a base rate (which is usually equal to the prime rate). The applicable margin for borrowings is (i) under the Term Loan, 2.75% for LIBOR
borrowings and 1.75% for base-rate borrowings (ii) under the ABL Facility (except in the last out tranche described above) as of January 29,
2010 and January 30, 2009, 1.25% for LIBOR borrowings and 0.25% for base-rate borrowings and for any last out borrowings, 2.25% for
LIBOR borrowings and 1.25% for base-rate borrowings. The applicable margins for borrowings under the ABL Facility (except in the case of
last out borrowings) are subject to adjustment each quarter based on average daily excess availability under the ABL Facility. The interest rate
for borrowings under the Term Loan Facility was 3.0% and 3.4% (without giving effect to the interest rate swaps discussed in Note 8) as of
January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively.

In addition to paying interest on outstanding principal under the Credit Facilities, the Company is required to pay a commitment fee to the
lenders under the ABL Facility for any unutilized commitments. The commitment fee rate is 0.375% per annum. The commitment fee rate will

be reduced (except with regard to the last out tranche) to 0.25% per annum at any time that the
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unutilized commitments under the ABL Facility are equal to or less than 50% of the aggregate commitments under the ABL Facility. The
Company also must pay customary letter of credit fees.

The senior secured credit agreement for the Term Loan Facility requires the Company to prepay outstanding term loans, subject to certain
exceptions, with percentages of excess cash flow, proceeds of non-ordinary course asset sales or dispositions of property, and proceeds of
incurrences of certain debt. In addition, the senior secured credit agreement for the ABL Facility requires the Company to prepay the ABL
Facility, subject to certain exceptions, with proceeds of non-ordinary course asset sales or dispositions of property and any borrowings in excess
of the then current borrowing base. The Term Loan Facility can be prepaid in whole or in part at any time.

Beginning September 30, 2009, the Company was required to repay installments on the loans under the Term Loan Facility in equal
quarterly principal amounts in an aggregate amount per annum equal to 1% of the total funded principal amount at July 6, 2007. During 2009,
the Company paid two such quarterly installments totaling $11.5 million. In addition, in January 2010 the Company voluntarily prepaid
$325 million of the principal balance of the Term Loan Facility, and as a result, no further quarterly principal installments will be required prior
to maturity of the Term Loan Facility on July 6, 2014. The Company incurred a pretax loss of $4.7 million for the write off of debt issuance
costs associated with this prepayment.

All obligations under the Credit Facilities are unconditionally guaranteed by substantially all of the Company's existing and future domestic
subsidiaries (excluding certain immaterial subsidiaries and certain subsidiaries designated by the Company under the Credit Facilities as
"unrestricted subsidiaries").

All obligations and guarantees of those obligations under the Term Loan Facility are secured by, subject to certain exceptions, a
second-priority security interest in all existing and after-acquired inventory and accounts receivable; a first priority security interest in
substantially all of the Company's and the guarantors' tangible and intangible assets (other than the inventory and accounts receivable collateral);
and a first-priority pledge of the capital stock held by the Company. All obligations under the ABL Facility are secured by all existing and
after-acquired inventory and accounts receivable, subject to certain exceptions.

The Credit Facilities contain certain covenants, including, among other things, covenants that limit the Company's ability to incur additional
indebtedness, sell assets, incur additional liens, pay dividends, make investments or acquisitions, or repay certain indebtedness.

Under the ABL facility, for the year ended January 29, 2010, the Company had no borrowings or repayments; for the year ended
January 30, 2009, the Company had no borrowings and repayments of $102.5 million; and for the 2007 Successor period the Company had
borrowings of $1.522 billion and repayments of $1.420 billion. As of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively, the Company had no
borrowings, $85.1 million and $83.7 million of standby letters of credit, and $15.4 million and $51.0 million of commercial letters of credit,
outstanding under the ABL Facility, with excess availability under the ABL Facility of $930.6 million and $932.8 million.

On July 6, 2007, in conjunction with the Merger, the Company issued $1.175 billion aggregate principal amount of 10.625% senior notes
due 2015 (the "Senior Notes") which were issued net of a discount of $23.2 million and which mature on July 15, 2015 pursuant to an indenture,
dated as of July 6, 2007 (the "senior indenture"), and $725 million aggregate principal amount of 11.875%/12.625%
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senior subordinated toggle notes due 2017 (the "Senior Subordinated Notes"), which mature on July 15, 2017, pursuant to an indenture, dated as
of July 6, 2007 (the "senior subordinated indenture"). The Senior Notes and the Senior Subordinated Notes are collectively referred to herein as
the "Notes". The senior indenture and the senior subordinated indenture are collectively referred to herein as the "indentures".

Interest on the Notes is payable on January 15 and July 15 of each year. Interest on the Senior Notes is payable in cash. Cash interest on the
Senior Subordinated Notes accrues at a rate of 11.875% per annum. For certain interest periods, the Company may elect to pay interest on the
Senior Subordinated Notes by increasing the principal amount of the Senior Subordinated Notes or issuing new senior subordinated notes ("PIK
interest") at a rate of 12.625% per annum. Through January 29, 2010, all interest on the Notes has been paid in cash.

The Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed by each of the existing and future direct or indirect wholly owned domestic subsidiaries
that guarantee the obligations under the Company's Credit Facilities.

The Company may redeem some or all of the Notes at any time at redemption prices described or set forth in the indentures. In addition, the
holders of the Notes can require the Company to redeem the Notes at 101% of the aggregate principal amount outstanding in the event of certain
change in control events. In connection with the Company's November 2009 initial public offering, as further discussed in Note 2, the Company
repurchased $195.7 million of the Senior Notes and $205.2 million of the Senior Subordinated Notes at redemption prices of 110.625% and
111.875%, respectively, plus accrued and unpaid interest, resulting in a pretax loss totaling $50.6 million. In January 2009 and January 2008, the
Company repurchased $44.1 million and $25.0 million, respectively, of the Senior Subordinated Notes, resulting in pretax gains of $3.8 million
and $4.9 million, respectively. Pretax gains and losses associated with the redemption of the Notes are reflected in Other (income) expense in the
consolidated statements of operations.

The indentures contain certain covenants, including, among other things, covenants that limit the Company's ability to incur additional
indebtedness, create liens, sell assets, enter into transactions with affiliates, or consolidate or dispose of all of its assets.

Scheduled debt maturities for the Company's fiscal years listed below are as follows (in thousands): 2010 $3,572; 2011 $1,177; 2012 $802;
2013 $292;2014 $1,963,815; thereafter $1,448,417.

On July 6, 2007, immediately after the completion of the Merger, the Company completed a cash tender offer to purchase any and all of its
$200 million principal amount of 8°/3% Notes due June 2010 (the "2010 Notes"). Approximately 99% of the 2010 Notes were validly tendered
and accepted for payment. The tender offer included a consent payment equal to 3% of the par value of the 2010 Notes, and such payments
along with associated settlement costs totaling $6.2 million were paid and reflected as Other (income) expense in the 2007 Successor period
presented.

8. Derivative financial instruments

The Company is exposed to certain risks arising from both its business operations and economic conditions. The Company principally
manages its exposures to a wide variety of business and operational risks through management of its core business activities. The Company
manages economic risks, including interest rate, liquidity, and credit risk, primarily by managing the amount, sources, and
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duration of its debt funding and the use of derivative financial instruments. Specifically, the Company enters into derivative financial
instruments to manage exposures that arise from business activities that result in the receipt or payment of future known and uncertain cash
amounts, the value of which are determined primarily by interest rates. The Company's derivative financial instruments are used to manage
differences in the amount, timing, and duration of the Company's known or expected cash receipts and its known or expected cash payments
principally related to the Company's borrowings.

In addition, the Company is exposed to certain risks arising from uncertainties of future market values caused by the fluctuation in the
prices of commodities. From time to time the Company has entered into derivative financial instruments to protect against future price changes
related to transportation costs associated with forecasted distribution of inventory.

Cash flow hedges of interest rate risk

The Company's objectives in using interest rate derivatives are to add stability to interest expense and to manage its exposure to interest rate
changes. To accomplish this objective, the Company primarily uses interest rate swaps as part of its interest rate risk management strategy.
Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts from a counterparty in exchange for the
Company making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional amount.

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives designated and that qualify as cash flow hedges is recorded in Accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) (also referred to as "OCI") and is subsequently reclassified into earnings in the period that the hedged
forecasted transaction affects earnings. Subsequent to the Merger, these transactions represent the only amounts reflected in Accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) in the consolidated statements of shareholders' equity. During the year ended January 29, 2010, such derivatives
were used to hedge the variable cash flows associated with existing variable-rate debt. The ineffective portion of the change in fair value of the
derivatives is recognized directly in earnings.

As of January 29, 2010, the Company had four interest rate swaps with a combined notional value of $1.42 billion that were designated as
cash flow hedges of interest rate risk. Amounts reported in Accumulated other comprehensive loss related to derivatives will be reclassified to
interest expense as interest payments are made on the Company's variable-rate debt. The Company terminated an interest rate swap in October
2008 due to the bankruptcy declaration of the counterparty bank. The Company continues to report the net gain or loss related to the
discontinued cash flow hedge in OCI and such net gain or loss is being reclassified into earnings during the original contractual terms of the
swap agreement as the hedged interest payments are expected to occur as forecasted. During the next 52-week period, the Company estimates
that an additional $41.5 million will be reclassified as an increase to interest expense for all of its interest rate swaps.

Non-designated hedges of commodity risk

Derivatives not designated as hedges are not speculative and are used to manage the Company's exposure to commodity price risk but do
not meet strict hedge accounting requirements. In February 2009, the Company entered into a commodity hedge related to diesel fuel to limit its
exposure to variability in diesel fuel prices and their effect on transportation costs. Changes in the fair value of
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derivatives not designated in hedging relationships are recorded directly in earnings. As of January 29, 2010, the Company had no outstanding
commodity hedges.

The table below presents the fair value of the Company's derivative financial instruments as well as their classification on the consolidated
balance sheet as of January 29, 2010:

Tabular Disclosure of Fair Values of Derivative Instruments

Asset Derivatives Liability Derivatives
(In thousands) As of January 29, 2010 As of January 29, 2010
Balance Sheet Balance Sheet
Classification Fair Value Classification Fair Value

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
Interest rate swaps Other liabilities $ 57,058

The tables below present the pre-tax effect of the Company's derivative financial instruments on the consolidated statement of operations
(including OCI) for the year ended January 29, 2010:

Tabular Disclosure of the Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the year ended January 29, 2010

Amount of
Location of (Gain)
(In thousands) Gain or or Loss
Amount of Loss Recognized Recognized
Amount of (Gain) or in in Income on
(Gain) or  Location of Gain Loss Income on Derivative
Loss or Reclassified Derivative (Ineffective
Recognized Loss Reclassified from (Ineffective Portion
in from Accumulated Portion and Amount
Derivatives in OCI on Accumulated OCI into and Amount Excluded
Cash Flow Derivative  OCI into Income Income Excluded from from
Hedging (Effective (Effective (Effective Effectiveness Effectiveness
Relationships Portion) Portion) Portion) Testing) Testing)
Other (income)
Interest rate swaps $ 42,324 Interest expense $ 50,140 expense $ 618
Amount of
Location of Gain or (Gain) or Loss
Loss Recognized in Recognized in
Income on Income on
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedging Instruments Derivative Derivative
Commodity hedges Other (income) expense $ (341)

Credit-risk-related contingent features

The Company has agreements with all of its interest rate swap counterparties that contain a provision providing that the Company could be
declared in default on its derivative obligations if repayment of the underlying indebtedness is accelerated by the lender due to the Company's
default on such indebtedness.
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As of January 29, 2010, the fair value of interest rate swaps in a net liability position, which includes accrued interest but excludes the
adjustment for nonperformance risk related to these agreements, was $59.2 million. As of January 29, 2010, the Company had not posted any
collateral related to these agreements. If the Company had breached any of these provisions at January 29, 2010, it would have been required to
settle its obligations under the agreements at their termination value of $59.2 million.

9. Commitments and contingencies
Leases

As of January 29, 2010, the Company was committed under operating lease agreements for most of its retail stores. Many of the Company's
stores are subject to build-to-suit arrangements with landlords which typically carry a primary lease term of 10-15 years with multiple renewal
options. The Company also has stores subject to shorter-term leases (usually with initial or current terms of three to five years), and many of
these leases have multiple renewal options. Approximately 38% of the leased stores have provisions for contingent rentals based upon a
specified percentage of defined sales volume. The land and buildings of two of the Company's DCs are subject to operating lease agreements
and a third DC is subject to a financing arrangement. Certain leases contain restrictive covenants. As of January 29, 2010, the Company is not
aware of any material violations of such covenants.

The Company leases three of its DCs. The entities involved in the ownership structure underlying these leases meet the accounting
definition of a Variable Interest Entity ("VIE"). As discussed below, one of these DCs has been recorded as a financing obligation. The land and
buildings of the other two DCs have been recorded as operating leases. The Company is not the primary beneficiary of these VIEs and,
accordingly, has not included these entities in its consolidated financial statements.

In January 1999, the Company sold its DC located in Ardmore, Oklahoma for 100% cash consideration. Concurrent with the sale
transaction, the Company leased the property back for a period of 23 years. The transaction was recorded as a financing obligation rather than a
sale as a result of, among other things, the lessor's ability to put the property back to the Company under certain circumstances. The property and
equipment, along with the related lease obligation associated with this transaction are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets. In August
2007, the Company purchased a secured promissory note (the "Ardmore Note") from an unrelated third party with a face value of $34.3 million
at the date of purchase which approximated the remaining financing obligation. The Ardmore Note represents debt issued by the third party
entity from which the Company leases the Ardmore DC and therefore the Company holds the debt instrument pertaining to its lease financing
obligation. Because a legal right of offset exists, the Company is accounting for the Ardmore Note as a reduction of its outstanding financing
obligation in its consolidated balance sheets.
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Future minimum payments as of January 29, 2010 for capital and operating leases are as follows:

Capital Operating
(In thousands) Leases Leases
2010 $ 229 $ 423,813
2011 1,558 391,031
2012 1,135 342,811
2013 599 283,496
2014 602 226,189
Thereafter 5,237 657,697
Total minimum payments 11,426 $ 2,325,037
Less: imputed interest (3,099)
Present value of net minimum lease payments 8,327
Less: current portion, net (1,849)
Long-term portion $ 6478

Capital leases were discounted at an effective interest rate of approximately 5.7% at January 29, 2010. The gross amount of property and
equipment recorded under capital leases and financing obligations at both January 29, 2010 and at January 30, 2009, was $34.8 million.
Accumulated depreciation on property and equipment under capital leases and financing obligations at January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009,
was $6.9 million and $5.3 million, respectively.

Rent expense under all operating leases is as follows:

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3, 2007
through through
(In thousands) 2009 2008 February 1, 2008 July 6, 2007
Minimum rentals(a) $ 407,379 $ 370,827 $ 205,672 $ 143,188
Contingent rentals 21,248 18,796 8,780 6,964
$ 428,627 $ 389,623 $ 214,452 $ 150,152

(@)
Excludes net contract termination costs of $2.5 million, $2.4 million and $19.1 million for the Successor periods ended January 30,
2009 and February 1, 2008 and the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007, respectively. These expenses were recorded in association
with the closing of stores associated with strategic initiatives implemented primarily in 2007. Also excludes amortization of leasehold
interests of $37.2 million, $40.9 million and $23.7 million included in rent expense for the Successor periods ended January 29, 2010,
January 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008, respectively.

Legal proceedings

On August 7, 2006, a lawsuit entitled Cynthia Richter, et al. v. Dolgencorp, Inc., et al. was filed in the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Alabama (Case No. 7:06-cv-01537-LSC) ("Richter") in which the plaintiff alleges that she and other current and former
Dollar General store managers were improperly classified as exempt executive employees under the Fair Labor Standards
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Act ("FLSA") and seeks to recover overtime pay, liquidated damages, and attorneys' fees and costs. On August 15, 2006, the Richter plaintiff
filed a motion in which she asked the court to certify a nationwide class of current and former store managers. The Company opposed the
plaintiff's motion. On March 23, 2007, the court conditionally certified a nationwide class.

On May 30, 2007, the court stayed all proceedings in the case, including the sending of a notice to the class, to evaluate, among other
things, certain appeals pending in the Eleventh Circuit involving claims similar to those raised in this action. During the stay, the statute of
limitations was tolled for potential class members. The stay was extended on several occasions, the last of which expired on October 31, 2009.
On December 2, 2009, notice was mailed to over 28,000 current or former Dollar General store managers, and approximately 3,860 individuals
opted into the lawsuit.

The Company believes that its store managers are and have been properly classified as exempt employees under the FLSA and that this
action is not appropriate for collective action treatment. The Company intends to vigorously defend this action and expects to ask the court to
decertify the class at the conclusion of the discovery period. However, at this time, it is not possible to predict whether the court ultimately will
permit this action to proceed collectively, and no assurances can be given that the Company will be successful in the defense on the merits or
otherwise. If the Company is not successful in its efforts to defend this action, the resolution could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial statements as a whole.

On May 18, 2006, the Company was served with a lawsuit entitled Tammy Brickey, Becky Norman, Rose Rochow, Sandra Cogswell and
Melinda Sappington v. Dolgencorp, Inc. and Dollar General Corporation (Western District of New York, Case No. 6:06-cv-06084-DGL,
originally filed on February 9, 2006 and amended on May 12, 2006 ("Brickey")). The Brickey plaintiffs seek to proceed collectively under the
FLSA and as a class under New York, Ohio, Maryland and North Carolina wage and hour statutes on behalf of, among others, assistant store
managers who claim to be owed wages (including overtime wages) under those statutes. At this time, it is not possible to predict whether the
court will permit this action to proceed collectively or as a class. However, the Company believes that this action is not appropriate for either
collective or class treatment and that the Company's wage and hour policies and practices comply with both federal and state law. The Company
plans to vigorously defend this action; however, no assurances can be given that the Company will be successful in the defense on the merits or
otherwise, and, if it is not successful, the resolution of this action could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial statements as a
whole.

On March 7, 2006, a complaint was filed in the United States District Court for the Northern District of Alabama (Janet Calvert v.
Dolgencorp, Inc., Case No. 2:06-cv-00465-VEH ("Calvert")), in which the plaintiff, a former store manager, alleged that she was paid less than
male store managers because of her sex, in violation of the Equal Pay Act and Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended ("Title
VII"). The complaint subsequently was amended to include additional plaintiffs, who also allege to have been paid less than males because of
their sex, and to add allegations that the Company's compensation practices disparately impact females. Under the amended complaint, Plaintiffs
seek to proceed collectively under the Equal Pay Act and as a class under Title VII, and request back wages, injunctive and declaratory relief,
liquidated damages, punitive damages and attorney's fees and costs.

On July 9, 2007, the plaintiffs filed a motion in which they asked the court to approve the issuance of notice to a class of current and former
female store managers under the Equal Pay Act. The

92

112



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

9. Commitments and contingencies (Continued)

Company opposed plaintiffs' motion. On November 30, 2007, the court conditionally certified a nationwide class of females under the Equal Pay
Act who worked for Dollar General as store managers between November 30, 2004 and November 30, 2007. The notice was issued on

January 11, 2008, and persons to whom the notice was sent were required to opt into the suit by March 11, 2008. Approximately 2,100
individuals have opted into the lawsuit. The Company will have an opportunity at the close of the discovery period to seek decertification of the
Equal Pay Act class, and the Company expects to file such motion.

The plaintiffs have not yet moved for class certification relating to their Title VII claims. The Company expects such motion to be filed
within the next few months and will strenuously oppose such a motion.

At this time, it is not possible to predict whether the court ultimately will permit the Calvert action to proceed collectively under the Equal
Pay Act or as a class under Title VII. However, the Company believes that the case is not appropriate for class or collective treatment and that its
policies and practices comply with the Equal Pay Act and Title VII. The Company intends to vigorously defend the action; however, no
assurances can be given that the Company will be successful in the defense on the merits or otherwise. If the Company is not successful in
defending the Calvert action, its resolution could have a material adverse effect on the Company's financial statements as a whole.

On July 30, 2008, the Company was served with a complaint filed in the District Court for Dallas County, lowa (Julie Cox, et al. v.
Dolgencorp, Inc., et al Case No. LACV-034423) in which the plaintiff, a former store manager, alleges that the Company discriminates against
pregnant employees on the basis of sex and retaliates against employees in violation of the Iowa Civil Rights Act. Cox seeks to represent a class
of "all current, former and future employees from the State of lowa who are employed by Dollar General who suffered from, are currently
suffering from or in the future may suffer from" alleged sex/pregnancy discrimination and retaliation and seeks declaratory and injunctive relief
as well as equitable, compensatory and punitive damages and attorneys' fees and costs.

At this time, it is not possible to predict whether the court ultimately will permit the Cox action to proceed as a class. However, the
Company believes that the case is not appropriate for class treatment and that its policies and practices comply with the lowa Civil Rights Act.
The Company intends to vigorously defend the action; however, no assurances can be given that the Company will be successful in the defense
on the merits or otherwise. If the Company is not successful in defending this action, its resolution could have a material adverse effect on the
Company's financial statements as a whole.

Subsequent to the announcement of the agreement relating to the Merger, the Company and its directors were named in seven putative class
actions alleging claims for breach of fiduciary duty arising out of the Company's proposed sale to investment funds affiliated with KKR. Each of
the complaints alleged, among other things, that the Company's directors engaged in "self-dealing" by agreeing to recommend the transaction to
the Company's shareholders and that the consideration available to such shareholders in the transaction was unfairly low. On motion of the
plaintiffs, each of these cases was transferred to the Sixth Circuit Court for Davidson County, Twentieth Judicial District, at Nashville. By order
dated April 26, 2007, the seven lawsuits were consolidated in the court under the caption, "In re: Dollar General," Case No. 07MD-1. On
June 13, 2007, the court denied the Plaintiffs' motion for a temporary injunction to block the shareholder vote that was then held on June 21,
2007. On June 22, 2007, the Plaintiffs filed their amended complaint making claims substantially similar to those
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outlined above. The court on November 6, 2008 certified a class of all persons who held stock in the Company on the date of the Merger. The
defendants filed for summary judgment.

On November 24, 2008, all defendants, including the Company, reached an agreement in principle to settle this lawsuit, subject to final
documentation and court approval. The Company determined that the agreement would be in the best interest of the Company to avoid costly
and time consuming litigation. Based on the agreement in principle, the Company recorded a charge of approximately $32.0 million in the third
and fourth quarters of 2008 in connection with the proposed settlement, which was net of insurance proceeds of $10.0 million which was
collected in the fourth quarter of 2008. On February 2, 2009, the Company funded the $40.0 million settlement, and on February 11, 2009, the
court approved the terms of the settlement.

From time to time, the Company is a party to various other legal actions involving claims incidental to the conduct of its business, including
actions by employees, consumers, suppliers, government agencies, or others through private actions, class actions, administrative proceedings,
regulatory actions or other litigation, including under federal and state employment laws and wage and hour laws. The Company believes, based
upon information currently available, that such other litigation and claims, both individually and in the aggregate, will be resolved without a
material adverse effect on the Company's financial statements as a whole. However, litigation involves an element of uncertainty. Future
developments could cause these actions or claims to have a material adverse effect on the Company's results of operations, cash flows, or
financial position. In addition, certain of these lawsuits, if decided adversely to the Company or settled by the Company, may result in liability
material to the Company's financial position or may negatively affect operating results if changes to the Company's business operation are
required.

Other

In August 2008, the Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act of 2008 was signed into law. This law addresses, among other things, the
permissible levels of lead and listed phthalates in certain products. The first tier of new standards for permissible levels of lead and phthalates
became effective in February 2009; the second tier became effective in August 2009. To ensure compliance, the Company undertook a process
to identify, mark down and cease the sale of any remaining inventory that would be impacted by the new law. The impact of this process was not
material to the Company's consolidated financial statements.

10. Benefit plans

The Dollar General Corporation 401(k) Savings and Retirement Plan, which became effective on January 1, 1998, is a safe harbor defined
contribution plan and is subject to the Employee Retirement and Income Security Act ("ERISA").

Participants are permitted to contribute between 1% and 25% of their pre-tax annual eligible compensation as defined in the 401(k) plan
document, subject to certain limitations under the Internal Revenue Code. Employees who are over age 50 are permitted to contribute additional
amounts on a pre-tax basis under the catch-up provision of the 401(k) plan subject to Internal Revenue Code limitations. The Company currently
matches employee contributions, including catch-up contributions, at a rate of 100% of employee contributions up to 5% of annual eligible
salary, after an employee has been employed for one year and has completed a minimum of 1,000 hours of service.
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A participant's right to claim a distribution of his or her account balance is dependent on ERISA guidelines and Internal Revenue Service
regulations. All active employees are fully vested in all contributions to the 401(k) plan. During 2009, 2008, and the 2007 Successor and
Predecessor periods, the Company expensed approximately $8.4 million, $8.0 million, $4.3 million and $3.0 million, respectively, for matching
contributions. The Merger did not significantly impact the comparability of such expense amounts between periods.

The Company also has a nonqualified supplemental retirement plan ("SERP") and compensation deferral plan ("CDP"), known as the
Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan, for a select group of management and highly compensated employees. The supplemental
retirement plan is a noncontributory defined contribution plan with annual Company contributions ranging from 2% to 12% of base pay plus
bonus depending upon age plus years of service and job grade. Under the CDP, participants may defer up to 65% of base pay and up to 100% of
bonus pay. An employee may be designated for participation in one or both of the plans, according to the eligibility requirements of the plans.
The Company matches base pay deferrals at a rate of 100% of base pay deferral, up to 5% of annual salary, with annual salary offset by the
amount of match-eligible salary in the 401(k) plan. All participants are 100% vested in their CDP accounts. The Company incurred
compensation expense for these plans of approximately $1.9 million in 2009, $1.2 million in 2008, $0.3 million in the 2007 Successor period
and $0.5 million in the 2007 Predecessor period.

The CDP/SERP Plan assets are invested at the option of the participant in an account that mirrors the performance of a fund or funds
selected by the Company's Compensation Committee or its delegate (the "Mutual Fund Options") or, prior to the Merger, in funds selected by
the Company's Compensation Committee or its delegate and/or in an account that mirrored the performance of the Company's common stock
(the "Common Stock Option"). Effective August 2, 2008, the deemed fund options under the CDP/SERP Plan were changed to mirror the same
fund options offered under the 401(k) plan.

Vested amounts are payable at the time designated by the plan upon the participant's termination of employment or retirement, except that
participants may elect to receive an in-service distribution or an "unforeseeable emergency hardship" distribution of vested amounts credited to
the CDP account. Account balances deemed to be invested in the Mutual Fund Options are payable in cash and, prior to the Merger, account
balances deemed to be invested in the Common Stock Option were payable in shares of Dollar General common stock and cash in lieu of
fractional shares.

As a result of the Merger, the CDP/SERP Plan liabilities as of the Merger date were fully funded into an irrevocable rabbi trust. All account
balances deemed to be invested in the Common Stock Option were liquidated at a value of $22.00 per share and the proceeds were transferred to
an existing Mutual Fund Option within the Plan.

Asset balances in the Mutual Funds Options are stated at fair market value, which is based on quoted market prices. The current portion of
these balances is included in Prepaid expenses and other current assets and the long term portion is included in Other assets, net in the
consolidated balance sheets. The deferred compensation liability related to the Mutual Funds Options is recorded at the fair value of the
investment options as chosen by the participants. The current portion of these balances is included in Accrued expenses and other and the long
term portion is included in Other liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
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The Company accounts for share-based payments in accordance with applicable accounting standards. Under these standards, the fair value
of each award is separately estimated and amortized into compensation expense over the service period. The fair value of the Company's stock
option grants are estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. Forfeitures are estimated at the time of valuation
and reduce expense ratably over the vesting period. The application of this valuation model involves assumptions that are judgmental and highly
sensitive in the determination of compensation expense.

Prior to the Merger, the Company maintained various share-based compensation programs which included options, restricted stock and
restricted stock units. In connection with the Merger, the Company's outstanding stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units became
fully vested immediately prior to the closing of the Merger and were settled in cash, canceled or, in limited circumstances, exchanged for new
options of the Company, as described below. Unless exchanged for new options, each option holder received an amount in cash, without interest
and less applicable withholding taxes, equal to $22.00 less the exercise price of each in-the-money option. Additionally, each restricted stock
and restricted stock unit holder received $22.00 in cash, without interest and less applicable withholding taxes. Certain stock options held by
Company management were exchanged for new options to purchase common stock in the Company (the "Rollover Options"). The exercise price
of the Rollover Options and the number of shares of Company common stock underlying the Rollover Options were adjusted as a result of the
Merger. The Rollover Options otherwise continue under the terms of the equity plan under which the original options were issued.

On July 6, 2007, the Company's Board of Directors adopted the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees, which Plan was
subsequently amended (as so amended, the "Plan"). The Plan provides for the granting of stock options, stock appreciation rights, and other
stock-based awards or dividend equivalent rights to key employees, directors, consultants or other persons having a service relationship with the
Company, its subsidiaries and certain of its affiliates. The number of shares of Company common stock authorized for grant under the Plan is
31,142,858. No more than 4.5 million shares may be granted to any one Plan participant in the form of stock options and stock appreciation
rights in any given fiscal year of the Company, and no more than 1.5 million shares may be granted to any one Plan participant in the form of
other stock-based awards in any given fiscal year of the Company. As of January 29, 2010, 17,495,729 of such shares are available for future
grants.

During 2009, 2008 and the 2007 Successor period, the Company granted options that vest solely upon the continued employment of the
recipient ("Time Options") as well as options that vest upon the achievement of predetermined annual or cumulative financial-based targets
("Performance Options"). According to the award terms, 20% of each of the Time Options and Performance Options generally vest annually
over a five-year period, and virtually all Time Options and Performance Options granted through January 29, 2010 have been subject to these
terms. However, in late 2009, the Company began granting awards whereby 25% of each of the Time Options and Performance Options
generally vest annually over a four-year period. In the event the performance target is not achieved in any given annual performance period, the
Performance Options for that period will subsequently vest, if at all, upon the achievement of a cumulative performance target. Vesting of the
Time Options and Performance Options is also subject to acceleration in the event of an earlier change in control or certain public offerings of
the Company's common stock. Each of these options, whether Time Options or Performance Options have a contractual term of 10 years and an
exercise price equal to the fair value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
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Both the Time Options and the Performance Options are subject to various provisions set forth in a management stockholder's agreement
entered into with each option holder by which the Company may require the employee, upon termination, to sell to the Company any vested
options or shares received upon exercise of the Time Options or Performance Options at amounts that differ based upon the reason for the
termination. In particular, in the event that the employee resigns "without good reason" (as defined in the management stockholder's agreement),
then any options whether or not then exercisable are forfeited and any shares received upon prior exercise of such options are callable at the
Company's option at an amount equal to the lesser of fair value or the amount paid for the shares (i.e., the exercise price). In such cases, because
the employee would not benefit in any share appreciation over the exercise price, for accounting purposes such options are not considered vested
until the expiration of the Company's call option, which is generally five years subsequent to the date of grant. Accordingly, all references to the
vesting provisions or vested status of the options discussed in this note give effect to the vesting pursuant to these accounting provisions and
may differ from descriptions of the vesting status of the Time Options and Performance Options located elsewhere in the Company's Annual
Report on Form 10-K. The Company records expense for Time Options on a straight-line basis over the term of the management stockholder's
agreement (generally five years).

Each of the Company's management-owned shares, Rollover Options, and vested new options include certain provisions by which the
holder of such shares, Rollover Options, or vested new options may require the Company to repurchase such instruments in limited
circumstances. Specifically, each such instrument is subject to a put right for a period of 365 days after termination due to the death or disability
of the holder of the instrument that occurs generally within five years from the date of grant. In such circumstances, the holder of such
instruments may require the Company to repurchase any shares at the fair market value of such shares and any Rollover Options or vested new
options at a price equal to the intrinsic value of such Rollover or vested new options. Because the Company does not have control over the
circumstances in which it may be required to repurchase the outstanding shares or Rollover Options, such shares and Rollover Options, valued at
$14.4 million and $4.1 million, respectively, at January 29, 2010, and $9.7 million and $4.2 million, respectively, at January 30, 2009, have been
classified as Redeemable common stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as of these dates. The values of these equity
instruments are based upon the fair value and intrinsic value of the underlying stock and Rollover Options at the date of issuance. Because
redemption of such shares is uncertain, such shares are not subject to re-measurement until their redemption becomes probable.

Subsequent to the Merger, the Company's Board of Directors adopted an Equity Appreciation Rights Plan, which plan was later amended
and restated (as amended and restated, the "Rights Plan"). The Rights Plan provides for the granting of equity appreciation rights to
nonexecutive managerial employees. In 2009, the Rights Plan was modified such that certain equity appreciation rights vested as a result of the
Company's initial public offering that otherwise would not have vested. At January 30, 2009, 571,678 equity appreciation rights were
outstanding. During 2009, 763,495 equity appreciation rights were granted, 515,817 of such rights, affecting 775 employees, vested in
conjunction with the Company's initial public offering, 18,615 of such rights vested as a result of other provisions of the Rights Plan, 102,979 of
such rights were cancelled and 697,762 of such rights, with a base price of $8.8725, remain outstanding at January 29, 2010. These rights will
vest upon the occurrence of certain stock offerings, change in control or employee termination events as defined in the Rights Plan.
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For the year ended January 29, 2010, the fair value method of accounting for share-based awards resulted in share-based compensation
expense (a component of SG&A expenses) and a corresponding reduction in net income before income taxes in the amount of $22.2 million
($13.6 million net of tax) of which $11.7 million ($7.1 million net of tax) was related to stock options, $7.2 million ($4.4 million net of tax) was
related to equity appreciation rights and $3.3 million ($2.0 million net of tax) was related to restricted stock as discussed in more detail below.
Of these amounts, $6.9 million of the expense for equity appreciation rights and $2.5 million of the expense for restricted stock was attributable
to the vesting of certain awards in conjunction with the Company's initial public offering discussed in Note 2.

For the year ended January 30, 2009, the Company recorded share-based compensation expense and a corresponding reduction in net
income before income taxes in the amount of $10.0 million ($6.1 million net of tax) of which $8.9 million ($5.4 million net of tax) was related to
stock options and $1.1 million ($0.7 million net of tax) was related to restricted stock.

The 2007 Successor statement of operations reflects share-based compensation expense and a corresponding reduction of pre-tax income in
the amount of $3.8 million ($2.4 million net of tax). The Company recognized $45.4 million of share-based compensation expense in the 2007
Predecessor statement of operations ($28.5 million net of tax), including $6.0 million of compensation expense prior to the Merger included in
SG&A expenses comprised of $2.3 million for stock options and $3.7 million for restricted stock and restricted stock units. The remaining
$39.4 million of such expense related directly to the Merger is reflected in Transaction and related costs in the consolidated statement of
operations for the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007, for the accelerated vesting of stock options ($18.7 million) and restricted stock and
restricted stock units ($20.7 million).

The fair value of each option grant is separately estimated by applying the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing valuation model. The
weighted average for key assumptions used in determining the fair value of options granted in the years ended January 29, 2010 and January 30,
2009, the Successor period ended February 1, 2008, and the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007, and a summary of the methodology applied
to develop each assumption, are as follows:

Successor Predecessor
January 29, January 30, February 1, July 6,
2010 2009 2008 2007
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0.91%
Expected stock price volatility 41.2% 40.2% 41.9% 18.5%
Weighted average risk-free interest rate 2.8% 2.8% 4.6% 4.5%
Expected term of options (years) 7.4 7.4 7.5 5.7

Expected dividend yield This is an estimate of the expected dividend yield on the Company's stock. Prior to the Merger this estimate was
based on historical dividend payment trends. Subsequent to the Merger, the Company is subject to limitations on the payment of dividends under
its Credit Facilities as further discussed in Note 7. An increase in the dividend yield will decrease compensation expense.

Expected stock price volatility This is a measure of the amount by which the price of the Company's common stock has fluctuated or is
expected to fluctuate. Prior to the Merger, the Company used actual historical changes in the market price of the Company's common stock and
implied
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volatility based upon traded options, weighted equally, to calculate the volatility assumption, as it was the Company's belief that this
methodology provided the best indicator of future volatility. For historical volatility, the Company calculated daily market price changes from
the date of grant over a past period representative of the expected life of the options to determine volatility. Subsequent to the Merger the
expected volatilities have been based upon the historical volatilities of a peer group of four companies, as the Company's common stock has only
been publicly traded for a limited period of time. An increase in the expected volatility will increase compensation expense.

Weighted average risk-free interest rate This is the U.S. Treasury rate for the week of the grant having a term approximating the expected
life of the option. An increase in the risk-free interest rate will increase compensation expense.

Expected term of options This is the period of time over which the options granted are expected to remain outstanding. For pre-Merger
options, the Company estimated expected term using a computation based on an assumption that outstanding options would be exercised
approximately halfway through their contractual term, taking into consideration such factors as grant date, expiration date, weighted-average
time-to-vest, actual exercises and post-vesting cancellations. Options granted have a maximum term of 10 years. Due to the limited historical
data for grants issued subsequent to the Merger, the Company has estimated the expected term as the mid-point between the vesting date and the
contractual term of the option. An increase in the expected term will increase compensation expense.

At January 29, 2010, 617,817 Rollover Options were outstanding, all of which were exercisable. The aggregate intrinsic value of these
outstanding Rollover Options was $13.2 million with a weighted average remaining contractual term of 5.4 years, and a weighted average
exercise price of $2.1875.

During the Predecessor period from February 3, 2007 to July 6, 2007, the weighted average grant date fair value of options granted was
$5.37, and the total intrinsic value of stock options exercised was $10.8 million.

All stock options granted prior to the Merger in the Predecessor period ended July 6, 2007 under the terms of the Company's pre-Merger
stock incentive plan were non-qualified stock options issued at a price equal to the fair market value of the Company's common stock on the date
of grant, were originally scheduled to vest ratably over a four-year period, and were to expire 10 years following the date of grant.
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A summary of Time Options activity during the Successor period ended January 29, 2010 is as follows:

Remaining Intrinsic
Options Average Contractual Value
Issued Exercise Price Term in Years (in thousands)
Balance, January 30, 2009 6,021,511 $ 8.75
Granted 796,758 13.25
Exercised
Canceled (695,217) 8.00
Balance, January 29, 2010 6,123,052 $ 8.68 81 $ 90,675
Vested or expected to vest at January 29, 2010 5,385,047 $ 8.63 81 §$ 80,035
Exercisable at January 29, 2010 2,237,491 $ 7.41 80 $ 32,071

The weighted average grant date fair value of Time Options granted during 2009, 2008 and the 2007 Successor period was $6.73, $4.17,
and $4.64, respectively.

A summary of Performance Options activity during the Successor period ended January 29, 2010 is as follows:

Remaining Intrinsic
Options Average Contractual Value
Issued Exercise Price Term in Years (in thousands)
Balance, January 30, 2009 6,028,082 $ 8.75
Granted 796,758 13.25
Exercised (4,545) 8.00
Canceled (568,672) 8.00
Balance, January 29, 2010 6,251,623 $ 8.67 81 $ 92,667
Vested or expected to vest at January 29, 2010 5,387,396 $ 8.62 81 §$ 80,123
Exercisable at January 29, 2010 3,113,181 $ 8.19 78 $ 47,636

The weighted average grant date fair value of Performance Options granted was $6.73, $4.17, and $4.64 during 2009, 2008 and the 2007
Successor period, respectively.

The total intrinsic value of all stock options repurchased by the Company under terms of the management stockholders' agreements during
2009, 2008 and the 2007 Successor period was $0.8 million, $2.5 million and $0.5 million, respectively.

At January 29, 2010, the total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options was $37.4 million with an expected
weighted average expense recognition period of 3.3 years.

The Company currently believes that the performance targets related to the unvested Performance Options will be achieved. If such goals
are not met, and there is no change in control or certain public offerings of the Company's common stock which would result in the acceleration
of vesting of the Performance Options, future compensation cost relating to unvested Performance Options will not be recognized.
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Through January 29, 2010, all Time Options and Performance Options have been granted to employees. During the fourth quarter of 2009,
the Company granted 33,051 non-qualified stock options to members of its Board of Directors. These options vest ratably on an annual basis
over a four year period from the date of grant.

In January 2008, the Company granted 508,572 nonvested restricted shares to its Chief Executive Officer. As a result of the Company's
initial public offering these shares vested, at a total fair value equal to $11.5 million. Subsequent to the offering, the Company granted a total of
9,084 restricted stock unit awards to members of its Board of Directors. For 2009, 2008 and the 2007 Successor period, the share-based
compensation expense related to nonvested shares before income taxes was $3.3 million ($2.0 million net of tax), $1.1 million ($0.7 million net
of tax) and less than $0.1 million, respectively. At January 29, 2010, the total compensation cost related to nonvested restricted stock awards not
yet recognized was approximately $0.2 million.

All nonvested restricted stock and restricted stock unit awards granted in the periods presented had a purchase price of zero. The Company
records compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the restriction period based on the market price of the underlying stock on the date of
grant. The nonvested restricted stock unit awards granted under the plan to non-employee directors during 2009 are scheduled to vest in
one-third increments at each of the Company's three subsequent annual shareholder meetings. The nonvested restricted stock and restricted stock
unit awards granted under the plan to employees during the 2007 Predecessor period were originally scheduled to vest and become payable
ratably over a three-year period from the respective grant dates. The nonvested restricted stock unit awards granted under the plan to
non-employee directors during the 2007 Predecessor period were originally scheduled to vest over a one-year period from the respective grant
dates, but became payable as a result of the Merger as discussed above.

12. Related party transactions

Affiliates of certain of the Investors participated as (i) lenders in the Company's Credit Facilities discussed in Note 7; (ii) initial purchasers
of the Company's Notes discussed in Note 7; (iii) counterparties to certain interest rate swaps discussed in Note 8 and (iv) as advisors in the
Merger. Certain fees were paid upon closing of the Merger to affiliates of certain of the Investors. These fees primarily included underwriting
fees, advisory fees, equity commitment fees, syndication fees, Merger and acquisition fees, sponsor fees, costs of raising equity, and out of
pocket expenses. The aggregate fees paid to these related parties during the Successor period ended February 1, 2008 totaled $134.9 million,
portions of which have been capitalized as debt financing costs or as direct acquisition costs.

The Company believes affiliates of KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. (among other entities) are lenders under, and Citicorp North
America, Inc. serves as administrative agent and collateral agent for, the Term Loan Facility. The amount of principal outstanding under the
Term Loan Facility from the date of the Merger to September 30, 2009, was $2.3 billion. The Company paid principal of $336.5 million during
the remainder of 2009 and approximately $74.8 million, $133.4 million, and $102.9 million of interest on the Term Loan Facility during 2009,
2008, and the 2007 Successor period, respectively.
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Goldman, Sachs & Co. is a counterparty to an amortizing interest rate swap with a notional amount of $396.7 million and $433.3 million as
of January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009, respectively, entered into in connection with the Term Loan Facility. The Company paid Goldman,
Sachs & Co. approximately $17.9 million and $9.5 million in 2009 and 2008, respectively, and Goldman, Sachs & Co. paid the Company
$0.8 million in the 2007 Successor period pursuant to the interest rate swap as further discussed in Note 8.

The Company entered into a sponsor advisory agreement, dated July 6, 2007, with KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co. pursuant to which
those entities provided management and advisory services to the Company. Under the terms of the sponsor advisory agreement, among other
things, the Company was obliged to pay to those entities an aggregate, initial management fee of $5.0 million annually. Upon the completion of
the Company's initial public offering discussed in Note 2, pursuant to the advisory agreement, the Company paid a fee of $63.6 million from
cash generated from operations to KKR and Goldman, Sachs & Co., which amount included a transaction fee equal to 1%, or $4.8 million, of the
gross primary proceeds from the offering accounted for as a cost of raising equity and a corresponding reduction to Additional paid-in capital;
and approximately $58.8 million in connection with its termination, which is included in SG&A expenses for 2009. Including the transaction
and termination fees discussed above, the total management fees and other expenses incurred for the years ended January 29, 2010 and
January 30, 2009 and the Successor period ended February 1, 2008 totaled $68.0 million, $6.6 million and $2.9 million, respectively. In addition,
on July 6, 2007, the Company entered into a separate indemnification agreement with the parties to the sponsor advisory agreement, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to provide customary indemnification to such parties and their affiliates.

From time to time, the Company uses Capstone Consulting, LLC, a team of executives who work exclusively with KKR portfolio
companies providing certain consulting services. The Chief Executive Officer of Capstone served on the Company's Board of Directors until
March 2009. Although neither KKR nor any entity affiliated with KKR owns any of the equity of Capstone, prior to January 1, 2007 KKR had
provided financing to Capstone. The aggregate fees incurred for Capstone services for the Successor periods ended January 29, 2010,

January 30, 2009 and February 1, 2008 totaled $0.2 million, $3.0 million and $1.9 million, respectively.

The Company purchased certain of its Senior Notes and Senior Subordinated Notes held by Goldman Sachs & Co. in the amount of
$25.0 million in the 2007 Successor period as further discussed in Note 7, and paid commissions of less than $0.1 million in connection
therewith.

The Company entered into an underwriting agreement with KKR Capital Markets (an affiliate of KKR), Goldman, Sachs & Co., Citigroup
Global Markets Inc., and several other entities to serve as underwriters in connection with its initial public offering in November 2009. The
Company provided underwriting discounts of approximately $27.4 million pursuant to the underwriting agreement, approximately $6.0 million
of which was provided to each of (a) KKR Capital Markets; (b) Goldman, Sachs & Co.; and (c) Citigroup Global Markets Inc. The Company
paid approximately $3.3 million in expenses related to the initial public offering (excluding underwriting discounts and commissions), including
the offering-related expenses of the selling shareholder which the Company was required to pay under the terms of an existing registration rights
agreement.
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13. Segment reporting

The Company manages its business on the basis of one reportable segment. See Note 1 for a brief description of the Company's business.
As of January 29, 2010, all of the Company's operations were located within the United States with the exception of a Hong Kong subsidiary,
and a liaison office in India, the collective assets and revenues of which are not material. The following net sales data is presented in accordance

with accounting standards related to disclosures about segments of an enterprise.

Successor Predecessor
March 6, 2007 February 3, 2007
through through
(In thousands) 2009 2008 February 1, 2008 July 6, 2007
Classes of similar
products:
Consumables $ 8356381 $ 7,248418 §$ 3,701,724 $ 2,615,110
Seasonal 1,711,471 1,521,450 908,301 604,935
Home products 869,772 862,226 507,027 362,725
Apparel 858,756 825,574 454,441 340,983
Net sales $ 11,796,380 $ 10,457,668 $ 5,571,493 $ 3,923,753

14. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

The following is selected unaudited quarterly financial data for the fiscal years ended January 29, 2010 and January 30, 2009. Each

quarterly period listed below was a 13-week accounting period. The sum of the four quarters for any given year may not equal annual totals due

to rounding.

Successor First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

2009:

Net sales $ 2779937 $ 2,901,907 $ 2,928,751 $ 3,185,785
Gross profit 855,358 906,042 903,082 1,025,389
Operating profit 224,869 233,217 216,239 278,933

Net income 83,006 93,590 75,649 87,197
Basic earnings per share 0.26 0.29 0.24 0.26
Diluted earnings per share 0.26 0.29 0.24 0.26
Successor First Second Third Fourth

(In thousands) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
2008:

Net sales $ 2403498 $ 2,609,384 $ 2,598,938 $ 2,845,848
Gross profit 693,077 758,035 772,287 837,698
Operating profit 110,871 143,055 103,732 222,828
Net income (loss) 5,916 27,718 (7,306) 81,854
Basic earnings (loss) per share 0.02 0.09 (0.02) 0.26
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.02 0.09 (0.02) 0.26

As discussed in Note 12, in the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company terminated an advisory agreement with KKR and Goldman,
Sachs & Co. pursuant to which those entities provided
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management and advisory services to the Company, which resulted in a pretax charge of approximately $58.8 million ($46.2 million net of tax,
or $0.14 per diluted share), which is included in SG&A expenses.

As discussed in Note 7, in the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company repurchased $195.7 million principal amount of its outstanding Senior
Notes, $205.2 million principal amount of its outstanding Senior Subordinated Notes, and repaid $325.0 million principal amount on the Term
Loan Facility, resulting in a pretax loss of $55.3 million ($33.8 million net of tax, or $0.10 per diluted share) which is recognized as Other
(income) expense.

As discussed in Note 11, in the fourth quarter of 2009 the Company incurred share-based compensation expenses of $9.4 million
($5.8 million net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted share) for the accelerated vesting of certain share-based awards in conjunction with the Company's
initial public offering which is included in SG&A expenses.

As discussed in Note 1, in the second, third, and fourth quarters of 2008, the Company recorded LIFO provisions of $16.0 million
($9.7 million net of tax, or $0.03 per diluted share), $15.7 million ($9.6 million net of tax, or $0.03 per diluted share), and $12.1 million
($7.4 million net of tax, or $0.02 per diluted share), respectively. These charges are reflected in Cost of goods sold.

As discussed in Note 9, in the third quarter of 2008, based on the agreement in principle to settle the Merger-related shareholder litigation,
the Company recorded charges of approximately $34.5 million ($37.4 million net of tax, or $0.12 per diluted share) in connection with the
proposed settlement, which was net of anticipated insurance proceeds of $7.5 million. In the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company received
insurance proceeds totaling $10.0 million, thus reducing the charges to $32.0 million net of insurance proceeds and increasing operating profit
by the incremental $2.5 million ($1.5 million net of tax, or less than $0.01 per diluted share). These amounts are reflected as Litigation
settlement and related costs, net in the respective quarters.

As discussed in Note 7, in the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company repurchased $44.1 million principal amount of its outstanding Senior
Subordinated Notes resulting in a net gain of $3.8 million ($2.3 million net of tax, or $0.01 per diluted share) which is recognized as Other
(income) expense.

As discussed in Note 9, in the fourth quarter of 2008, the Company recorded an $8.6 million charge ($5.3 million net of tax, or $0.02 per

diluted share) included in Cost of goods sold related to the markdown of certain products covered by the Consumer Products Safety
Improvement Act of 2008.

15. Guarantor subsidiaries
Certain of the Company's subsidiaries (the "Guarantors") have fully and unconditionally guaranteed on a joint and several basis the
Company's obligations under certain outstanding debt obligations. Each of the Guarantors is a direct or indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.
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The following consolidating schedules present condensed financial information on a combined basis, in thousands.

January 29, 2010
DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIESELIMINATIONS TOTAL
BALANCE SHEET:
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 97,620 $ 103,001 $ 21,455 $ $ 222,076
Merchandise inventories 1,519,578 1,519,578
Income taxes receivable 9,924 1,645 (4,026) 7,543
Deferred income taxes 16,066 3,559 (19,625)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 625,157 3,040,792 704 (3,570,401) 96,252
Total current assets 748,767 4,665,016 25,718 (3,594,052) 1,845,449
Net property and equipment 99,452 1,228,829 105 1,328,386
Goodwill 4,338,589 4,338,589
Intangible assets, net 1,201,223 83,060 1,284,283
Deferred income taxes 36,405 (36,405)
Other assets, net 4,288,270 8,920 297,757 (4,528,135) 66,812
Total assets $ 10,676,301 $ 5,985,825 $ 359,985 $  (8,158,592) $ 8,863,519
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term
obligations $ 1,822 $ 1,849 $ $ $ 3,671
Accounts payable 3,033,723 1,311,063 46,818 (3,560,651) 830,953
Accrued expenses and other 72,320 226,571 53,149 (9,750) 342,290
Income taxes payable 4,086 4,465 (4,026) 4,525
Deferred income taxes payable 44,686 (19,625) 25,061
Total current liabilities 3,111,951 1,584,169 104,432 (3,594,052) 1,206,500
Long-term obligations 3,645,820 2,689,492 13,178 (2,948,775) 3,399,715
Deferred income taxes 394,045 188,532 (36,405) 546,172
Other liabilities 115,701 40,065 146,582 302,348
Redeemable common stock 18,486 18,486

Shareholders' equity:
Preferred stock
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Common stock
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings
Accumulated other
comprehensive loss

Total shareholders' equity

Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity $

298,013
2,923,377
203,075

(34,167)

3,390,298

10,676,301

$

23,855
431,253
1,028,459

1,483,567

5,985,825

105

$

100
19,900
75,793

95,793

359,985

$

(23,955)
(451,153)
(1,104,252)

(1,579,360)

(8,158,592) $

298,013
2,923,377
203,075

(34,167)

3,390,298

8,863,519
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January 30, 2009
DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
BALANCE SHEET:
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 292,637 $ 64,404 $ 20,954 $ $ 377,995

Merchandise inventories 1,414,955 1,414,955

Income taxes receivable 50,601 (44,209) 6,392

Deferred income taxes 5,892 2,560 (3,852) 4,600

Prepaid expenses and other

current assets 462,572 2,016,712 5,894 (2,418,995) 66,183

Total current assets 811,702 3,496,071 29,408 (2,467,056) 1,870,125
Net property and equipment 82,616 1,186,125 219 1,268,960
Goodwill 4,338,589 4,338,589
Intangible assets, net 1,205,667 119,891 1,325,558
Deferred income taxes 3,518 (3,518)

Other assets, net 3,384,089 130,100 280,204 (3,708,426) 85,967
Total assets $ 9,822,663 $§ 4,932,187 $ 313,349 $§  (6,179,000) $ 8,889,199
LIABILITIES AND

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Current portion of long-term

obligations $ 11,500 $ 2,658 $ $ $ 14,158

Accounts payable 2,007,625 1,035,057 46,644 (2,410,905) 678,421

Accrued expenses and other 108,504 220,142 54,489 (8,090) 375,045

Income taxes payable 1,659 48,467 1,694 (44,209) 7,611

Deferred income taxes payable 3,852 (3,852)

Total current liabilities 2,129,288 1,310,176 102,827 (2,467,056) 1,075,235
Long-term obligations 4,346,258 2,383,304 (2,606,606) 4,122,956
Deferred income taxes 397,570 162,049 (3,518) 556,101
Other liabilities 103,928 37,653 147,707 289,288
Redeemable common stock 13,924 13,924
Shareholders' equity:

Preferred stock

Common stock 278,114 23,855 100 (23,955) 278,114

Additional paid-in capital 2,489,647 553,639 19,900 (573,539) 2,489,647

Retained earnings 103,364 461,511 42,815 (504,326) 103,364

Accumulated other

comprehensive loss (39,430) (39,430)

127



Edgar Filing: BLACK HILLS CORP /SD/ - Form DEF 14A

Total shareholders' equity 2,831,695 1,039,005 62,815 (1,101,820) 2,831,695

Total liabilities and shareholders'
equity $ 9,822,663 $ 4,932,187 $ 313,349 $§  (6,179,000) $ 8,889,199
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For the year ended January 29, 2010

DOLLAR

GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS:
Net sales $ 306,036 $ 11,796,380 $ 91,265 $ (397,301) $ 11,796,380
Cost of goods sold 8,106,509 8,106,509
Gross profit 306,036 3,689,871 91,265 (397,301) 3,689,871
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 337,224 2,734,793 61,897 (397,301) 2,736,613
Operating profit (loss) (31,188) 955,078 29,368 953,258
Interest income (52,047) (10,968) (19,674) 82,545 (144)
Interest expense 375,280 52,980 29 (82,545) 345,744
Other (income) expense 55,542 55,542
Income (loss) before income
taxes (409,963) 913,066 49,013 552,116
Income tax expense (benefit) (149,478) 346,117 16,035 212,674
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net of taxes 599,927 (599,927)
Net income $ 339,442 $ 566,949 $ 32978 $  (599,927) $ 339,442

For the year ended January 30, 2009

DOLLAR

GENERAL  GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATION SUBSIDIARIES SUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS:
Net sales $ 236,682 $ 10,457,668 $ 97917 $ (334,599) $§ 10,457,668
Cost of goods sold 7,396,571 7,396,571
Gross profit 236,682 3,061,097 97,917 (334,599) 3,061,097
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 210,665 2,499,331 73,214 (334,599) 2,448,611
Litigation settlement and related
costs, net 32,000 32,000
Operating profit (loss) (5,983) 561,766 24,703 580,486
Interest income (62,722) (36,844) (13,532) 110,037 (3,061)
Interest expense 427,365 74,586 18 (110,037) 391,932
Other (income) expense (2,788) (2,788)
Income (loss) before income
taxes (367,838) 524,024 38,217 194,403
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Income tax expense (benefit) (115,924) 190,146 11,999

Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,

net of taxes 360,096 (360,096)

Net income $ 108,182 $ 333878 $ 26,218 $  (360,096) $
107

86,221

108,182
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March 6, 2007 through February 1, 2008

DOLLAR

GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS:
Net sales $ 96,300 $ 5,571,493 $ 65,057 $ (161,357) $ 5,571,493
Cost of goods sold 3,999,599 3,999,599
Gross profit 96,300 1,571,894 65,057 (161,357) 1,571,894
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 102,030 1,337,311 46,524 (161,357) 1,324,508
Transaction and related costs 1,242 1,242
Operating profit (loss) (6,972) 234,583 18,533 246,144
Interest income (58,786) (23,206) (8,013) 86,206 (3,799)
Interest expense 274,104 64,991 8 (86,2006) 252,897
Other (income) expense 3,639 3,639
Income (loss) before income
taxes (225,929) 192,798 26,538 (6,593)
Income tax expense (benefit) (76,881) 65,166 9,940 (1,775)
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net of taxes 144,230 (144,230)
Net income (loss) $ 4,818) $ 127,632 $ 16,598 $  (144,230) $ (4,818)

February 3, 2007 through July 6, 2007

DOLLAR

GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
PREDECESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF
OPERATIONS:
Net sales $ 76,945 $ 3,923,753 $ 44206 $  (121,151) $ 3,923,753
Cost of goods sold 2,852,178 2,852,178
Gross profit 76,945 1,071,575 44,206 (121,151) 1,071,575
Selling, general and
administrative expenses 64,827 982,321 34,933 (121,151) 960,930
Transaction and related costs 101,397 101,397
Operating profit (loss) (89,279) 89,254 9,273 9,248
Interest income (53,278) (11,472) (5,626) 65,330 (5,046)
Interest expense 19,796 55,828 5 (65,330) 10,299
Income (loss) before income
taxes (55,797) 44,898 14,894 3,995
Income tax expense (benefit) 4,814) 11,924 4,883 11,993
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net of taxes 42,985 (42,985)
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Net income (loss) $ (7,998) $ 32974 $ 10,011 $ (42,985) $ (7,998)
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended January 29, 2010

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS:
Cash flows from operating
activities:
Net income $ 339,442 $ 566,949 $ 32978 $ (599,927) $ 339,442
Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 36,541 220,048 182 256,771
Deferred income taxes (18,571) 67,317 (33,886) 14,860
Tax benefit of stock options (5,390) (5,390)
Loss on debt retirement 55,265 55,265
Noncash share-based
compensation 17,295 17,295
Noncash inventory adjustments
and asset impairments 647 647
Other noncash gains and losses 3,221 4,699 7,920
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net (599,927) 599,927
Change in operating assets and
liabilities:
Merchandise inventories (100,248) (100,248)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets 2,582 (10,252) 372 (7,298)
Accounts payable 26,535 79,515 (1) 106,049
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities (24,852) 10,494 (2,465) (16,823)
Income taxes 48,494 (50,112) 2,771 1,153
Other (3,203) 2,171 32 (1,000)
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (122,568) 791,228 17) 668,643
Cash flows from investing
activities:
Purchases of property and
equipment (34,647) (216,032) (68) (250,747)
Proceeds from sale of property
and equipment 2,701 2,701
Net cash used in investing
activities (34,647) (213,331) (68) (248,046)
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Issuance of common stock 443,753 443,753
Issuance of long-term obligations 1,080 1,080
Repayments of long-term
obligations (782,518) (2,742) (785,260)
Payment of cash dividends and
related amounts (239,731) (239,731)
Repurchases of equity (1,748) (1,748)
Tax benefit of stock options 5,390 5,390
Changes in intercompany note
balances, net 537,052 (537,638) 586
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Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities (37,802) (539,300) 586 (576,516)

Net increase (decrease) in cash

and cash equivalents (195,017) 38,597 501 (155,919)
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 292,637 64,404 20,954 377,995

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
year $ 97,620 $ 103,001 $ 21,455 $ $ 222,076
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

For the year ended January 30, 2009
DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR

OTHER CONSOLIDATED

SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS:
Cash flows from operating
activities:
Net income 108,182 $ 333,878 $ 26,218 $ (360,096) $ 108,182
Adjustments to reconcile net
income to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 34,638 213,003 258 247,899
Deferred income taxes (4,681) 16,500 61,615 73,434
Tax benefit of stock options (950) (950)
Gain on debt retirement (3,818) (3,818)
Noncash share-based
compensation 9,958 9,958
Noncash inventory adjustments
and asset impairments 50,671 50,671
Other noncash gains and losses 714 5,538 6,252
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net (360,096) 360,096
Change in operating assets and
liabilities:
Merchandise inventories (173,014) (173,014)
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets (2,310) 3,765 (2,053) (598)
Accounts payable 18,717 121,546 93 140,356
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities 11,427 46,177 11,132 68,736
Income taxes 56,596 (10,797) (11,813) 33,986
Other 2,529 11,643 (88) 14,084
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (129,094) 618,910 85,362 575,178
Cash flows from investing
activities:
Purchases of property and
equipment (16,467) (189,058) (21) (205,546)
Purchases of short-term
investments (9,903) (9,903)
Sales of short-term investments 61,547 61,547
Proceeds from sale of property
and equipment 1,266 1,266
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities (16,467) (187,792) 51,623 (152,636)
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Issuance of common stock 4,228 4,228
Net repayments under revolving
credit facility (102,500) (102,500)
Repayments of long-term
obligations (40,780) (3,645) (44,425)
Repurchases of equity (3,009) (3,009)
Tax benefit of stock options 950 950
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Changes in intercompany note
balances, net

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
year

570,989

429,878

284,317

8,320

292,637

(422,448) (148,541)
(426,093) (148,541) (144,756)
5,025 (11,556) 277,786
59,379 32,510 100,209
64,404 $ 20,954 $ $ 377,995
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

March 6, 2007 through February 1, 2008

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER CONSOLIDATED
SUCCESSOR CORPORATIONSUBSIDIARIESSUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS TOTAL
STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS:
Cash flows from operating
activities:
Net income (loss) $ (4,818) $ 127,632 $ 16,598 $ (144,230) $ (4,818)
Adjustments to reconcile net
income (loss) to net cash
provided by (used in) operating
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 21,634 128,431 148 150,213
Deferred income taxes (2,120) 20,208 1,463 19,551
Loss on debt retirement 1,249 1,249
Noncash share-based
compensation 3,827 3,827
Noncash inventory adjustments
and asset impairments 6,113 6,113
Other noncash gains and losses 3,705 571 4,276
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net (144,230) 144,230
Change in operating assets and
liabilities:
Merchandise inventories 73,356 73,356
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets (1,120) 4,783 76 3,739
Accounts payable (40,745) 12,428 (13,078) (41,395)
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities (7,456) 6,418 17,099 16,061
Income taxes (45,416) 44,829 7,935 7,348
Other (3,169) 3,675 (422) 84
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities (218,659) 428,444 29,819 239,604
Cash flows from investing
activities:
Merger, net of cash acquired (5,649,182) (1,129,953) 40,744 (6,738,391)
Purchases of property and
equipment (1,617) (82,003) 21) (83,641)
Purchases of short-term
investments (3,800) (3,800)
Sales of short-term investments 21,445 21,445
Purchases of long-term
investments (37,047) (7,473) (44,520)
Proceeds from sale of property
and equipment 533 533
Net cash provided by (used in)
investing activities (5,650,799) (1,248,470) 50,895 (6,848,374)
Cash flows from financing
activities:
Issuance of common stock 2,759,540 2,759,540
Net borrowings (repayments)
under revolving credit facility 102,500 102,500
Issuance of long-term obligations 4,176,817 4,176,817
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Repayments of long-term
obligations

Debt issuance costs
Repurchases of equity
Changes in intercompany note
balances, net

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end
of year

(236,084)
(87,392)
(541)

(837,062)

5,877,778

8,320

8320 §

(5,861)

885,266

879,405

59,379

59,379

111

(48,204)

(48,204)

32,510

32,510 §

(241,945)
(87,392)
(541)

6,708,979

100,209

100,209
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DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

15. Guarantor subsidiaries (Continued)

PREDECESSOR
STATEMENTS OF CASH
FLOWS:
Cash flows from operating
activities:
Net income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile net
income (loss) to net cash provided
by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income taxes
Tax benefit of stock options
Noncash share-based
compensation
Other noncash gains and losses
Equity in subsidiaries' earnings,
net
Change in operating assets and
liabilities:
Merchandise inventories
Prepaid expenses and other
current assets
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses and other
liabilities
Income taxes
Other

Net cash provided by operating
activities

Cash flows from investing
activities:

Purchases of property and
equipment

Purchases of short-term
investments

Sales of short-term investments
Purchases of long-term
investments

Sale and insurance proceeds
related to property and equipment

Net cash used in investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities:

Repayments of long-term
obligations

Payment of cash dividends
Proceeds from exercise of stock
options

Tax benefit of stock options
Changes in intercompany note
balances, net

DOLLAR
GENERAL GUARANTOR OTHER
CORPORATIONUBSIDIARIESUBSIDIARIEELIMINATIONS

(7,998) $

9,051
(7,982)
(3,927)

45,433

(42,985)

5,758
44,909

7,897

(24,998)
21

25,179

(5,321)

(5,321)

(148)
(15,710)

41,546
3,927

75,840

32,974 $

74,770
(9,194)

5,098

16,424

(11,762)
(23,103)

36,021
31,741
(372)

152,597

(50,737)

620

(50,117)

(4,352)

(86,988)

February 3, 2007 through July 6, 2007

CONSOLIDATED

TOTAL
10,011 $ (42,985) $ (7,998)
96 83,917
(3,698) (20,874)
(3,927)

45433

5,098

42,985

16,424
(180) (6,184)
12,988 34,794
9,077 52,995
(3,934) 2,809
(190) (541)
24,170 201,946
(95) (56,153)
(5,100) (5,100)
9,505 9,505
(15,754) (15,754)
620

(11,444) (66,882)
(4,500)

(15,710)

41,546

3,927

11,148
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Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 105,455 (91,340) 11,148 25,263

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents 125,313 11,140 23,874 160,327
Cash and cash equivalents,
beginning of year 114,310 58,107 16,871 189,288

Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period $ 239,623 $ 69,247 $ 40,745  $ $ 349,615
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures, as such term is defined
under Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"). Based on this
evaluation, our principal executive officer and our principal financial officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective as of the end of the period covered by this report.

(b) Management's Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our management prepared and is responsible for the
consolidated financial statements and all related financial information contained in this report. This responsibility includes establishing and
maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our internal
control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles.

To comply with the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, management designed and implemented a structured
and comprehensive assessment process to evaluate its internal control over financial reporting. Such assessment was based on criteria
established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.
Because of its inherent limitations, a system of internal control over financial reporting can provide only reasonable assurance and may not
prevent or detect misstatements. Management regularly monitors our internal control over financial reporting, and actions are taken to correct
any deficiencies as they are identified. Based on its assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over financial reporting is
effective as of January 29, 2010.

This annual report does not include an attestation report of Ernst & Young LLP regarding internal control over financial reporting.
Management's report was not subject to attestation by Ernst & Young LLP pursuant to temporary rules of the Securities and Exchange
Commission that permit us to provide only management's report in this annual report.

(c) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. There have been no changes during the quarter ended January 29, 2010 in
our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f)) that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

(a) Information Regarding Directors and Executive Officers. The information required by this Item 10 regarding our directors and
director nominees is contained under the captions " Who are the nominees this year," " What are the backgrounds of this year's nominees," " Are
there any familial relationships between any of the nominees" and " How are directors identified and nominated," all
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under "Proposal 1: Election of Directors," as well as "Corporate Governance Does the Board have standing Audit, Compensation, and
Nominating Committees," all in our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed for our 2010 Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June 3,
2010 (the "2010 Proxy Statement"), which information under such captions is incorporated herein by reference. Information required by this
Item 10 regarding our executive officers is contained in Part I of this Form 10-K under the caption "Executive Officers of the Registrant," which
information under such caption is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act. Information required by this Item 10 regarding compliance with Section 16(a)
of the Exchange Act is contained under the caption "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance" in the 2010 Proxy Statement,
which information under such caption is incorporated herein by reference.

(c) Code of Business Conduct and Ethics. 'We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all of our employees,
officers and Board members. This Code is posted on our Internet website at www.dollargeneral.com. If we choose to no longer post such Code,
we will provide a free copy to any person upon written request to Dollar General Corporation, c/o Investor Relations Department, 100 Mission
Ridge, Goodlettsville, TN 37072. We intend to provide any required disclosure of an amendment to or waiver from the Code of Business
Conduct and Ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or controller, or
persons performing similar functions, on our Internet website located at www.dollargeneral.com promptly following the amendment or waiver.
We may elect to disclose any such amendment or waiver in a report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC either in addition to or in lieu of the website
disclosure. The information contained on or connected to our Internet website is not incorporated by reference into this Form 10-K and should
not be considered part of this or any other report that we file with or furnish to the SEC.

(d) Procedures for Shareholders to Nominate Directors. Information required by this Item 10 regarding material changes to the
procedures by which shareholders may recommend nominees to our Board of Directors is contained under the captions " How are directors
identified and nominated," " How are nominees evaluated; what are the minimum qualifications" and " Can shareholders nominate directors," all
under "Proposal 1: Election of Directors" in the 2010 Proxy Statement, which information under such captions is incorporated herein by
reference.

(e) Audit Committee Information. Information required by this Item 10 regarding our audit committee and our audit committee financial
expert is contained under the captions "Corporate Governance Does the Board have standing Audit, Compensation and Nominating Committees"
and " Does Dollar General have an audit committee financial expert serving on its Audit Committee" in the 2010 Proxy Statement, which
information under such captions is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 regarding director and executive officer compensation, including the Compensation Committee
Report, the risks arising from our compensation policies and practices for employees, and compensation committee interlocks and insider
participation is contained under the captions "Director Compensation" and "Executive Compensation” in the 2010 Proxy Statement, which
information under such captions is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Equity Compensation Plan Information.

The following table sets forth information about securities authorized for issuance under

our compensation plans (including individual compensation arrangements) as of January 29, 2010:

Plan category

Number of securities
to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(a)

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding options,
warrants and rights

(b)

Number of
securities remaining
available for future

issuance under
equity compensation
plans (excluding
securities reflected
in column (a))

(c)

Equity
compensation
plans approved by
security holders(1)
Equity
compensation
plans not approved
by security holders

13,034,627 $ 8.14 17,495,729

Total(1) 13,034,627 $ 8.14 17,495,729

6]
Column (a) consists of shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options and upon vesting and payment of
restricted stock units under the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan and shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of outstanding options
under the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. Restricted stock units are settled for shares of Dollar General common stock on a one-for-one
basis and have no exercise price. Accordingly, those units have been excluded for purposes of computing the weighted-average
exercise price in column (b). Column (c) consists of shares reserved for issuance pursuant to the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan, whether in
the form of stock, restricted stock, restricted stock units, or other stock-based awards or upon the exercise of an option or right. While
certain options remain outstanding under the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, no future awards may be granted thereunder.

(b) Other Information. The information required by this Item 12 regarding security ownership of certain beneficial owners and our
management is contained under the caption "Security Ownership" in the 2010 Proxy Statement, which information under such caption is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 regarding certain relationships and related transactions is contained under the caption
"Transactions with Management and Others" in the 2010 Proxy Statement, which information under such caption is incorporated herein by
reference.

The information required by this Item 13 regarding director independence is contained under the caption "Director Independence” in the
2010 Proxy Statement, which information under such caption is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 regarding fees we paid to our principal accountant and the pre-approval policies and procedures
established by the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors is contained under the caption "Fees Paid to Auditors" in the 2010 Proxy
Statement, which information under such caption is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders' Equity
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(b) All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the SEC are not required under the related
instructions, are inapplicable or the information is included in the Consolidated Financial Statements and, therefore, have been omitted.

(c) Exhibits: See Exhibit Index immediately following the signature pages hereto, which Exhibit Index is incorporated by reference as if fully
set forth herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION

Date: March 31, 2010 By: /s/ RICHARD W. DREILING

Richard W. Dreiling,

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
We, the undersigned directors and officers of the registrant, hereby severally constitute Richard W. Dreiling and David M. Tehle, and each
of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them and each of them to sign for us, and in our names in the capacities indicated
below, any and all amendments to this Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf
of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

/s/ RICHARD W. DREILING
Chairman & Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

March 31, 2010
RICHARD W. DREILING

/s/ DAVID M. TEHLE Executive Vice President & Chief
Financial Officer (Principal Financial March 31, 2010
DAVID M. TEHLE and Accounting Officer)
/s/ RAJ] AGRAWAL
Director March 31, 2010
RAJ AGRAWAL

/sl WARREN F. BRYANT

Director March 31, 2010
WARREN F. BRYANT
/s/ MICHAEL M. CALBERT
Director March 31, 2010
MICHAEL M. CALBERT
/s/ ADRIAN JONES
Director March 31, 2010
ADRIAN JONES
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WILLIAM C. RHODES, III

/s/ DAVID B. RICKARD

DAVID B. RICKARD
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Director

Director

Date

March 31, 2010

March 31, 2010
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of March 11, 2007, by and among Buck Holdings, L.P., Buck Acquisition Corp., and Dollar
General Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated
March 11, 2007, filed with the SEC on March 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Amended and Restated Charter of Dollar General Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 18, 20009, filed with the SEC on November 18, 2009 (file
no. 001-11421))

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Dollar General Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 18, 20009, filed with the SEC on November 18, 2009 (file
no. 001-11421))

Form of Stock Certificate for Common Stock (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-161464))

Shareholders' Agreement of Dollar General Corporation, dated as of November 9, 2009 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated November 18, 2009, filed with the SEC on November 18, 2009 (file
no. 001-11421))

Indenture, dated as of June 21, 2000, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein, as guarantors, and
Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-42704))

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 28, 2000, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein, as
guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003,
filed with the SEC on March 19, 2003 (file no. 001-11421))

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 18, 2001, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein,
as guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003,
filed with the SEC on March 19, 2003 (file no. 001-11421))

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 20, 2002, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein, as
guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31, 2003,
filed with the SEC on March 19, 2003 (file no. 001-11421))

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of December 11, 2002, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named
therein, as guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 31, 2003, filed with the SEC on March 19, 2003 (file no. 001-11421))
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Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2003, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein, as
guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 1, 2003, filed
with the SEC on August 29, 2003 (file no. 001-11421))

Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 15, 2003, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein, as
guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 1, 2003, filed
with the SEC on August 29, 2003 (file no. 001-11421))

Seventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 23, 2005, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein,
as guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 29, 2005, filed
with the SEC on August 25, 2005 (file no. 001-11421))

Eighth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 27, 2005, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein,
as guarantors, and Wachovia Bank, National Association (formerly known as First Union National Bank), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 29, 2005, filed
with the SEC on August 25, 2005 (file no. 001-11421))

Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of August 30, 2006, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein,
as guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association (successor to Wachovia Bank, National Association), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 3, 2006,
filed with the SEC on December 12, 2006 (file no. 001-11421))

Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 6, 2007, by and among Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein, as
guarantors, and U.S. Bank National Association (successor to Wachovia Bank, National Association), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on

July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Senior Indenture, dated July 6, 2007, among Buck Acquisition Corp., Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors named therein and
U.S. Bank National Association (the successor trustee), as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Form of 10.625% Senior Notes due 2015 (included in Exhibit 4.14)

First Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Indenture, dated as of September 25, 2007, between DC Financial, LLC, the Guaranteeing
Subsidiary, and U.S. Bank National Association (the successor trustee), as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.14 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Second Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Indenture, dated as of December 31, 2007, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, the
Guaranteeing Subsidiary, and U.S. Bank National Association (the successor trustee), as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.32 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))
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Third Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Indenture, dated as of March 23, 2009, between the Guaranteeing Subsidiaries referenced
therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.17 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

Instrument of Resignation, Appointment and Acceptance, effective as of February 25, 2009, by and among Dollar General
Corporation, Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, and U.S. Bank National Association (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99
to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 25, 2009, filed with the SEC on February 25, 2009 (file
no. 001-11421))

Senior Subordinated Indenture, dated July 6, 2007, among Buck Acquisition Corp., Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors
named therein and U.S. Bank National Association (the successor trustee), as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.9 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file

no. 001-11421))

Form of 11.875% / 12.625% Senior Subordinated Toggle Notes due 2017 (included in Exhibit 4.20)

First Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of September 25, 2007, between DC Financial, LLC, the
Guaranteeing Subsidiary, and U.S. Bank National Association (the successor trustee), as trustee (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.16 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Second Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of December 31, 2007, between Retail Risk
Solutions, LL.C, the Guaranteeing Subsidiary, and U.S. Bank National Association (the successor trustee), as trustee (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.33 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Third Supplemental Indenture to the Senior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of March 23, 2009, between the Guaranteeing
Subsidiaries referenced therein and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.23 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, among Buck Acquisition Corp., Dollar General Corporation, the guarantors
named therein and the initial purchasers named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to Dollar General Corporation's
Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Registration Rights Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, among Buck Holdings, L.P., Buck Holdings, LLC, Dollar General Corporation
and Shareholders named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.18 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on
Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, among Dollar General Corporation, as Borrower, Citicorp North America, Inc., as
Administrative Agent, and the other lending institutions from time to time party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file
no. 001-11421))
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Guarantee to the Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, among certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporation, as
Guarantors and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 2007, to the Guarantee to the Credit Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC, as New
Guarantor, and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.23 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 2007, to the Guarantee to the Credit Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as
New Guarantor, and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.34 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009, to the Guarantee to the Credit Agreement, between the New Guarantors referenced
therein and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.30 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

Security Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, among Dollar General Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar General
Corporation, as Grantors, and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 2007, to the Security Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC, as New Grantor, and
Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.25 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 2007, to the Security Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as New Grantor,
and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.35 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009, to the Security Agreement, between the New Grantors referenced therein and Citicorp
North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.34 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

Pledge Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, among Dollar General Corporation and certain domestic subsidiaries of Dollar General
Corporation, as Pledgors, and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.5 to Dollar
General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Supplement No.1, dated as of September 11, 2007, to the Pledge Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC, as Additional Pledgor, and
Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.27 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))
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Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 2007, to the Pledge Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as Additional
Pledgor, and Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.36 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009, to the Pledge Agreement, between the Additional Pledgors referenced therein and
Citicorp North America, Inc., as Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

ABL Credit Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, among Dollar General Corporation, as Parent Borrower, certain domestic
subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporation, as Subsidiary Borrowers, The CIT Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Administrative
Agent, and the other lending institutions from time to time party thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.6 to Dollar General
Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Appointment of Successor Agent and Amendment No. 1 to the ABL Credit Agreement entered into as of July 31, 2009, by and
among The CIT Group/Business Credit, Inc., Wells Fargo Retail Finance, LLC, Dollar General Corporation and the Subsidiary
Borrowers and the Lenders signatory thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report
on Form 8-K dated July 31, 20009, filed with the SEC on August 4, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))

Guarantee, dated as of September 11, 2007, to the ABL Credit Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC and The CIT Group/Business
Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.29 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 1, dated as of December 31, 2007, to the Guarantee to the ABL Credit Agreement, between Retail Risk
Solutions, LL.C, as New Guarantor, and The CIT Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 4.37 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of March 23, 2009, to the Guarantee to the ABL Credit Agreement, between the New Guarantors
referenced therein and The CIT Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.42 to
Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

ABL Security Agreement, dated as of July 6, 2007, among Dollar General Corporation, as Parent Borrower, certain domestic
subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporation, as Subsidiary Borrowers, collectively the Grantors, and The CIT Group/Business
Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on
Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))

Supplement No. 1, dated as of September 11, 2007, to the ABL Security Agreement, between DC Financial, LLC, as New Grantor,
and The CIT Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.31 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Supplement No. 2, dated as of December 31, 2007, to the ABL Security Agreement, between Retail Risk Solutions, LLC, as New
Grantor, and The CIT Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.38 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))
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Supplement No. 3, dated as of March 23, 2009, to the ABL Security Agreement, between the New Grantors referenced therein and
The CIT Group/Business Credit Inc., as ABL Collateral Agent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.46 to Dollar General
Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))

Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan for Key Employees of Dollar General Corporation and its affiliates (as approved by
shareholders on October 23, 2009) ((incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement
on Form S-1 (file no. 333-161464))*

Form of Stock Option Agreement between Dollar General Corporation and officers of Dollar General Corporation granting stock
options pursuant to the 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))*

Form of Option Rollover Agreement between Dollar General Corporation and officers of Dollar General Corporation (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))*

Form of Management Stockholder's Agreement among Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and officers of Dollar
General Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4
(file no. 333-148320))*

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreement among Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employees
of Dollar General Corporation (July 2007 grant group) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Dollar General Corporation's
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on December 12, 2009 (file

no. 001-11421))*

Amendment to Management Stockholder's Agreement among Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and key employees
of Dollar General Corporation (post-July 2007 grant group) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to Dollar General
Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended October 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on December 12,
2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Form of Sale Participation Agreement between Buck Holdings, L.P. and certain officer-level employees, dated July 6, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 333-148320))*

Form of Director Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement in connection with restricted stock unit grants made to outside directors
pursuant to the Company's Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-161464))

Form of Director Stock Option Agreement in connection with option grants made to outside directors pursuant to the Company's
Amended and Restated 2007 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-161464))

1998 Stock Incentive Plan (As Amended and Restated effective as of May 31, 2006) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99 to
Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 31, 2006, filed with the SEC on June 2, 2006 (file
no. 001-11421))*
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Amendment to Dollar General Corporation 1998 Stock Incentive Plan, effective November 28, 2006 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2007, filed with the
SEC on March 29, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))*

Form of Stock Option Grant Notice in connection with option grants made pursuant to the 1998 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 29, 2005, filed with the SEC on
August 25, 2005 (file no. 001-11421))*

Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as amended and restated effective December 31, 2007) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))*

First Amendment to the Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as amended and restated effective December 31, 2007)
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 333-148320))*

Second Amendment to the Dollar General Corporation CDP/SERP Plan (as amended and restated effective December 31, 2007),
dated as of June 3, 2008 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Dollar General Corporation's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended August 1, 2008, filed with the SEC on September 3, 2008 (file no. 001-11421))*

Amended and Restated Dollar General Corporation Annual Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Dollar
General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-161464)) *

Dollar General Corporation 2009 Teamshare Bonus Program for Named Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-158281))*

Summary of Dollar General Corporation Life Insurance Program as Applicable to Executive Officers (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.19 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2007, filed with the
SEC on March 29, 2007) (file no. 001-11421))*

Dollar General Corporation Domestic Relocation Policy for Officers (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to Dollar General
Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended February 2, 2007, filed with the SEC on March 29, 2007) (file
no. 001-11421))*

Form of Director Compensation Letter between Dollar General Corporation and outside directors of Dollar General Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file
no. 333-161464))

Employment Agreement, effective as of January 11, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 19, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreiling
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Stock Option Agreement, dated as of January 21, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreiling (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.29 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))*
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Restricted Stock Award Agreement, effective as of January 21, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and Richard Dreiling
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 333-148320))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated as of January 21, 2008, among Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P. and
Richard Dreiling (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4
(file no. 333-148320))*

Sale Participation Agreement, dated January 21, 2008, between Buck Holdings, L.P. and Richard Dreiling (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.31 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))*

Employment Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, by and between Dollar General Corporation and David L. Beré (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated July 6, 2007, filed with the SEC on
July 12, 2007 (file no. 001-11421))*

Extension of Initial Term of Employment Agreement, dated December 27, 2007, between Dollar General Corporation and David
Beré (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.33 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 333-148320))*

Notice of Initiation of Transition Period under Employment Agreement, dated January 8, 2008, by Dollar General Corporation to
David Beré (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file
no. 333-148320))*

Letter Agreement dated April 9, 2008 between Dollar General Corporation and David L. Beré (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated April 9, 2008, filed with the SEC on April 10, 2008
(file no. 001-11421))*

Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated December 17, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and David L. Beré
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
January 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Separation Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2010, between David L. Bere and Dollar General Corporation (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated January 11, 2010, filed with the SEC on
January 13, 2010 (file no. 001-11421))*

Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2009, by and between Dollar General Corporation and David M. Tehle (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.1 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on
April 3, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Employment Agreement effective April 1, 2009, by and between Dollar General Corporation and Kathleen R. Guion (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 to Dollar General Corporation's Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on
April 3, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Employment Agreement, dated December 1, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and Todd Vasos (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.35 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2009, filed with
the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*
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Stock Option Agreement, dated December 19, 2008, between Dollar General Corporation and Todd Vasos (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.36 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2009, filed with
the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Management Stockholder's Agreement, dated December 19, 2008, among Dollar General Corporation, Buck Holdings, L.P., and
Todd Vasos (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended January 30, 2009, filed with the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Sale Participation Agreement, effective December 19, 2008, between Buck Holdings, L.P. and Todd Vasos (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.38 to Dollar General Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 30, 2009,
filed with the SEC on March 24, 2009 (file no. 001-11421))*

Monitoring Fee Letter Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, among Buck Holdings, L.P., Dollar General Corporation, Kohlberg Kravis
Roberts & Co L.P., and Goldman, Sachs & Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Indemnification Agreement, dated July 6, 2007, among Buck Holdings, L.P., Dollar General Corporation, Kohlberg Kravis Roberts &
Co L.P., and Goldman, Sachs & Co. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.26 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration
Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Purchase Letter Agreement, dated August 15, 2007, between Principal Life Insurance Company and DC Financial, LLC (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to Dollar General Corporation's Registration Statement on Form S-4 (file no. 333-148320))

Indemnification Priority and Information Sharing Agreement, dated as of June 30, 2009, among Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. L.P.,
the funds named therein and Dollar General Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.42 to Dollar General Corporation's
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (file no. 333-161464))

List of Subsidiaries of Dollar General Corporation

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

Powers of Attorney (included as part of the signature pages hereto)
Certifications of CEO and CFO under Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a)

Certifications of CEO and CFO under 18 U.S.C. 1350

Management Contract or Compensatory Plan
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QuickLinks
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
PART II
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK
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amounts)

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS (In thousands. except
per share amounts)

DOLLAR GENERAIL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (In
thousands except per share amounts)

DOLLAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FI. OWS (In thousands)
DOLILAR GENERAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tabular Disclosure of Fair Values of Derivative Instruments
Tabular Disclosure of the Effect of Derivative Instruments on the Consolidated Statement of Operations For the year ended January 29. 2010

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
ITEM 9A(T). CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

PARTIII

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS. EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOILDER
MATTERS

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS. AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

PART IV
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